Articles of Incorporation For

Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II,

(A Colorado Nonprofit Corporation)

The undersigned signs and acknowledges, for delivery to the Secretary of State of Colorado, these Articles of Incorporation under the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act.

ARTICLE 1 - NAME

The name of the corporation is Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc. (the "Association").

ARTICLE 2 -- DURATION

The duration of the Association is perpetual.

ARTICLE 3 -- DEFINITIONS

The definitions set forth in the Declaration for Hideaway Junction Phase II (the "Declaration") apply to all capitalized terms set forth in the Declaration, unless otherwise defined in these Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE 4 -- PRINCIPAL OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT

The principal office of the Association is 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482. The Association's initial registered office shall be at the office of its registered agent at 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482, and its registered agent at such address is Winter Park Housing Authority. The principal office and the registered agent and office of the Association may change from time to time.

ARTICLE 5 - NONPROFIT

The Association is a nonprofit corporation, without shares of stock, and does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit for the Members of the Association.

ARTICLE 6 -- MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS AND QUALIFICATIONS

The Association will have voting Members for each Lot subject to the Declaration.

There is one membership for each Lot owned, which shall be automatically transferred upon the conveyance of the Lot.

The qualifications of Members of the Association, the voting rights, classes of Members and other rights and obligations of Members are contained in the Declaration and Bylaws of the Association.

Membership is automatically transferred upon the conveyance of a Lot.

The Members may be of such classes of membership as established by the Declarant, or in the Declaration (as the Declaration, or may be amended or supplemented).

ARTICLE 7 -- PURPOSES AND POWERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

The purposes for which this Association is formed are as follows:

- (a) To operate and manage the planned Community known as "Hideaway Junction Phase II," as an affordable housing community for the purposes of enhancing and preserving the value of the Lots and any Common Areas in the Community for the benefit of the Members;
- (b) To be and constitute the Association to which reference is made in the Declaration recorded or to be recorded in the real property records for Grand County, State of Colorado, subject to:
 - 1. Applicable law;
 - 2. The Declaration (as defined and referred to above);
 - 3. The Bylaws of the Association;
 - 4. Governance policies of the Association; and
 - Rules and Regulations and policies and procedures as the Board of Directors of the Association may from time to time adopt.
- (c) To institute, defend or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings or seek injunctive relief for violations of the Governing Documents, and in the Association's name, on behalf of the Association or two or more Owners, on matters affecting the Community; except as to Excluded Claims. In those claims, the terms of the Declaration control and must first be complied with;
- (d) To provide an entity for the furtherance of the interests of the Owners of property subject to the Declaration;
- (e) To act for and on behalf of the Members of the Association in all matters deemed necessary and proper for the protection, maintenance and improvement of the Lots as more specifically provided for in the Declaration:
- (f) The Association may not sue or commence an arbitration on an Excluded Claim (as defined in the Declaration), without first complying with the terms and conditions set forth in the Declaration.
- (g) To eliminate or limit the personal liability of a Director to the Association or to the Members for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a Director, as allowed by law;
- (h) To perform all acts and services and exercise all powers and duties in accordance with the requirements for an association of owners under the terms of the Declaration;
- To promote, foster and advance the health, safety, and welfare of the Owners and occupants;
- (j) To do any and all permitted acts suitable or incidental to any of the foregoing purposes and objects to the fullest extent permitted by law, and do any and all acts that in the opinion of the Board, will promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the members and occupants of the Residences, and to have and to exercise any and all powers, rights and privileges which are granted under Colorado law, the Declaration, and Bylaws.

The foregoing statements of purpose are to be construed as a statement of both purposes and powers.

The purposes and powers stated in each clause do not limit or restrict by reference or inference any other clause or as allowed under the Colorado Nonprofit Corporation Act.

Each clause and authority under that act are to be broadly construed as independent purposes and powers.

ARTICLE 8 -- LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS

No director is to be personally liable to the Association or its Members for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for any of the following:

- (a) Any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Association or its Members:
- (b) Any acts or omissions of the director not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; or
- (c) Any transaction in which the director received improper personal benefit.

Nothing in these Articles of Incorporation is to be construed to deprive any director of the right to all defenses available under the governing documents for the Community or state law. Nothing is to be constructed to deprive any director of any right for contribution from any other director or other person.

Any repeal or modification of this Article shall be prospective only and shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director of the Association existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE 9 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS/EXECUTIVE BOARD

The business and affairs of the Association shall be conducted, managed, and controlled by a Board of Directors (Executive Board). The initial Executive Board shall consist of three persons. The number of Executive Board Members may be changed, and the qualifications of directors, method of election, term of office, and removal and filling of vacancies shall be as set forth in the Bylaws.

The Declarant of the Community has additional rights and qualifications as provided under the Declaration, including the right to appoint Members of the Executive Board during the period of Declarant control.

ARTICLE 10 -- AMENDMENT

Amendment of these Articles requires the assent of at least a majority of the votes in the Association. No amendment to these Articles of Incorporation shall be contrary to or inconsistent with the provisions of the Declaration or apply to or treat any one Owner differently than all Owners.

ARTICLE 11 -- DISSOLUTION

In the event of the dissolution of the Association as a corporation, either voluntary or involuntarily by the Members, by operation of law or otherwise, then the assets of the Association shall be deemed to be owned by the Members at the date of dissolution, as part of their Lots.

ARTICLE 12 -- INTERPRETATION

The terms and provisions of the Declaration are incorporated by reference when necessary to interpret, construe, or clarify the provisions of these Articles. In the event of conflict, the terms of the Declaration shall control over these Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws. In the case of conflict between the provisions of these Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws, these Articles of Incorporation shall control.

ARTICLE 13 - INCORPORATOR

The name and address of the Incorporator of the Association and its registered agent is Alisha Janes of Winter Park Housing Authority at such address 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482.

For the purposes of forming this corporation under the laws of the State of Colorado, the

undersigned, as the incorporator of this Association, has executed these Articles of Incorporation this 14th day of
Alisha Janes
The name and mailing address of the individual who causes this document to be delivered for filing, and to whom the Secretary of State may deliver notice if filing of this document is refused is: Alisha Janes of Winter Park Housing Authority, 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482.
CONSENT OF REGISTERED AGENT
The undersigned hereby consents to the appointment as registered agent for the Association.
Alisha Janes
STATE OF COLORADO)) ss.
COUNTY OF GRAND)
The foregoing was acknowledged before me by Alisha Janes on this 14 day of 24.
Witness my hand and official seal. My commission expires: Notary Notary IRENE KILBURN NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF COLORADO NOTARY ID 20134049847 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES AUGUST 16, 20

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 1 OF 50, R\$258.00, , , Jolen Reception $\frac{1}{2}$ S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Indexing notes:

Index in:

- Grantee's index under "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II" and "Hideaway Junction Phase II" (the names of the Community) and "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc." (the name of the Association) Grantor's index under "Winter Park Housing Authority" and the names of each person executing this declaration.

Declaration for **Hideaway Junction Phase II**

A limited expense planned community subject only to Sections § 38-33.3-105 through § 38-33.3-107 of the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 2 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1.	SUBMISSION/DEFINED TERMS	5
SECTION 1.1	SUBMISSION OF REAL ESTATE	5
SECTION 1.2	EXEMPTION FROM CCIOA	6
SECTION 1.3	DEFINED TERMS	6
ARTICLE 2.	DESCRIPTION OF REAL ESTATE, LOTS AND COMMON AREAS	
SECTION 2.1	DESCRIPTION AND TYPE	بال 10
SECTION 2.2	NUMBER OF LOTS	11
Section 2.3	IDENTIFICATION OF LOTS/LOT DESCRIPTIONS	±4
SECTION 2.4	RADON NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER	11
SECTION 2.5 SECTION 2.6	CONCRETE FINISHES	11
ARTICLE 3.	THE ASSOCIATION	
SECTION 3.1	MEMBERSHIP	11
SECTION 3.2	GENERAL PURPOSES, POWERS, AUTHORITY AND RESTRICTIONS ON AND OF THE ASSOCIATION	12
SECTION 3.3	ASSOCIATION AGREEMENTS	13
SECTION 3.4	PROMULGATION OF RULES	13
SECTION 3.5	GOVERNANCE POLICIES	14
SECTION 3.6	INDEMNIFICATION	14
Section 3.7	APPOINTMENT/ REMOVAL OF OFFICERS AND BOARD MEMBERS DURING THE PERIOD OF DECLARANT CONTROL.	14
SECTION 3.8	INITIAL OWNER ELECTIONS OF BOARD MEMBERS	14
Section 3.9	DECLARANT MAY REUNQUISH RIGHTS	
ARTICLE 4.	EASEMENTS	
SECTION 4.1	EASEMENT FOR UTILITIES	15
Section 4.2	EASEMENT FOR ENCROACHMENTS	15
Section 4.3	EASEMENTS FOR THE ASSOCIATION AND EACH OWNER	15
Section 4.4	EMERGENCY EASEMENTS	15
SECTION 4.5	PERIMETER EASEMENTS	16
Section 4.6	WARRANTY, REPAIR AND CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT	16
Section 4.7	OWNERS' EASEMENTS OF ENJOYMENT	16
SECTION 4.8	DELEGATION OF USE	
ARTICLE 5.	MAINTENANCE	17
SECTION 5.1	SCOPE OF ASSOCIATION MAINTENANCE	17
SECTION 5.2	ASSOCIATION'S MAINTENANCE AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES	
SECTION 5.3	OWNER MAINTENANCE AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES	17
ARTICLE 6.	COVENANT FOR ASSESSMENTS	18
SECTION 6.1	CREATION OF ASSOCIATION LIEN AND PERSONAL OBLIGATION TO PAY ASSESSMENTS	18
SECTION 6.2	DECLARANT ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION	19
Section 6.3	PURPOSE OF COMMON EXPENSE ASSESSMENTS	19
SECTION 6.4	APPORTIONMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES	20
Section 6.5	DEFAULT ASSESSMENTS	20
SECTION 6.6	MAXIMUM ANNUAL ASSESSMENT/COMMENCEMENT OF COMMON EXPENSE ASSESSMENTS	
SECTION 6.7	LEN PRIORITIES	21

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
24
24
24
24
24
24
24
25
25
26
26
26
26
26
26
27
27
27
27
27
27
28
28
28
28
28
28 28
28
28 29
28 29 29 29
28 29 29
28 29 29 29
28 29 29 29 29
28 29 29 29 29
282929292929293030
2829292929292930
282929292929303030
28292929292929303030
282929292929303030
282929292930303030

SECTION 9.3	MISCELLANEOUS TERMS GOVERNING INSURANCE CARRIED BY THE ASSOCIATION	32
SECTION 9.4	INSURANCE PREMIUM	32
SECTION 9.5	INSURANCE REVIEW	
SECTION 9.6	CLAIMS AND ADJUSTMENTS BY THE ASSOCIATION	
SECTION 9.7	DUTY TO REPAIR	
Section 9.8	CONDEMNATION AND PROPERTY INSURANCE ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS	33
SECTION 9.9	RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT OF DEDUCTIBLE AMOUNT	33
Section 9.10	DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OF RESIDENCES ON LOTS	33
ARTICLE 10.	ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION - EXCLUDED CLAIMS	33
SECTION 10.1	PURPOSE/SCOPE OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION	33
SECTION 10.2	DIRECT COMMUNICATION	33
SECTION 10.3	MEDIATION	33
SECTION 10.4	PRE-CONDITIONS TO ARBITRATIONS BY THE ASSOCIATION OR ANY OWNER	34
SECTION 10.5	ARBITRATION PROCESS AND PROCEDURES	34
SECTION 10.6	SOLE REMEDY; WAIVER OF JUDICIAL RIGHTS	35
SECTION 10.7	BINDING NATURE; APPLICABLE LAW	36
SECTION 10.8	LOCATION	
SECTION 10.9	PAYMENT OF EXPENSES UNDER THIS ARTICLE	
SECTION 10.10		
ARTICLE 11.	AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION	36
SECTION 11.1	AMENDMENT OF DECLARATION BY OWNERS	36
SECTION 11.2	TECHNICAL, CLERICAL, TYPOGRAPHICAL OR CLARIFICATION AMENDMENT	
SECTION 11.3	AMENDMENT REQUIRED BY MORTGAGE AGENCIES	
SECTION 11.3	RECORDING OF AMENDMENTS	
SECTION 11.5	APPROVAL REQUIRED FOR CERTAIN AMENDMENTS	
SECTION 11.5	ASSOCIATION CERTIFICATION	
SECTION 11.7	EXPENSES .	
SECTION 11.7	TERMINATION	
ARTICLE 12.	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
SECTION 12.1	ENFORCEMENT	
SECTION 12.2	SECURITY	
Section 12.3	RIGHT TO PAY TAXES AND INSURANCE PREMIUMS	
SECTION 12.4	SEVERABILITY	
SECTION 12.5	TERM OF DECLARATION	
SECTION 12.6	INTERPRETATION	
SECTION 12.7	SINGULAR INCLUDES THE PLURAL	
SECTION 12.8	CAPTIONS	
ARTICLE 13.	DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS OF DECLARANT	
	DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AND SPECIAL DECLARANT RIGHTS	
	ADDITIONAL RESERVED RIGHTS	
	RIGHTS TRANSFERRABLE/RIGHTS TRANSFERRED	
Section 13.4	No Further Authorizations Needed	
SECTION 13.5	INTERPRETATION	
	Construction	
	RIPTION OF THE REAL ESTATE	
	TIONS TO TITLE	
EXHIBIT C - ALLO	CATED INTERESTS	.46
	MON AREAS	
EXHIBIT E - ADDI	TIONAL OR ANNEXABLE PROPERTY	.48

RECEPT	rion#:	2024001	L587,	03/14/20:	24 at	01:06:44	PM.	5	OF	50	.Tolene	c	Tipko
Grand	County	Clerk	and F	Recorder,	Colo	rado	/	_	O1	50,	porene	٥.	nriike,
		0-0-11			COTO	Iado							

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 6 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Declaration for

Hideaway Junction Phase II

a Limited Expense Exempt Planned Community under the Act

This Declaration is made by Winter Park Housing Authority, a municipal housing authority (the "Declarant").

Recitals:

- A. Declarant is the owner of certain real property located in Grand County, State of Colorado, described as set forth in *Exhibit A* attached and by reference made a part of this Declaration.
- B. The Declarant desires to create an affordable housing and planned residential Community on the real property described in *Exhibit A* in which portions of the real property are designated for residential use and in which portions may be designated as Common Areas and/or as Limited Common Areas.
- C. The purposes of the Declarant and of this Declaration include, but are not limited to the following:
 - to create the planned community known as Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, which Community is also known as Hideaway Junction Phase II:
 - to create a limited expense community exempt from CCIOA except for C.R.S. 38-33.3-105 through 38-33.3-107;
 - to develop, market and sell affordable housing to qualified residents in the Town of Winter Park, Colorado;
 - to benefit subsequent purchasers of the Lots by limiting the purchase and sale price of Lots in the Community;
 - to preserve and enhance the values of the Lots in the Community; and
 - to serve the purposes set forth in this Declaration and other Governing Documents of the Community.
- D. The Declarant has caused the "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.," a Colorado nonprofit corporation ("Association"), to be incorporated under the laws of the State of Colorado for the purpose of exercising the functions as set forth in this Declaration and as to which each Owner is a member.

ARTICLE 1. Submission/Defined Terms

Section 1.1 Submission of Real Estate.

(a) Declarant submits the real property described in Exhibit A, together with all

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 7 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

exceptions to title described in *Exhibit B*, including easements, rights, and appurtenances and the improvements erected or to be erected (collectively, the "Real Estate") to the terms and conditions of this Declaration.

(b) The Declarant declares that:

- (i) all of the Real Estate is held or sold, and conveyed subject to the easements, restrictions, covenants, and conditions in this Declaration;
- (ii) this Declaration is made for the purpose of protecting the value and desirability of the Real Estate;
- (iii) this Declaration is made to be subject to CCIOA only to the extent CCIOA applies to limited expense communities under C.R.S. 38-33.3-116;
 - (iv) this Declaration runs with the Real Estate;
- (v) this Declaration is binding on all parties having any right, title or interest in the Real Estate, their heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns; and
 - (vi) this Declaration inures to the benefit and burden of each Owner.

Section 1.2 Exemption from CCIOA.

- (a) The Community is a limited expense community under C.R.S. 38-33.3-116 because it is (i) a planned community created after July 1, 1998, (ii) all Lots are for residential purposes, and (iii) the Declaration limits the annual average common expense liability of each Lot, exclusive of optional user fees and insurance premiums paid by the Association, to no more than \$400.00, as adjusted pursuant to CCIOA.
- (b) As a limited expense residential planned community under C.R.S. 38-33.3-116, the Declarant declares that the Community, the Real Estate, the Lots, the Residences, the Owners and all other persons and property subject to this Declaration are exempt from and not subject to CCIOA except for § 38-33.3-105 through § 38-33.3-107 of CCIOA.
- Section 1.3 <u>Defined Terms</u>. Each capitalized term in this Declaration has the meaning specified or used in this Declaration, as defined below, or as the context provides or requires otherwise.
- (a) Allocated Interests. The Common Expense liability and votes in the Community / Association allocated to each Lot pursuant to the terms of this Declaration and as initially set forth in Exhibit C. The Allocated Interests for each Lot is a fraction, the numerator of which is one and the denominator of which is the total number of all Lots in the Community. Each Lot is allocated one vote in the Association.
- (b) <u>Area of Common Responsibility</u>. Common Areas, together with those easements or other areas or matters which by the terms of the Governing Documents or other

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 8 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

applicable covenant, contract or agreement with any Person, including, the Town of Winter Park and/or the Declarant, are or will become the responsibility of the Association.

- (c) <u>Articles of Incorporation</u>. The Articles of Incorporation for the Association filed with the Colorado Secretary of State, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- (d) <u>Association</u>. Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation, and its successors and assigns.
 - (e) <u>Bylaws</u>. The Bylaws of the Association, as amended from time to time.
- (f) <u>Common Areas</u>. Property owned by the Association, if any, within the Community and any easements for the benefit of the Association. The Common Areas exclude the Lots and Residences.
- (g) <u>Community-Wide Standard</u>. The standard of conduct, maintenance, or other activity generally prevailing within the Community. This standard may be more specifically determined by the Board of Directors.
- (h) <u>CCIOA or Act</u>. The Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, C.R.S. § 38-33.3-101, et seq., as it may be amended from time to time. The Act does not apply to the Community except as provided for in section 38-33.3-116 of the Act.
- (i) <u>Common Expenses</u>. As used in this Declaration, this term means the expenses and liabilities incurred or anticipated to be incurred by the Association including, but not limited to, those expenses incurred for maintaining, repairing, replacing, and operating the Common Areas and/or Areas of Common Responsibility, allocations to reserves, and for fulfilling any of the Association's powers and duties.
- (j) <u>Community</u>. Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, also sometimes known as Hideaway Junction Phase II, is the Community created by this Declaration.
- (k) <u>Declaration</u>. Collective term for all promises, restrictions, reservations, conditions, terms, easements, and rights-of-way specifically set forth or referenced in this Declaration and set forth in the Governing Documents, as the same may be adopted and amended from time to time and including any maps or plats recorded in connection with the Community. Each and every covenant is to be given the same force and effect at law or equity without regard to which Governing Document in which it is set forth.
- (I) <u>Declaration of Restrictive Covenant for Affordable Housing or Affordable Housing Declaration.</u> That Declaration of Restrictive Covenant for Affordable Housing recorded with Grand County Clerk and Recorder at Reception No. _______ to which the Real Estate is subject. In the event of a conflict between this Declaration and the Affordable Housing Declaration, the Affordable Housing Declaration will control.
- (m) <u>Declarant</u>. The Declarant named in this Declaration and/or any successor and/or assignee designated by written notice or assignment executed by a Declarant and by the

transferee and recorded (to the extent any rights or powers of the Declarant are transferred or assigned to such transferee).

- (n) <u>Development Rights or Special Declarant Rights</u>. The rights of a declarant expressly stated in this Declaration and the rights of Declarant to control the Board of the Association during Period of Declarant Control.
- (o) <u>Excluded Claim(s)</u>. Any claim in a civil action, lawsuit or arbitration (other than the arbitration allowed for in this Declaration) related to construction or design of the Residences, grading, landscape, the Common Areas, drainage within the Community or any Improvements constructed or designed by Declarant or the following persons: a contractor, subcontractor, developer, builder, architect, engineer or inspector, or any of these affiliates of their persons or persons responsible for any part of the construction or design of a Residence or the Community, including officers, directors, shareholders, members, managers, employees or servants of these persons. Excluded Claim also includes any claims against the Declarant or its affiliates or agents or employees of Declarant or its affiliates.
- (p) <u>Executive Board</u>, <u>Board of Directors or Board</u>. Collectively, these terms refer to the body designated in this Declaration to act on behalf of the Association, within the limits set forth in this Declaration.
- (q) <u>First Mortgage</u>. Any mortgage, deed to secure debt, deed of trust, or other transfer or conveyance for the purpose of securing the performance of an obligation that is not subordinate to any other lien or encumbrance, expect liens for taxes or other liens given priority by statute.
- (r) <u>First Mortgagee</u>. A bank, savings and loan association, insurance company, real estate mortgage investment trust, pension fund, an agency of the United States Government (including "VA" or "FHA"), mortgage banker, the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"), the Federal Residence Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") or any other lender generally recognized as an institutional lender, or the Declarant, holding a First Mortgage encumbering a Lot or Lots, or any insurer or guarantor of a First Mortgage.
- (s) <u>Governing Documents</u>. Collective reference to those documents which govern the operation of the Community and the Association, including: (i) the Articles of Incorporation, (ii) the Bylaws, (iii) the rules, regulations, governance policies and procedures (if any), (iv) the Plat and any Maps, (v) this Declaration, and (vi) Affordable Housing Declaration, as one or more of the same may be amended from time to time.
- (t) <u>Improvements</u>. Every structure and all appurtenances thereto of every type and kind including, but not limited to, buildings, outbuildings, fixtures, utilities, patios, hot tubs, garages, doghouses, mailboxes, aerials, antennas, roads, driveways, parking areas, fences, screening walls, retaining walls, stairs, decks, landscaping, windbreaks, plantings, planted trees and shrubs, poles, signs, exterior air conditioning units, pumps, wells, tanks, solar collectors, reservoirs, pipes, lines, meters, towers and other facilities used in connection with water sewer, gas, electricity, solar energy, telephone, regular or cable television or other utilities.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 10 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

- (u) <u>Lot.</u> Any of the separately numbered lots or plots shown upon any recorded subdivision Plat of the Community, together with all appurtenances and improvements, with the exception of the Common Area and any public streets or rights-of-way.
- (v) Owner. A record titleholder that holds fee title to a Lot, including the Declarant.
- (w) Period of Declarant Control. The period of time commencing on the date of recordation of this Declaration and expiring on the earlier of: 60 days after conveyance of 75% of the maximum number of Lots that the Declarant may create (as allowed under this Declaration) to Owners other than the Declarant, two years after the last conveyance of a Lot by the Declarant in the ordinary course of business, two years after any right to add new Lots was last exercised or as surrendered, in writing, by the Declarant.
- (x) <u>Person</u>. Any individual, corporation, limited liability company, firm, association, partnership, trust, or other legal entity.
- (y) <u>Plat</u>. That certain subdivision plat or plats for all or any part of the Real Estate recorded in the real property records for Grand County, Colorado, as the same may be amended from time to time. The "notes" on the various sheets comprising a Plat are incorporated by this reference and are fully enforceable as though set forth in this Declaration.
- (z) <u>Qualified Buyers or Qualified Residents</u>. The terms have the same meaning as set forth in the Affordable Housing Declaration and refers to the Town, WPHA, and/or natural person(s) within a household who meets the following requirements:
 - Currently working or been hired to work in Grand County as an employee or sole proprietor who is actively involved in his or her own business.
 - Works a minimum of 32 hours per week, or at least 1,200 hours annually for a Grand County employer. At the time of the purchase of the Lot, the Person must earn no more than 300% of the Grand County Area Median Income as set by the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (three times the 100% income associated with the appropriate household size) with Cumulative Assets not exceeding 200% of the allowed annual income. For purposes of this paragraph "Cumulative Assets" shall mean the total financial assets of the Person less an amount equal to: (i) the cash downpayment applied to the purchase of the Lot; plus (ii) any age-restricted retirement assets up to the following amounts: (x) for Persons under 40 years of age up to \$90,000, (y) for Persons between 40 and 55 years of age up to \$165,000, and (z) for Persons over 55 years of age up to \$330,000 (as these limits may be modified by WPHA from time to time)
 - Does not own any other residential real estate or a mobile home as rental property at the time they occupy one of the Lots except to the extent permitted in the Affordable Housing Declaration. For purposes of this Section, if a person owns vacant land during the time of ownership

- of a Lot and improves that vacant land with a residence, the person will be deemed to "own other residential real estate" when that Person receives a Certificate of Occupancy for that residence.
- Upon purchase of a Lot, the purchaser shall occupy the Lot as their primary residence.
- Household size must be no fewer than one less than the number of bedrooms in the property (i.e. for 3-bedroom home households must be comprised of 2 or more people, with at least one member meeting workforce requirements upon the time of sale). The household size must be met upon purchase and the following 5 years. Exemptions may be considered by the Winter Park Housing Authority.
- (aa) Real Estate. The property described in Exhibit A, together with all easements, rights, and appurtenances and the improvements erected or to be erected on the Real Estate, together with all easements, rights, and appurtenances. The Real Estate is subject to Declarant's Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights as provided for in this Declaration. All exceptions to title to which the Community is subject to as of the date of this Declaration are recited in Exhibit B.
- (bb) Related User. Any person who resides with an Owner within a Residence; is a guest or invitee of an Owner; is an occupant or tenant of a Lot; and any family member, guest, invitee or cohabitant.
 - (cc) Residence. The dwelling unit, home or residence constructed on a Lot.
- (dd) <u>Rules</u>. All rules, regulations, policies, and regulations, including by way of example only, use restrictions, governance policies, enforcement procedures and any rules, guidelines or requirements enacted by the Executive Board pursuant to this Declaration, the Bylaws and as allowed by law.
 - (ee) Town. Town of Winter Park, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation.
- (ff) <u>Winter Park Housing Authority ("WPHA")</u>. WPHA is the original Declarant under this Declaration and the declarant under the Declaration of Restrictive Covenant For Affordable Housing applicable to this Community.

ARTICLE 2. Description of Real Estate, Lots and Common Areas

- Section 2.1 <u>Description and Type</u>. The Community is a planned residential community located in Grand County, State of Colorado. The Real Estate of the Community is described in *Exhibit A*. All exceptions to title to which the Community is presently subject are recited in *Exhibit B*. In addition, the Community may be subject to other easements or licenses granted pursuant to the Governing Documents, or granted or allowed by authority in any recorded document or established under this Declaration.
- **Section 2.2** Number of Lots. The initial number of Lots is 20. The maximum number of Lots is 50 with prior approval of the Town.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 12 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke,

Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Section 2.3 <u>Identification of Lots/Lot Descriptions</u>. Every contract for sale, and every deed, lease, mortgage, or other another legal instrument may legally describe a Lot by its identifying number as shown on the Plat.

Section 2.4 Initial Common Areas and/or Limited Common Areas.

- (a) There are no initial Common Areas or Limited Common Areas.
- (b) Common Areas or Limited Common Areas may be added or modified, as allowed under this Declaration.
- (c) Any Common Areas and Limited Common Areas may be regulated by the Association, including the determination of the Board to use the Common Areas in manners deemed by the Board to be consistent with the purposes of this Declaration.
- Section 2.5 Radon Notice and Disclaimer. Owners acknowledge that Declarant and this Declaration disclose that radon gas contamination is a naturally-occurring threat throughout the Rocky Mountain region and that potential radon contamination in a Residence can be mitigated through modifications to a Residence. By acquiring a Lot, each Owner acknowledges they have assumed all risk for any potential radon contamination and that should radon contamination be discovered by an Owner or resident at any time it is the Owner or resident's sole obligation to correct the radon contamination. The Declarant and the Association has made no investigation to determine whether a Residence is affected by radon. Each Owner and resident acknowledges that neither the Declarant or the Association has made any representations or warranties, express or implied, concerning the presence or absence or radon within any Residence or the soils beneath or adjacent to any Residence. Each Owner releases the Declarant and the Association from any and all liabilities and claims with respect to radon gas.

Section 2.6 Concrete Finishes.

- (a) Each Owner acknowledges and accepts that there may be concrete finishes on improvements of or serving a Residence and that those areas, as constructed with concrete, will settle and crack.
- (b) When natural materials like concrete are used, natural variability, not uniformity, is to be expected as the surface of the concrete matures. Each Owner and the Association waives and releases Declarant from variability in concrete finishes.
- (c) Declarant and the Association are not responsible for and do not warranty interior or exterior concrete, including, but not limited to, cracking, discoloration, spalling, settlement, heaving and/or movement.

ARTICLE 3. The Association

Section 3.1 <u>Membership</u>. Every person who is an Owner of a fee interest in any Lot which is subject to this Declaration is a member of the Association. Membership is appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot. Ownership of such Lot is the sole

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 13 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

qualification for such membership. Where more than one person holds an interest in any Lot, all such persons are members. Members may be of such classes as provided for in the Bylaws.

Section 3.2 <u>General Purposes, Powers, Authority and Restrictions on and of the Association.</u>

- (a) The Association, acting solely through its Executive Board, is to perform functions and manage the Community including its business affairs as provided in the Governing Documents so as to protect the value and desirability of the Lots and the Community and to further the interests of the Owners and Related Users. The powers of the Executive Board shall include without limitation, the power to:
 - (i) Adopt and amend bylaws and rules and regulations;
 - (ii) Adopt and amend budgets;
- (iii) Hire and terminate managing agents and other employees, agents, and independent contractors;
- (iv) Institute, defend, or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings in its own name on behalf of itself or two or more unit owners on matters affecting the Community;
 - (v) Make contracts and incur liabilities:
- (vi) Regulate the use, maintenance, repair, replacement and modification of the Common Areas, if any;
- (vii) Cause addition improvements to be made as part of the Common Areas, if any;
- (viii) Acquire, hold, encumber and convey in its own name any right, title, or interest to real or personal property, except that any conveyance of the Common Areas will be by Owners holding 67% of the total Association votes;
- (ix) Grant easements, leases, licenses, and concessions through or over the Common Areas:
- (x) Impose and receive any payments, fees or charges for the use, rental or operation of the Common Areas;
- (xi) Impose charges for late payments of assessments, recover reasonable attorney fees and other legal costs for collection of assessments and other actions to enforce the power of the Association, regardless of whether or not suit was initiated, and after notice and opportunity to be heard, levy reasonable fines for violations of the Governing Documents;

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 14 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

- (xii) Impose reasonable charges for the preparation and recordation of amendments to the Declaration or statements of unpaid assessments;
- (xiii) Borrow funds and assign its right to future income, including the right to receive common expense assessments;
- (xiv) Provide for the indemnification of its officers and executive board and maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance;
- (xv) Exercise any other powers conferred by this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and or Bylaws;
- (xvi) Exercise all other powers as may be exercised in this state by legal entities of the same type as the Association; and
- (xvii) Exercise any other powers necessary and proper for the governance and operation of the Association.
- (b) Any purchaser of a Lot is deemed to have assented to, ratified and approved this Declaration and the terms of this Declaration.
- (c) The Association is governed by the Governing Documents and other applicable laws.
- (d) The Executive Board may, by written resolution, delegate authority to a manager, managing agent or bookkeeper for the Association, provided no such delegation relieves the Board of final responsibility.
- (e) The Association may not commence an arbitration on an Excluded Claim without first complying with the terms of this Declaration.
- Section 3.3 Association Agreements. Any agreement for professional management of or bookkeeping for the Community or any contract providing for services of the Declarant may not exceed one year. Any such agreement must provide for termination by either party without cause and without payment of a termination fee or penalty upon 30 days' written notice. The Association is not bound either directly or indirectly to contracts or leases (including management contracts) entered into during the Period of Declarant Control unless the Association is provided with a right of termination of any such contract or lease without cause, which is exercisable without penalty at any time after at least 30 days' notice to the other party to the contract.

Section 3.4 Promulgation of Rules.

- (a) Subject to the terms of this Declaration, the Executive Board may adopt, amend, repeal and enforce Rules and impose fines for violations of the Governing Documents.
- (b) The Executive Board may proceed with Rules as it deems desirable with respect to the interpretation and implementation of this Declaration, the operation of the

Association, and the Lots in accordance with the following:

- (i) The Rules are to be reasonable and uniformly applied.
- (ii) Copies of the currently effective Rules must be made available to each Owner upon request.
- (iii) Each Owner must comply with the Rules and see that Related Users comply with the Rules.
- (iv) The Rules have the same force and effect as if they were stated in full in this Declaration.
- (v) In the event of conflict between the Rules and this Declaration, this Declaration prevails, but only to the extent that such rule or regulation invalidates a specific provision in this Declaration.
- Section 3.5 Governance Policies. The Association may adopt and maintain governance policies, to guide governance and operation of the Community and the Association. The governance policies may be a part of the Rules.
- Section 3.6 Indemnification. To the full extent permitted by law, all officers, members of the Executive Board and committee members of the Association shall be and are indemnified by the Owners and the Association. This indemnification extends to all expenses and liabilities including attorneys' fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon them in any proceeding to which they may be a party, or in which they may become involved, by reason of being or having been an officer or member of the Executive Board, or committee member or any settlements. This indemnification applies whether or not they hold such position at the time such expenses are incurred. In the event such person is adjudged guilty of willful misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of their duties, this indemnification will then no longer apply and such person is to reimburse the Association.
- Section 3.7 <u>Appointment/ Removal of Officers and Board Members during the Period of Declarant Control</u>. The Declarant has the power and authority, pursuant to this Declaration and the other Governing Documents, to appoint and remove officers and members of the Executive Board. This authority extends through the Period of Declarant Control.
- Section 3.8 <u>Initial Owner Elections of Board Members</u>. Initial or subsequent Owners will elect an Owner controlled Board upon expiration of the Period of Declarant Control. Subsequent to transition of control, Board positions are to be filled by vote of the Owners in accordance with the Bylaws.
- Section 3.9 <u>Declarant May Relinquish Rights</u>. At any time prior to the end of the Period of Declarant Control, the Declarant may relinquish the right to appoint and remove Executive Board members as may require certain specific actions of the Executive Board to be approved by the Declarant.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 16 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

ARTICLE 4. Easements

Section 4.1 Easement for Utilities.

- (a) A blanket easement upon, across, over and under the Lots are shown upon the recorded plat of the Community, and other easements as may be established pursuant to the provisions of this Declaration or as may be granted by the Board of Directors of the Association.
- (b) Declarant hereby reserves onto itself (for as long as Declarant owns property within the Community), the Association, and the designees of each, non-exclusive access and maintenance easements upon, across, over and under all of the Property to the extent reasonably necessary for the purpose of replacing, repairing, and maintaining cable television systems, master television antenna systems, broadband, security and similar systems, electricity, irrigation, sewer, drainage and/or other utility lines/utilities.
- (c) Utilities serving any Lot, Lots, or Common Areas may pass through another Lot, which is burdened with this easement.
- (d) By virtue of these easements, it is expressly permissible for the Declarant or the Association or the utility companies or municipalities supplying such utility service to erect and maintain the necessary equipment within the Real Estate and to affix, repair and maintain equipment, water and sewer pipes, gas, electric and telephone wires, circuits, conduits and meters.
- (e) These easements and related obligations and duties are appurtenant to and pass with title to each Lot.
- (f) Declarant has the reserved right to establish easements to serve the Community of the Real Estate or the properties described in *Exhibit A*. In this regard, any easements given of the Declarant subsequent to this Declaration or any Plat being recorded are confirmed and expressly included in the Community and made subject to this Declaration.
- Section 4.2 <u>Easement for Encroachments</u>. If any portion of a Lot or Residence encroaches upon any Common Area or adjoining Lot, a valid easement for such encroachment and for the maintenance of same, shall and does exist. Similarly, if any portion of the Common Areas encroaches upon a Lot, a valid easement for the encroachment and for the maintenance of same shall and does exist. Such encroachments and easements are not considered or determined to be encumbrances either on the Common Areas or any Lots affected. Further, such easements are deemed to run with the land upon which the improvements may be found.
- Section 4.3 <u>Easements for the Association and Each Owner</u>. Each Lot is subject to an easement in favor of the Declarant or Association (including its agents, employees and contractors) and to the adjacent Owner, to allow for their performance of obligations under this Declaration or under any of the other Governing Documents.
- Section 4.4 <u>Emergency Easements</u>. A nonexclusive easement for ingress and egress is granted to all police, sheriff, fire protection, ambulance, and other similar emergency agencies or

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 17 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

persons, now or subsequently servicing the Community, to enter upon any part of the Community in the performance of their duties.

- Section 4.5 Perimeter Easements. Easements are given by all Owners to the Declarant and to the Association for the placement or existence of any perimeter fences and/or walls, if any, and for any boundary improvements. These easements include the right and easement, but not the obligation, of the Association to maintain either the perimeter wall on a Lot or any boundary line improvement or wall.
- Section 4.6 <u>Warranty, Repair and Construction Easement</u>. The Declarant and its assignees has the right to perform warranty work, repairs and complete construction on a Lot, after conveyance to an Owner, after notice and with reasonable coordination with the Owner or Related User. This includes the right to control such work and repairs, along with a right of access, until completion. These rights of Declarant are not to be construed as Development Rights or Special Declarant Rights, but rather, as rights based on common law.

Section 4.7 Owners' Easements of Enjoyment.

- (a) Every Owner has a right and easement for access to their Lot by this Declaration and through the Association.
- (b) Every Owner also has the right and easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Areas of this Community, if any.
- (c) These easements are appurtenant to and passes with the title to every Lot, subject to the following provisions:
- (i) The right of the Association to promulgate and publish Rules with which each Owner and their Related Users must strictly comply.
- (ii) The right of the Association to suspend the voting rights for any period during which any assessment against their Lot remains unpaid; and for a period not to exceed sixty days for any infraction of the Rules.
- (iii) The right, power and authority of the Association to grant any easement, right-of-way, license, lease, dedication, transfer or conveyance or grant of any similar interest affecting the Common Areas, to the extent permitted by the Governing Documents.
- (iv) The right of the Association to close or limit the use of the Common Areas while maintaining, repairing and making replacements.
- (v) The rights of the Association as set forth in this Declaration and other governing documents for the Community.
- (vi) The obligation of the Association to maintain general liability insurance on areas that are or may become Common Areas after those areas are improved by the Declarant and in use by the Owners.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 18 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Section 4.8 <u>Delegation of Use</u>. Any Owner may delegate his right of enjoyment to the Common Areas to Related Users.

ARTICLE 5. Maintenance

Section 5.1 Scope of Association Maintenance.

- (a) The Executive Board of the Association determines the specifications, scope, extent, nature and parameters of the Association's maintenance responsibilities.
- (b) The Executive Board of the Association may also approve and establish a maintenance and/or insurance chart for the Community to specify maintenance and insurance responsibilities and allocations.

Section 5.2 Association's Maintenance and Other Responsibilities.

- (a) The Association is responsible for maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of any Common Areas and any other portions of the Area of Common Responsibility.
- (b) The Association may maintain other property that it does not own, including, but not limited to, property dedicated to the public, if the Board determines that such maintenance is necessary or desirable to maintain the Community-Wide Standard, subject to approval of the Town. The Association may also enter into cost-sharing agreements with neighboring associations or other Persons for shared improvements, use of an improvement, preservation of wetlands, open space or other public improvements, if the Board determines that such arrangements are beneficial to the Community and/or is otherwise required by the Town.
- (c) The Association will maintain and be responsible for trash and other services as may be provided by the Association, as allowed by this Declaration or as determined by the Board.
- (d) The Association will maintain any and all pipes, lines, ducts, electrical conduits or other apparatus serving more than one Lot that are not otherwise maintained by the Town or other governmental or quasi-governmental entity.
- (e) The Association may supplement the list of items to be maintained by the Association by resolution or by a maintenance and insurance chart adopted by the Board.
- (f) The Association may, by contract or agreement, assign any of its obligations and responsibilities for maintenance, repair, replacement or administration described in this Section to the Town or other properly qualified Person as determined by the Board.

Section 5.3 Owner Maintenance and Other Responsibilities.

(a) Owners are responsible for the maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of their Lot, including the Residence and any other Improvement located on the Lot.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 19 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

- (b) Without limiting the foregoing, Owners are specifically responsible for maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of the following items on their Lot, including parts of a Residence or improvements serving a Lot that may encroach or protrude from their Lot onto the Common Areas or other Lots: Residence interiors, all structural components and exterior surfaces of a Residence, foundations, windows, screens, window wells, doors, external vents and flues, lights and bulbs, downspouts, landscaping and any other Improvements whether original installed or installed by an Owner.
- (c) Owners are responsible for all utilities lines and facilities that serve their Lot, including, but not limited to, water and sewer, from the point where the utility only serves their Lot and/or Residence.
- (d) Owners must maintain adequate drainage across and through their Lot, if any. If not adequately maintained, the Association may perform such maintenance as it deems necessary to achieve positive drainage and charge back the costs incurred to the Owner of the Lot as a default assessment and not a Common Expense..
- (e) Owners are responsible for snow removal on the sidewalk(s) bordering their Lots consistent with the Town's snow removal requirements and the Association's Rules, if any. Provided, however, the Association may by written resolution assume responsibility for snow removal on the sidewalks located within the Community and treat it as part of the Common Expense.
- (f) Each Lot and Residence on a Lot must at all times be kept well maintained, in good repair, and replacement, and in a clean, sightly, and wholesome condition consistent with the Community-Wide Standard.
- (g) Trash, litter, junk boxes, containers, bottles, cans, implements, machinery, lumber or other building materials are not permitted to remain exposed upon a Lot so that the same are visible from any neighboring Lot, or any street, except as necessary during a period of construction.
- (h) The Association, and its agents, have the authority to enter, replace, maintain, repair and clean up Lots which do not conform to the provisions of this Section, and to charge and collect from the Owner of that Lot all reasonable costs as a default assessment and not a Common Expense.
- (i) The Association may supplement the list of items to be maintained by Owners by resolution or by a maintenance and insurance chart adopted by the Executive Board.

ARTICLE 6. Covenant for Assessments

Section 6.1 <u>Creation of Association Lien and Personal Obligation to Pay</u> <u>Assessments.</u>

(a) Each Owner is deemed to covenant and agree, by acceptance of a deed to a Lot, whether or not it is so expressed in any such deed or other conveyance, to pay to the

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 20 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Association assessments for Common Expenses pursuant to the Governing Documents.

- (b) Assessments are the personal obligation of the Owner of each Lot at the time when the assessment or other charges became due.
- (c) The assessments are a charge on each Lot and are a continuing lien upon the Lot against which each such assessment is made.
- (d) If any assessment payable in installments, the full amount of the assessment is a lien from the time the first installment becomes due.
- (e) The personal obligation to pay any past due sums does not pass to a successor in title, unless expressly assumed by them.
- (f) No Owner may become exempt from liability for payment of the assessments by waiver of the use or enjoyment of the Common Areas or by abandonment of the Lot against which the assessments are made.
- (g) All assessments are to be payable in the amounts specified in the levy, and no offsets or reduction are permitted by any reason including, without limitation, any claim that the Association or the Executive Board is not properly exercising its duties and powers under this Declaration.
- Section 6.2 <u>Declarant Assessment Exemption</u>. Until the sale of the first Lot from the Declarant to an Owner that is not the Declarant, the Lots shall be exempt from assessments. Subsequent to the first sale of a Lot, Lots owned by the Declarant shall be exempt from assessment unless and until a certificate of occupancy is issued or the Lot is sold to an Owner other than the Declarant. The Declarant is obligated during any period of time assessments are not imposed on any Lot, to fund any operating deficit of the Association. The Declarant is to fund those deficits upon invoice from the Association.
- Section 6.3 <u>Purpose of Common Expense Assessments</u>. In addition to such other purposes as set forth in other parts of this Declaration, Common Expense assessments are to be used for the purposes of promoting the health, safety, and welfare of Owners and Related Users, and in particular:
 - (a) To enforce all provisions of the Governing Documents;
- (b) To exercise all rights and powers and to discharge all duties and obligations pursuant to the Governing Documents;
- (c) To discharge all expenses incurred by the Association in the alteration, enhancement, construction, reconstruction, repair, maintenance or replacement of the Areas of Common Responsibility;
- (d) To discharge all expenses incurred by the Association in the alteration, maintenance, repair and replacement of any property the Association may elect to so alter,

maintain, repair or replace pursuant to the Governing Documents; and

(e) To fund any operating deficit or reserves the Association deems necessary to meet its financial obligations.

Section 6.4 Apportionment of Common Expenses.

- (a) Except as provided below and elsewhere in this Declaration, all Common Expense assessments are to be assessed against all Lots in an amount equal to the then-current annual estimated expenses (including reserves), subject to the maximum amounts in Section 6.6, of the Association multiplied by the Allocated Interest of each such Lot.
- (b) If any assessment for utilities of the Association are based on use (for example, for water and/or sewer), to the extent the Association has private sub-meters for these utilities, those assessments may be based on the sub-metering of the Association.
- (c) Fees, charges, taxes, impositions, late charges, fines, attorneys' fees, collection costs and interest charged by the Association against an Owner are enforceable as Common Expense assessments.
- Section 6.5 <u>Default Assessments</u>. In the event that the need for maintenance, repair, or replacement of the Common Areas, Area of Common Responsibility, or any other portion of the Community, including the Lots, is caused by or in any way results from the negligent or willful act or failure to act, or the misconduct of an Owner or an Owner's Related User, then the expenses, costs, and fees incurred by the Association for such maintenance, repair, or replacement is the personal obligation of such Owner and not a Common Expense. This obligation is referred to as a "Default Assessment".

Section 6.6 <u>Maximum Annual Assessment/Commencement of Common Expense</u> Assessments.

- (a) The Common Expense assessments are to be made on an annual basis against all Lots based upon the Association's advance budget of the cash requirements needed by it to provide for the administration and performance of its duties during such assessment year; provided, however, the Common Expense assessment for each Lot shall not exceed four hundred dollars, exclusive of optional user fees and any insurance premiums, each fiscal year. The four hundred dollar maximum Common Expense assessment may be increased each year on July 1st in accordance with any increase in the United States department of labor bureau of labor statistics final consumer price index for the Denver-Boulder consolidated metropolitan statistical area for the preceding calendar year or as otherwise authorized under the Act.
- (b) Assessments may include any metered utilities (as water and/or sewer utilities may be sub-metered) and r insurance.
- (c) The budget is to be submitted to the Owners, pursuant to this Declaration and the Governing Documents, including the Bylaws.

- (d) A budget proposed by the Executive Board is deemed adopted unless vetoed by the vote of at least 67% of the Lot Owners.
- (e) Assessments are payable in monthly installments, or, as the Executive Board determines.
- (f) Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.2, assessments begin at the first closing on the conveyance of a Lot to an initial Owner.
- (g) The omission or failure of the Executive Board to levy the assessments for any period is not deemed a waiver, modification or a release of the Owners from their obligation to pay.

Section 6.7 Lien Priorities.

- (a) The Assessment lien of the Association is prior to all other liens and encumbrances on a Lot, except: liens and encumbrances recorded before the recordation of this Declaration; a First Mortgage on the Lot except for an assessment lien equal to six months worth of assessments; and liens for real estate taxes and other governmental assessments or charges against the Lot.
- (b) This Section does not affect the priority of mechanics or material-men's' liens.
- (c) The lien of the Association under this Article is not subject to the provisions of any homestead exemption as allowed by state or federal law.
- (d) Sale or transfer of any Lot does not affect the lien for assessments except that the sale or transfer of any Lot pursuant to foreclosure of any First Mortgage or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure, including deed in lieu of foreclosure, or cancellation or forfeiture, only extinguishes the lien of assessment as and if provided by applicable law. No such sale, transfer, foreclosure, or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure, including deed in lieu of foreclosure, nor cancellation or forfeiture relieves any Owner from continuing liability for any assessment charges subsequently becoming due nor from the lien.
- Section 6.8 <u>Effect of Non-Payment of Assessments</u>. Any assessment provided for in this Declaration, or any installment, which is not fully paid within ten days after the due date bears interest at the rate of interest specified in the collection policy as then in effect, as adopted by the Executive Board. The Association may also assess a monthly late charge. Failure to make payment within the 60 days of the due date may cause the total amount of such annual assessment for the remainder of that fiscal year to become immediately due and payable at the option of the Executive Board.

Further, the Association may bring a lawsuit against any Owner obligated to pay overdue assessment(s); and may also proceed to foreclose its lien against such Owner's Lot subject to any restrictions set forth in the Affordable Housing Declaration. A lawsuit by the Association against an

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 23 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Owner to recover a money judgment for unpaid aassessments, or any monthly or other installment, may be commenced and pursued by the Association without foreclosing or in any way waiving the Association's lien. The Association shall be entitled to recover itscosts of suit, expenses and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred simply by virtue of the failure of the Owner to timely pay aassessments when due, including attorneys' fees and costs for consultation and for preparing and recording any lien notice. Foreclosure by the Association of its lien, whether completed or commenced but not completed is not deemed to estop or otherwise preclude the Association from subsequently foreclosing or commencing an action to foreclose its lien for any subsequent Assessments, or monthly or other installments, which are not fully paid when due.

To the extent not prohibited under the Affordable Housing Declaration, the Association has the power and right to bid on or purchase any Lot at foreclosure or other legal sale, and to acquire and hold, lease, mortgage, and cast the votes appurtenant to such Lot, and to convey or otherwise deal with the same. Any grantee of a Lot (excluding the Association) is jointly and severally liable with the grantor for all unpaid Assessments against the Lot which was assessed prior to the conveyance, without prejudice to the grantee's right to recover from the grantor the amounts paid by the grantee. The rights of the Association are expressly subordinate to the rights of any First Mortgagee as set forth in its deed of trust or mortgage (including any assignment of rents), to the extent provided for in this Declaration.

- Section 6.9 <u>No Waiver or Abandonment</u>. No Owner may be exempt from liability for payment of the Common Expenses by waiver of the use or enjoyment of any of the Common Areas or by abandonment of the Lot against which the assessments are made.
- Section 6.10 This Declaration is Notice of Association Lien Rights. Recording of the Declaration constitutes record notice and perfection of the lien for Assessments. No further recordation is required. However, the Executive Board may prepare and record in the real property records of Grand County, Colorado, a written notice setting forth the then amount of unpaid indebtedness, the name of the Owner, and a description of the Lot.
- Section 6.11 Fees at Closing. Owners also are to pay transfer, record change fees and other fees charged by the Association or its managing agent for a closing or refinance.

ARTICLE 7. Restrictions on Use, Alienation and Occupancy

Section 7.1 Use Restrictions.

- (a) Initial use restrictions applicable to the Real Estate are set forth in this Declaration.
- (b) The Executive Board has absolute authority to promulgate Rules and resolutions for restrictions on use, occupancy or alienation which are not contrary to restrictions or other limitations contained within this Declaration or the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- (c) It is expected that Rules will govern the operations of the Community, the Owners and the Association in greater detail than the covenants in this Declaration. A specific provision of a Rule is invalid only to the extent that its strict application would contradict a specific

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 24 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

provision in this Declaration or the Affordable Housing Declaration.

- (d) The Executive Board may establish and enforce penalties for infractions.
- (e) Owners are responsible for fines assessed against their Related Users.
- (f) All monetary penalties enforced pursuant to this Declaration or the Rules are collectible as Default Assessments.
- Section 7.2 <u>Use and Occupancy</u>. Except by the Town, WPHA and Declarant or otherwise provided in the Affordable Housing Declaration, the use and occupancy of the Lots shall be limited as follows:
- (a) Use and occupancy shall be limited exclusively to housing for natural persons who meet the definition of Qualified Buyers or Qualified Residents.
- (b) Owner must occupy the Lot as his or her sole place of residence, except as otherwise provided in the Affordable Housing Declaration. The Lots shall be limited to permanent residences of the respective Lot Owner. A "permanent residence" means the home or place in which one's habitation is fixed and to which one, whenever he or she is absent, has a present intention of returning after a departure or absence there from. In determining what is a permanent residence, the Board may take into account, without limitation: (1) location of business pursuits, employment and income sources; (2) residence for income tax purposes; (3) residence of parents, spouse and children, if any; (4) location of personal and real property; and (5) motor vehicle registration.
- (c) If at any time an Owner also owns any interest alone or in conjunction with others in any other developed residential property located in Grand County, the Owner must immediately list such other property interest for sale and sell his or her interest in such property in accordance with the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- (d) Owners shall not engage in any business activity on or in the Lot, except home occupations as allowed by Town and WPHA regulations. Lots within the Community may be used only for residential purposes and purposes allowed by the local zoning codes and permits and as allowed for under restrictions in this Declaration.
- (e) Lots shall not be sold, transferred or leased except in accordance with this Declaration and the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 7.3 <u>Leasing</u>. The Community is intended to be an owner-occupied community. However, any Owner has the right to lease or allow occupancy of a Lot upon terms and conditions the Owner deems advisable, subject to restrictions of this Declaration, Affordable Housing Declaration, any other restrictions of record, and the following:
 - (a) No leasing of a Lot without the prior written approval of WPHA.
 - (b) All leases shall be in writing and subject to such terms and conditions as

approved by WPHA. A signed copy of the lease and written authorization by WPHA must be provided to the Board prior to occupancy by the tenant.

"Leasing" for the purposes of this Declaration is defined as occupancy of a Lot by any Person other than the Owner, but does not include the Owner sharing occupancy of the Lot with non-Owners provided the Owner continues to meet the definition of a Qualified Resident.

- Section 7.4 Encumbrances and Mortgages on Lots. Lots shall not be encumbered in an amount in excess of the purchase price originally paid by the current Owner of the Lot. A Owner shall not default in payment or other obligations to a mortgagee. Owners must notify WPHA in writing, within five calendar days of receipt of a notice from a mortgagee for past due payments or default in payment or other obligations under the mortgage or as otherwise required under the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 7.5 Owners' Acknowledgment. All Owners and Related Users are given notice that use of each Lot is limited by provisions of each of the Governing Documents, including the Affordable Housing Declaration. All Owners and Related Users acknowledge that the Governing Documents may be amended, expanded and otherwise modified from time to time. Each Owner, by acceptance of a deed, acknowledges and agrees that the use and enjoyment and marketability of their Lot affected by this provision and that all restrictions upon the use and occupancy of a Lot, may change from time to time.
- Section 7.6 <u>Landscaping</u>. Initial landscaping may be installed by Declarant prior to sale of a Lot, but, if not installed by Declarant, then shall be installed by the Owner of the Lot within one year from the date of conveyance. Owners must obtain prior written approval of the Association before installing or changing landscaping improvements.
- Section 7.7 <u>Disclaimers</u>. Declarant has disclosed that the Community is subject to construction of initial Residences. Owners acknowledge that initial construction, dust, construction noise, inconveniences and related issues, as well as the density of the greater community, may occur. These inconveniences include those from construction labor personnel, storage, portapotties, construction debris, parking of construction personnel, and more.
- Section 7.8 Restrictions on Fences and Similar Structures. Fences or similar structures may not be constructed or maintained on a Lot without written approval as required under this Declaration.
- **Section 7.9** Hot Tub Restrictions. Hot tubs or similar facilities may not be constructed or maintained on a Lot.
- Section 7.10 Restriction on Signs, Advertising and Devices. No sign, poster, billboard, advertising device, banners, balloons, streamers or display of any kind may be erected or maintained anywhere within the Community except as provided by express state or federal law, in this Declaration, and any Rules of the Association.

Section 7.11 Pet Covenants and Restrictions.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 26 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

- (a) Owners may keep pets which are common, bona fide household pets, so long as such pets are of the type, number, or combinations allowed by the city or applicable government authority, and by Rules adopted by the Association.
- (b) Pets may not be bred or kept for any commercial purpose or kept in such number or in such manner as to be unreasonable or to create a nuisance to any resident.
- (c) The Association may adopt reasonable Rules designed to minimize damage and disturbance to other Owners and occupants, including Rules requiring waste removal, leash controls noise controls and more.
- (d) Nothing in this section of the Declaration prevents the Association from requiring removal of any animal that presents an actual threat to the health or safety of residents or from requiring abatement of any nuisance or unreasonable source of annoyance, which includes excessive barking or pet noises, in the Executive Board's sole discretion.
- (e) An Owner's right to keep household pets is coupled with the responsibility to pay for any damage caused by such pets, as well as any costs incurred by the Association as a result of such pets, and any such costs and damages is subject to all of the Association's rights with respect to the collection and enforcement of assessments as provided in this Declaration.
- (f) Any Owner or occupant or guest who keeps or maintains any pet in a Residence or within the Community is deemed to have agreed to indemnify and hold the Association, its directors, Officers, and agents free and harmless from any loss, claim or liability of any kind or character whatever arising by reason of keeping or maintaining such pet within a Residence or in the Community.
- Section 7.12 <u>Restriction on Further Subdivision</u>. No Lot upon which a Residence has been constructed may be further subdivided or separated into smaller Lots by any Owner. No portion consisting of less than all of any Lot, or any easement or other interest in this Declaration, may be conveyed or transferred by an Owner, without conveyance of the Lot. This covenant does not prohibit deeds of correction, deeds to resolve boundary line disputes, and similar corrective instruments.

Section 7.13 Vehicular Parking, Garages, Storage, RV's and Repairs.

- (a) Garages are primarily for parking of vehicles that the garage has been designed to include.
- (b) Storage is not permitted in garages (to the extent the parking of the number of vehicles for which the garage is designated would be precluded).
- (c) RV's, boats, trailers, ATV's and similar vehicles may not be parked on the Lot unless parked within the garage with the garage door closed. Provided, however, the Association may adopt a rule regulating parking of these types of vehicles on a temporary basis.
 - (d) The Rules of the Association may further govern the types of vehicles that

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 27 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

may be parked or stored within the Community.

Section 7.14 <u>Prohibitions on Increased Costs, Damage, Nuisance and Noise.</u> Without the prior written consent of the Board, nothing may be done or kept in a Residence, or any part of a Lot, that would be in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance, regulation, permit or other validly imposed requirements of any governmental body, or which would increase the Common Expenses.

Section 7.15 Noxious and Other Activities. Without the prior written consent of the Board, nothing will be done or kept on a Lot or the Community that would be in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance, regulation, permit or other validly imposed requirements of any governmental body, or which would increase the Common Expenses.

Noxious, destructive, offensive or unsanitary activities may not be carried on within the Community. No Owner or Resident may use or allow the use of the Lot or any portion of the Community at any time, in any way, that may endanger persons or property, unreasonably annoy, disturb or cause embarrassment or discomfort to other Owners or Residents, or constitute a nuisance. The intention of this provision is to grant the Association and aggrieved Owners and Residents a right of redress for actions, activities or conduct which unreasonably disturbs or impairs the peaceful and safe enjoyment.

Nothing in this section will be construed to affect the rights of an aggrieved Owner or Related User to proceed individually against a violator for relief from interference with his property or personal rights. The Board may, in its discretion, require aggrieved individuals to seek redress personally for interference with their rights before the Association intervenes and commences enforcement action. No aggrieved Owner or Resident will have a claim against the Association for failure to enforce the provisions of this section if the aggrieved Owner or Related User has not personally pursued all available remedies against the violator for redress provided under Colorado law.

Section 7.16 <u>Easements Protected</u>. No Owner or Related User may do any work which, in the Board's reasonable opinion, would impair any easement or other interest in a Lot, without prior written consent of the Board.

Section 7.17 No Waste. No damage to or waste of a Residence or the Area of Common Responsibility is permitted by any Owner or Related User. Each Owner and Related User indemnifies and holds the Association and the others harmless against all loss to the Association or others resulting from any such damage or waste caused by such Owner or Related Users.

Section 7.18 <u>Use of Common Areas</u>. To the extent there are Common Areas, there shall be no obstructions of the Common Areas allowed. Nor may anything be kept or stored on any part of the Common Areas without the prior written approval of the Board, or others with rights in those areas.

Section 7.19 Failure to Maintain.

If the Board determines that any Owner has failed or refused to discharge properly

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 28 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

their obligation with regard to the maintenance, repair, or replacement of items for which he or she is responsible under this Declaration, then, the Association will give the Owner written notice of the Owner's failure or refusal and of the Association's right to provide necessary work at the Owner's sole cost and expense. The notice will describe with reasonable particularity the work the Association deems necessary.

Unless the Association determines that an emergency exists, the Association will provide a reasonable cure period to the Owner. If the Association determines that: (a) an emergency exists or (b) the Owner has not complied with the Association's demand, the Association may perform the work, then assess the cost of that maintenance, repair, or replacement against the Owner's Lot, which cost will become the Owner's personal obligation, a lien against the Lot, and collected as provided in this Declaration and the Association's collection policy.

- Section 7.20 <u>Rubbish</u>, <u>Trash</u>, <u>and Garbage</u>. All rubbish, trash, and garbage must be regularly removed from each Residence and is not allowed to accumulate in a Residence or on a Lot. No garbage or trash may be placed outside the Residence, temporarily or otherwise, except in trash cans located in any trash enclosure or designated area. Rubbish, trash, and garbage must be disposed of in appropriate sealed bags and either placed in the trash cans or proper receptacles designated by the Executive Board for collection, and only at times to allow for timely collection by a contractor, or must be removed from the Community.
- Section 7.21 <u>No Unsightliness</u>. All unsightly conditions, structures, facilities, equipment, objects and conditions must be enclosed within an approved structure.
- Section 7.22 <u>Antennas and Satellite Dishes</u>. Satellite dishes, antennae or other devices for the transmission or reception of television signals, radio signals or any form of electromagnetic wave or radiation will not be erected, used or maintained by Owners or Related Users except as allowed by federal law. However, the Association has the right to erect, construct and maintain these devices on the Common Areas.
- Section 7.23 <u>Solar Panels or Similar Installations</u>. Solar panels or similar installations may be made with written approval of the Board of Directors or Committee (if established) as elsewhere provided in this Declaration and as allowed by local government.
- Section 7.24 <u>Reasonable Rights to Develop</u>. No Rule by the Association or Board may unreasonably impede the Declarant's right to develop in accordance with the Plat, Town and this Declaration.
- Section 7.25 Individual Owner Rights of Enforcement. Nothing in this Declaration may be construed to affect the rights of an aggrieved Owner to proceed individually against a violator of this Declaration for relief from interference with their property or personal rights. The Executive Board may, in its discretion, require aggrieved individuals to seek redress personally for interference with their personal property rights before the Association intervenes and commences enforcement action. No claim for any loss, damage or otherwise exists by an aggrieved Owner or occupant against the Association for failure to enforce the provisions of this Declaration if the aggrieved Owner or occupant has not personally pursued all available remedies against the violator for redress provided under Colorado law and complied with dispute resolution procedures

of the Association.

Section 7.26 <u>Declarant's Exemption and Uses</u>. It is expressly permissible for the Declarant, its assigns, employees and agents, to perform such construction activities, and to maintain upon portions of the Community such facilities as deemed incidental by Declarant to the construction and sale of Lots and the development of the Community. This includes exemption from the covenants and restrictions in this Article and also, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the maintenance of temporary business offices, construction trailers or offices, storage areas, trash bins, portable toilets, construction yards and equipment, any and all signs of any kind, flags, banners, model Residences, temporary sales offices, parking areas, lighting facilities and similar or dissimilar uses.

Section 7.27 <u>Maximum Sales Price and Other Restrictions on Transfer.</u> Maximum sales prices and other restrictions and procedures regarding the sale or transfer of Lots are subject to and governed by the Affordable Housing Declaration, as may be amended.

ARTICLE 8. Architectural Approval

Section 8.1 <u>Approval of Improvements Required; Restrictions and Requirements.</u>
The Architectural Review Committee ("Committee") shall consists of three or more persons appointed by the Board of Directors or by the Declarant during the Period of Declarant Control. Except for Declarant appointed committee members, the Board of Directors may determine terms of office, fill vacancies, and may remove committee members, with or without cause. If committee members are not appointed, the Board will serve as the ARC.

Section 8.2 Submissions of Plans.

- (a) Prior to commencement of work to accomplish any proposed Improvement to property, the person proposing to make that Improvement ("Applicant") shall submit to the Board or Committee all documentation required under this Declaration and under any adopted Design Guidelines. Provided, however, if the request is for an Eligible Capital Improvement as defined in Affordable Housing Declaration, WPHA approval shall also be required.
- (b) The Board or Committee may require submission of additional plans, specifications, or other information prior to approving or disapproving the proposed Improvement.
- (c) Until receipt of all required materials in connection with the proposed Improvement, the Board or Committee may postpone review of any materials submitted for approval. If the Board or Committee requires submission of additional plans, specifications, or other information, the Board or Committee is to provide written notice to the Applicant.

Section 8.3 <u>Criteria for Approval.</u>

(a) The Board or Committee shall exercise its reasonable judgment to determine whether the proposed improvements, construction, alterations or landscaping conform to and harmonize with the existing surroundings, residences, landscaping and structures.

- (b) Actions taken by the Board or Committee on matters coming before it are to be in good faith and not arbitrary or capricious.
 - (c) The standards for approval include, but not be limited to:
- (i) conformity and harmony of exterior appearances of structures with neighboring structures, including design compatibility and scale;
 - (ii) color and materials to be used;
 - (iii) effective location and impact on nearby Lots:
 - (iv) relation to the Community;
- (v) preservation of aesthetic beauty and conformity with the specifications and purposes generally set out in this Declaration and in the Design Guidelines; and
 - (vi) any other matter deemed to be aesthetically relevant or appropriate.
- Section 8.4 <u>Design Guidelines</u>. The Board or Committee may, from time to time, issue, revise, and reissue guidelines (the "Design Guidelines") to be applicable to all subsequent Improvements.
- Section 8.5 <u>Design Standards and Procedures</u>. The Board or Committee may, from time to time, issue, revise, and reissue standards or rules ("Design Standards") relating to the procedures, materials to be submitted, and fees in connection with the approval of any proposed Improvement to Property.
- Section 8.6 <u>Design Review Fee</u>. The Board or Committee may, in the Design Standards, provide for the payment or deposit of a fee to accompany each request for approval of any proposed Improvement.
- Section 8.7 <u>Decision of Committee</u>. No Improvements may be made without the Board or Committee's approval. Approval is not given by lapse of any time frame. Approval is only given by affirmative action of the Board or Committee.
- Section 8.8 <u>Prosecution of Work After Approval</u>. After approval of any proposed Improvement, the proposed Improvement shall be accomplished promptly and diligently and in complete conformity with the description of the proposed Improvement and any other materials submitted to the Board or Committee in connection with the proposed Improvement and with any conditions imposed by the Board or Committee. Approved modification or construction must be completed within 4 months after the date of commencement, unless a longer period is approved by the Board or Committee. If an approved modification or construction is not commenced within one year of approval, the approval granted shall automatically lapse.
- **Section 8.9** <u>Inspection of Work</u>. The Board or Committee or its duly authorized representative has the right to inspect any Improvement prior to or after completion.

Section 8.10 Notice of Noncompliance. If, as a result of inspections or otherwise, the Board or Committee determines that work has been done without obtaining approval of the Board or Committee, or was not performed in accordance with the terms of the approved application, or was not completed within the required time frame, the Board or Committee may notify the Owner in writing of the noncompliance specifying the particulars of the noncompliance.

Section 8.11 Correction of Noncompliance.

- (a) The Owner or Applicant must remedy the noncompliance within 30 days after notification by the Board or Committee; provided, however, if a timely appeal to the Board was submitted by the Applicant, the noncompliance may be remedied within 45 days after denial of the appeal.
- (b) If the Owner fails to cure the noncompliance within that period, the Board or the Board or Committee may, at its option, record a Notice of Noncompliance against the Lot(s) on which the noncompliance exists, may enter upon that Lot(s) and remove the non-complying Improvement, and/or may otherwise remedy the noncompliance and the Applicant shall reimburse the Association, upon demand, for all expenses incurred. If those expenses are not promptly repaid by the Applicant or Owner to the Association, the Board may levy an Individual Assessment against the Owner of the Lot for those costs and expenses. The right of the Association or the Board or Committee to remedy or remove any noncompliance shall be in addition to all other rights and remedies which the Association and the Board or Committee may have at law, in equity, or under this Declaration. The Applicant and Owner of the Lot has no claim for damages or otherwise on account of the entry upon the property and removal of the non-complying Improvement to Property.
- Section 8.12 No Implied Waiver or Estoppel. No action or failure to act by the Board or Committee or by the Board of Directors shall constitute a waiver or estoppel with respect to future action by the Board or Committee or the Board of Directors with respect to any Improvement. Specifically, the approval of the Board or Committee of any Improvement shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or an estoppel to withhold approval or consent for any similar Improvement or any similar proposals, plans, specifications, or other materials submitted with respect to any other Improvement.
- Section 8.13 Committee Power to Grant Variances. The Board or Committee may authorize variances from compliance with any of the provisions of the requirements in this Article or the Design Guidelines, including restrictions upon height, size, floor area, or placement of structures or similar restrictions, when circumstances like topography, natural obstructions, hardship, or aesthetic or environmental conditions may require or allow. A variance by the Board or Committee does not remove any Owner's obligation to obtain approval from WPHA pursuant to the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 8.14 Meetings of Committee. The Board or Committee may meet from time to time as necessary to perform its duties. The Board or Committee may from time to time, by resolution in writing adopted by a majority of the members, designate a Committee Representative (who may but need not be one of its members) to take any action or perform any duties for or on behalf of the Board or Committee, except the granting of approval of any Improvement to Property,

determination of non-compliance, and granting of variances. The authorized action taken by the committee representative represented within that representatives authority constitutes action of the Board or Committee.

Section 8.15 <u>Non-Liability of Committee Action</u>. No liability may be imposed on the Board or Committee, any member of the Board or Committee, any Committee Representative, the Association, or any member of the Board of Directors, for any loss, damage, or injury arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of the duties of the Board or Committee unless due to the willful misconduct of the party held liable. Owners requesting the Improvement are responsible for any safety concerns, structural or otherwise, that the Improvement may raise. Owners are also responsible for verifying the Improvement meets any and all building codes or other governmental laws or regulations. Members of the Board or Committee shall be indemnified by the Association to the same extent as the Board of Directors of the Association, as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Association.

ARTICLE 9. Insurance

- Section 9.1 Insurance on the Lots. Each Owner will obtain property and liability insurance covering loss, damage or destruction by fire or other casualty to the Improvements, installed or made to their Lot, the other property of that Owner, and any injuries occurring to the persons while on a Lot. Property insurance shall be for replacement cost of market-value as set annually by WPHA. The Association will not be liable for the failure of any Owner to maintain insurance.
- Section 9.2 <u>Association's Insurance</u>. The Association will obtain and maintain at all times, as a Common Expense, property insurance on the Common Areas, if any, and may obtain such further insurance on any Area of Common Responsibility. The Association will obtain and maintain in full force and effect, to the extent reasonably available and at all times, the following insurance coverage:
- (a) <u>Association Comprehensive/General Liability Insurance</u>. The Association may obtain comprehensive/general liability insurance for the Common Areas, if any, and any other property the Association maintains, in amounts the Board determines from time to time. Coverage may include, without limitation, liability for personal injuries and operation of automobiles on behalf of the Association.
- (b) Association Fidelity Insurance. The Association may obtain fidelity coverage to protect against dishonest acts on the parts of its officers, directors, trustees and employees and on the part of all others who handle or are responsible for handling the funds of the Association, including persons who serve the Association with or without compensation. The fidelity coverage should be in an amount sufficient to cover the maximum funds that will be in the control of the Association, its officers, directors, trustees and employees and others who are responsible for handling the funds of the Association. The fidelity coverage should be in at least an amount equal to the aggregate of two months' assessments plus reserves, based on the current budget, to the extent reasonably available.

- (c) <u>Directors' and Officers' Personal Liability Insurance.</u> The Association may obtain directors' and officers' personal liability insurance to protect the officers, directors, Committee members and any other individuals acting at the Board's direction from personal liability in relation to their duties and responsibilities in acting on the Association's behalf.
- (d) Other Insurance. The Association may obtain other insurance against other risks of similar or dissimilar nature as it deems appropriate with respect to its responsibilities and duties.
- Section 9.3 <u>Miscellaneous Terms Governing Insurance Carried by the Association</u>. To the extent reasonably available, the Association will include in its insurance policies the following terms or provisions.
- (a) All insurance policies will provide that each Owner is an insured under the policy with respect to liability arising out of the Owner's membership in the Association.
- (b) All insurance policies will contain waivers of subrogation against any Owner or member of the Owner's household.
- (c) All insurance policies will contain waivers of subrogation and waivers of any defense based on invalidity arising from any acts of an Owner and will provide that policies may not be canceled or modified without at least 30 days prior written notice to all of the Owners, holders of first lien security interests and the Association, except in instances of nonpayment of premiums, which will require at least ten days' prior written notice.
- (d) If requested, duplicate originals of all policies and renewals, together with proof of payments of premiums, will be delivered to all holders of first lien security interests at least ten days prior to the expiration of the policies.
- (e) All liability insurance will cover the Association, the directors and officers, the manager or managing agent, if any, holders of first lien security interests, their successors and assigns, and Owners, with respect to Owner's liability arising out of Association membership.
- (f) All Association insurance policies will be primary, if there is other insurance in an Owner's name covering the same risk.
- **Section 9.4** <u>Insurance Premium</u>. Insurance premiums will be a Common Expense included as a part of the Association's annual assessments and are not subject to the statutory maximum for assessments.
- Section 9.5 <u>Insurance Review</u>. The Board may review the insurance carried by the Association periodically, to determine the amount of insurance required and the service capabilities of the current carrier.
- Section 9.6 Claims and Adjustments by the Association. Any loss covered by an Association insurance policy will be adjusted by the Association. The insurance proceeds for a loss will be payable to the Association and not to any holder of a first lien security interest. The

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 34 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Association will hold any insurance proceeds for the repair or restoration of the damaged property. The Association is not entitled to use insurance proceeds for other purposes unless there is a surplus after the damaged property has been completely repaired or restored.

- Section 9.7 <u>Duty to Repair</u>. The Association must repair or replace promptly any portion of the Community for which it has a duty to maintain that is damaged or destroyed, unless Owners entitled to cast 67% of the total Association vote agree not to rebuild or as otherwise stated in the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 9.8 Condemnation and Property Insurance Allocations and Distributions. In the event condemnation proceeds or property insurance proceeds are distributed to the Owners, the distribution will be as the parties with interests and rights are determined or allocated by record and in accordance with the Affordable Housing Declaration..
- Section 9.9 Responsibility for Payment of Deductible Amount. Whether the Board, in its discretion, submits a claim under the Association's insurance policies or not, the Association will pay or absorb the deductible amount for any work, repairs or reconstruction for damage to property that is the Association's maintenance responsibility unless the damage is caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of an Owner, the Owner's family, guests, or invitees, in which case the Association will seek reimbursement of the deductible amount as a default assessment in compliance with and under the terms of the Declaration.
- Section 9.10 <u>Damage to or Destruction of Residences on Lots</u>. In the event of damage to or destruction of structures on a Lot, the Owner will promptly repair or reconstruct the damaged structure in a manner consistent with the original construction or plans approved in accordance with this Declaration and the Affordable Housing DeclarationIf the structure is substantially destroyed and the Owner determines not to rebuild or reconstruct pursuant to the Affordable Housing Declaration, the Owner will promptly clear the Lot of all debris and continue to maintain the Lot in a neat and attractive condition consistent with this Declaration.

ARTICLE 10. Alternative Dispute Resolution – Excluded Claims

- Section 10.1 <u>Purpose/Scope of Alternative Dispute Resolution</u>. One of the purposes of this Declaration is to establish a harmonious Community including the prompt, efficient, fair and non-belligerent resolution of any construction or design dispute. Accordingly, any construction, design controversy or other claim against the Declarant or its affiliates or agents or employees of its affiliates (an Excluded Claim) arising out of or relating to the Residences, Common Areas or related to the Community must be resolved as set forth in this Article.
- Section 10.2 <u>Direct Communication</u>. The parties to the disagreement over an Excluded Claim must set forth their respective positions in any dispute in correspondence. Each party must respond within 21 days after receipt of a letter from the other until agreement is reached. If an agreement is not reached, the next section of this Declaration applies.
- Section 10.3 <u>Mediation</u>. If an Excluded Claim cannot be resolved through direct communication of the parties, either party may request appointment of a neutral and properly credentialed mediator. The parties must participate in the mediation in good faith until the dispute

is resolved for a period not to exceed 90 days with the consent of all parties. The cost of the mediation must be divided equally among the parties. If a mediation does not resolve the Excluded Claim, the next sections of this Declaration apply.

Section 10.4 Pre-Conditions to Arbitrations by the Association or Any Owner.

- (a) The conditions and provisions of any city ordinance limiting or setting forth procedures for claims against either Declarant must first be completed with of the Association of Owner and must continue to be complied with the Association or Owner.
- (b) The Association or any Owner may proceed with communication and mediation, as allowed for under this Article, without a vote of Owners holding at least 90% of the votes as long as the Association or any Owner is in compliance with the provisions of this Declaration.
- (c) On an Excluded Claim, the Association, if the Association complies with the terms of this Article, has the power to commence and maintain an arbitration, as may be deemed appropriate by the Executive Board only if approved by Owners holding at least 90% of the votes in the Association.
- (i) In making its recommendation to the Owners to bring an arbitration on an Excluded Claim, the Executive Board is to exercise its reasonable judgment. The Executive Board must consider, without limitation, the likelihood of success, the impact such action may have upon the market values of Lots or other portions of the Community, the cost of pursuing the arbitration including attorneys' fees and expert fees, the resources of the Association and whether a special assessment or depletion of reserves will be required in connection with pursuit of those claims or as a result after those claims have been pursued.
- (ii) The Executive Board must prepare a written analysis of the risks and benefits to the Owners of commencing and maintaining an arbitration on an Excluded Claim.
- (iii) The Executive Board must deliver a copy of that written analysis to each of the Owners at least 7 days prior to the date scheduled for the meeting of Owners or prior to any vote on proceeding with arbitration on an Excluded Claim.
- (iv) The Association may not bring an arbitration or any other legal action on an Excluded Claim even with amendment of this Declaration, without compliance with the terms of this Article (un-amended).
- (v) The Association may not commence or maintain an arbitration on any Excluded Claim unless the commencement and maintenance has first been recommended by the Executive Board and, is also approved by Owners holding at least 90% of the votes in the Association.

Section 10.5 <u>Arbitration Process and Procedures</u>.

- (a) If the Excluded Claim cannot be resolved through mediation, such dispute must be decided by mandatory and binding arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA") currently in effect.
- (b) If the mandatory and binding arbitration of this Declaration is determined to be unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, then, in those events, all Excluded Claims must still be decided by mandatory and binding arbitration in accordance with the rules of the AAA currently in effect.
 - (c) The following procedures apply to arbitration:
- (i) Demand for arbitration must be filed in writing with the other party and with the AAA.
- (ii) A demand for arbitration must be made within 30 days after the dispute in question has arisen and failed to be resolved by mediation.
- (iii) In no event may the demand for arbitration be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.
- (iv) No arbitration arising out of or relating to this Declaration may include, by consolidation, joinder or any other manner, an additional person or entity not subject to the Declaration, except that the Declarant, at its sole election and in its sole discretion, may by consolidation, joinder or any other manner, include contractors, subcontractors or other parties involved in the construction and/or planning of the Community.
- (v) The arbitrator to hear the Excluded Claim may be jointly selected by the parties. If the parties cannot agree within 30 days, the parties shall select the arbitrator they desire. Then, those arbitrators shall, amongst them, select the arbitrator to hear the Excluded Claim.
 - (d) The provision of this Article to arbitrate, or the Declarant's election to arbitrate, or the Declarant's determination to include any additional person or entity not subject to this Declaration in an arbitration are specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law with any court having jurisdiction.
 - (e) The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators is final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction.
 - (f) All filing fees and AAA costs associated with the arbitration itself must be paid for by the party who files the notice of arbitration.
- Section 10.6 Sole Remedy: Waiver of Judicial Rights. Subject to the Declarant's election rights set forth in this Declaration, and the remedies available for Excluded Claims, the Declarant, the Association, and each Owner expressly consent to the substance and procedures established in this Article as their sole and exclusive remedy. Each of these parties also expressly

waive any right they may have to seek resolution of any Excluded Claim contemplated by this Article in any court. Each of these parties also waive any right to trial by a jury. If a dispute involves the Declarant, an Owner or the Association, no person may file a memorandum of *lis pendens* or similar instrument that would encumber or create a lien upon Lots or the land owned by the Declarant, an Owner or the Association.

Section 10.7 <u>Binding Nature: Applicable Law.</u> The consideration of the parties to be bound by the provisions of this Article of this Declaration is not only the waiver of access to determination by a court (as applicable) and by a jury, but also the waiver of any rights to appeal the arbitration finding other than for the reasons available under Colorado law. A judgment upon an award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction.

Section 10.8 Location. All alternative dispute resolution proceedings under this Article must be held in Grand County in the State of Colorado, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties.

Section 10.9 Payment of Expenses under This Article. Beyond filing fees and AAA costs associated with the arbitration (those costs being the obligation of the party who files the notice of arbitration) and except as otherwise provided in this Declaration, each party is responsible for their own costs, expenses, experts and attorney fees in the mediation and arbitration.

Section 10.10 <u>Amendment of This Article</u>. The provisions of this Article may only be amended with the consent of the Declarant until December 31, 2045. This reservation is a reserved Development Right of the Declarant under this Declaration.

ARTICLE 11. Amendment And Termination

Section 11.1 <u>Amendment of Declaration by Owners</u>. Subject to provisions elsewhere contained in this Declaration and/or Affordable Housing Declaration requiring the consent of others, any provision, covenant, condition, restriction or equitable servitude contained in this Declaration may be changed or repealed, and any such provision added to this Declaration at any time and from time to time upon approval of the Executive Board and at least 67% of the votes in the Association.

Section 11.2 <u>Technical</u>, <u>Clerical</u>, <u>Typographical or Clarification Amendment</u>. If the Declarant determines that any amendments to this Declaration or to the Plat are necessary in order to make non-material changes, such as for the correction of a technical, clerical or typographical error or clarification of a statement, then, subject to the following sentence of this Section, the Declarant has the right and power to make and execute any such amendment without obtaining the approval of any Owners. Each such amendment of this Declaration must be made, if at all, by the Declarant prior to December 31, 2045.

Section 11.3 Amendment Required by Mortgage Agencies. Prior to December 31, 2045, any provision, covenant, condition, restriction or equitable servitude contained in this Declaration which the FHA, VA, FHLMC, GNMA, FNMA or any similar entity authorized to insure, guarantee, make or purchase Mortgage loans requires to be amended or repealed may be

amended or repealed by the Declarant. After that date, those types of amendments maybe made by the Board of Directors or the Association. Any such amendment or repeal will be effective upon the recordation in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Grand County, State of Colorado, of a certificate, setting forth the amendment or repeal in full.

Section 11.4 Recording of Amendments. To be effective, all amendments to or termination of this Declaration must be recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Grand County, Colorado, and must contain evidence or a recital of approval. One method of satisfying the requirements of this Section is the recordation of a certificate of the Secretary of the Association, certifying that Owners representing the requisite percentage of the Lots have given their notarized written consent to the amendment. The Secretary must further certify that originals of such written consent by Owners along with the recorded amendment are in the corporate records of the Association and available for inspection. No action to challenge the validity of an amendment adopted by the Association pursuant to this Article may be brought more than 1 year after the amendment is recorded.

Section 11.5 Approval Required for Certain Amendments.

- (a) <u>Allocated Interests</u>. No amendment may change the formulas for determining Allocated Interests as set forth in this Declaration in the absence of the approval of the Owners holding at least 90% of the votes in the Association.
- (b) <u>Affordable Housing Restrictive Covenants</u>. No amendment to this Declaration may change or contradict the Affordable Housing Declaration or any restrictive covenants contained therein. The Affordable Housing Declaration and covenants may only be amended pursuant to the terms of the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- (c) <u>Declarant Reserved Rights</u>. Any proposed amendment or repeal of any provision of this Declaration reserving rights of the Declarant, or for the benefit of the Declarant, or its assignees, is not effective unless the Declarant, and its assignees, if any, have given written consent to such amendment or repeal. That consent may be evidenced by the execution by the Declarant or its assignees of any certificate of amendment or repeal The foregoing requirement for consent to any amendment or repeal terminates on December 31, 2045.

Rights of Declarant, as provided for in this Section, are not to be construed as development rights or special declarant rights but as rights based on common law.

Section 11.6 <u>Association Certification</u>. Amendments to the Declaration required by this Article to be recorded by the Association are to be prepared, executed, recorded, and certified on behalf of the Association by any officer of the Association designated for that purpose or, in the absence of designation, by the president of the Association. In the event of an amendment to the Declaration by the Owners, the Association may record the amendment with a certificate from the Association executed by any officer designated for that purpose, or, in the absence of the designation, by the president, which the requisite number of Owners, have consented to the amendment.

Section 11.7 Expenses. All expenses associated with preparing and recording an amendment to the Declaration are the sole responsibility of the Association as a Common Expense or by the applicable Owner.

Section 11.8 <u>Termination</u>. The Community may be terminated upon an affirmative vote of the Owners holding 90% of the Allocated Interests and consent of the Declarant, WPHA and Town.

ARTICLE 12. General Provisions

Section 12.1 <u>Enforcement</u>. The Association or an Owner or Owners of any of the Lots may enforce the this Declaration by proceedings at law or in equity against any person or persons, either to recover damages for such violation, including reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in enforcing the covenants or restrictions, or to restrain such violation or attempted violation. Failure of the Association or of any Owner to enforce any covenant or restriction in this Declaration is not and shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so subsequently. Disputes which do not involve payment of sums and charges due to the Association, upon approval of both the Owner(s) and the Executive Board, may be submitted to binding arbitration. Without limiting the foregoing, the Association may enforce all applicable provisions of the Governing Documents and may impose sanctions for their violation, which includes, without limitation:

- (a) imposing reasonable monetary fines, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, which will be a lien upon the violator's Lot;
 - (b) suspending voting rights;
- (c) suspending any services provided by the Association to an Owner or the Owner's Lot if the Owner is more than 30 days delinquent in paying any assessment or other charge owed to the Association;
- (d) exercising self-help or action to abate any violation of the Governing Documents in a non-emergency situation, subject to any requirements set forth in this Declaration, including those related to maintenance, repair or replacement, provided that the Association does not have the authority to enter the Residence;
- (e) requiring an Owner, at the Owner's expense, to cease any construction of any modification that has not been approved, or to remove any structure or improvement in the Lot or the Common Areas in violation of the Governing Documents and to restore the Lot or Common Areas to its previous condition and, upon the Owner's failure to do so, the Association has the right to enter the Lot or Common Areas, remove the violation and restore the Lot or Common Areas to substantially the same condition as previously existed and any action is not deemed a trespass;
- (f) recording in the real property records a notice of violation identifying any uncured violation of the Governing Documents; and
 - (g) other remedies provided for in this Declaration or by applicable law.

- Security. The Association may, but will not be required to, from time to time, provide measures or take actions which directly or indirectly improve security in the Community; however, each Owner, for himself or herself and his or her family members, tenants, guests, licensees, and invitees, acknowledges and agrees that the Association is not a provider of security and the Association will not have a duty to provide security in the Community. Furthermore, the Association does not guaranty that non-residents will not gain access to the Community and commit criminal acts in the Community nor does the Association guarantee that criminal acts in the Community will not be committed by other Owners or Residents. It will be each Owner's and Resident's responsibility to protect his or her person and property and all responsibility to provide such security will lie solely with each Owner. The Association will not be held liable for any loss or damage by reason of failure to provide adequate security or ineffectiveness of measures undertaken
- Section 12.3 <u>Right to Pay Taxes and Insurance Premiums</u>. Any institutional First Mortgagee or other holder of a First Mortgage is entitled to pay any taxes or other charges which are in default and which may or have become a lien against a Lot.
- Section 12.4 Severability. Each of the provisions of this Declaration is deemed independent and severable. If any provision of this Declaration or the application of this Declaration to any person or circumstances is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of this Declaration which can be given effect without the invalid provisions or applications.
- **Section 12.5** <u>Term of Declaration</u>. The provisions of this Declaration (and all covenants) run with and bind the Real Estate in perpetuity, unless amended or terminated as allowed for in this Declaration.
- Section 12.6 <u>Interpretation</u>. The provisions of this Declaration are to be liberally construed to effectuate their purposes of creating a uniform plan for the development of the Lots and of promoting and effectuating the fundamental concepts as set forth in the recitals of this Declaration. This Declaration is to be construed and governed under the laws of the State of Colorado.
- Section 12.7 <u>Singular Includes the Plural</u>. Unless the context otherwise requires, the singular includes the plural, and the plural includes the singular, and each gender referral is deemed to include the masculine, feminine and neuter.
- Section 12.8 <u>Captions</u>. All captions and titles used in this Declaration are intended and use solely for convenience of reference and ease of use of this Declaration. Captions and titles used in this Declaration do not enlarge, limit or otherwise affect that which is set forth in any paragraph, section or article of this Declaration.

ARTICLE 13. Development Rights of Declarant

Section 13.1 <u>Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights</u>. The Declarant reserves, through December 31, 2045 after the recording of this Declaration, the following Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights:

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 41 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

- (a) the right to withdrawal all of any part of the real property described in *Exhibit* A; provided no part of the Lot or Residence constructed have been conveyed by Declarant to an Owner. Otherwise, all Lots are subject to Declarant's withdrawal rights;
- (b) the right to annex any withdrawn real estate or real estate adjacent to the Community, in the vicinity of the Community or across a public or private street from the Community or within the Town in which the Real Estate is located (provided the Owner consents). See also Exhibit E.
 - (c) the right to re-designate, change, modify or amend any improvement or Lot;
- (d) the right to change the allocated interests initially set forth in *Exhibit C* if Lots are withdrawn or added;
- (e) the right to subject the Real Estate and the Community to a master declaration or to merge the Community with another adjacent community with such terms, conditions, reservations and restrictions as Declarant determines;
- (f) the right to relocate boundaries between adjoining Lots owned by the Declarant, enlarge Lots, reduce or enlarge the areas that may become Common Areas (as those areas are set forth in *Exhibits A, D, E, and F*, reduce the size of Lots, subdivide Lots owned by Declarant or complete or make improvements, as the same may be indicated on Plats filed of record:
- (g) the right to modify or alter the fences and the location of the fenced areas, if any;
- (h) the right to add property adjacent to the Real Estate, with the consent of that Owner of that Real Estate and additional unspecified Real Estate according to the provisions of this Declaration subject to the limitations set forth in this Declaration;
- (i) the right to exercise any additional reserved right created by any other provision of this Declaration;
- (j) the right to amend the use restrictions included in this Declaration, together with the right to add new use restrictions;
- (k) the right to amend the Declaration in connection with the exercise of any Development Right;
- (I) the right to make amendments to this Declaration or the other Governing Documents to meet or comply with any requirements of any lender to an Owner, WPHA or the Town;
- (m) the right to amend the Plats in connection with the exercise of any Development Right;

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 42 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

- (n) the right to make amendments to the Declaration, Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation to meet or comply with any requirement of FHA or VA; and
- (o) the right to use and to permit others to use, easements through the areas that may become Common Areas (as set forth in *Exhibits D and E*) and also the Common Areas, once and if deeded to the Association, as may be reasonably necessary;

The rights reserved to Declarant, for itself, its successors and assigns, shall expire as set forth above, unless (i) reinstated or extended by the Association, subject to whatever terms, conditions, and limitations the Board may impose on the subsequent exercise of the expansion rights by Declarant, (ii) extended as allowed by law, or (iii) terminated by written instrument executed by the Declarant, recorded in the real property records of Grand County. The development rights may be exercised with respect to different parcels at different times, in no particular order. If the Declarant exercises a development right in any portion of the Real Estate subject to such development right, the Declarant shall not be obligated to exercise the development right over the remainder of that Real Estate.

- Section 13.2 <u>Additional Reserved Rights</u>. In addition to the rights set forth above, Declarant also reserves the following additional rights:
- (a) <u>Sales and Offices</u>. The right to maintain mobile and other sales offices, parking lots, management offices and models on Lots of the Declarant.
- (b) <u>Signs</u>. The right to maintain signs and advertising at the Community and to advertise the Community or other communities developed or managed by or affiliated with Declarant.
- (c) <u>Construction Easement.</u> Declarant and its assignees expressly reserve to itself the right to perform warranty work, and repairs and construction work, and to store materials in secure areas, in Lots and in Common Areas, and the future right to control such work and repairs and the right of access thereto, until completion. All work may be performed without the consent or approval of any Owner or holder of a security interest. Declarant and its assignees have such an easement through the Common Areas as may be reasonably necessary for exercising reserved rights in this Declaration. Such easement includes the right to construct underground utility lines, pipes, wires, ducts, conduits, and other facilities across the Real Estate.
- (d) <u>Use Agreements</u>. The rights to enter into, establish, execute, amend, and otherwise deal with contracts and agreements for the use, lease, repair, maintenance and regulation of parking and/or recreational facilities and/or Common Areas, which may or may not be a part of the Community.
- (e) <u>Access Easement</u>. Declarant and its successors and assigns shall have an access easement to and from any real property accessible through the Community.
- (f) Other Rights. The right to exercise any additional reserved right created by any other provision of this Declaration.

The additional reserved rights shall expire or terminate in the same manner as the Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights set forth in Section 13.1.

Section 13.3 Rights Transferrable/Rights Transferred. Any rights, or portion thereof, created or reserved under this Article for the benefit of Declarant may be transferred to any person, including, but not limited to a third party builder or developer, by an instrument describing the rights transferred recorded in the real property records of the Grand County. Such instrument shall be executed by the transferor Declarant and the transferee without the consent of the Association, any Owners or any holders of a security interest in a Lot. Any rights created or reserved under this Article for the benefit of Declarant may also be transferred to the Association by an instrument describing the rights transferred recorded in the real property records of the Grand County. Such instrument shall be executed by the transferor Declarant and the Association as transferee with the consent of the Owner(s) or any holders of a security interests in the Lots.

Section 13.4 No Further Authorizations Needed. Except as set forth in this Declaration, the consent of Owners or holders of security interests shall not be required for exercise of any reserved rights, and Declarant or its assignees may proceed without limitation at its sole option. Declarant or its assignees may exercise any reserved rights on all or any portion of the property in whatever order determined. Declarant or its assignees shall not be obligated to exercise any reserved rights or to expand the Community beyond the number of Lots initially submitted.

Section 13.5 Interpretation. Recording of amendments to the Declaration and the plat or plats pursuant to reserved rights in this Declaration shall automatically effectuate the terms and provisions of that amendment. Further, such amendment shall automatically: (a) vest in each existing Owner the reallocated Allocated Interests appurtenant to their Lot; and (b) vest in each existing security interest a perfected security interest in the reallocated Allocated Interests appurtenant to the encumbered Lot. Further, upon the recording of an amendment to the Declaration, the definitions used in this Declaration shall automatically be extended to encompass and to refer to the Community as expanded and to any additional Improvements, and the same shall be added to and become a part of the Community for all purposes. All conveyances of Lots after such amendment is recorded shall be effective to transfer rights in all Common Areas, whether or not reference is made to any Amendment of the Declaration or Plat. Reference to the Declaration and Plat in any instrument shall be deemed to include all Amendments to the Declaration, and the Plat without specific reference thereto.

Section 13.6 Construction. Subsequent to the initial Real Estate and improvements made subject to this Declaration, any additional buildings, structures and types of improvements to be placed on the Real Estate or any part may be of such quality and type as the persons developing the same may determine, and those improvements need not be of the same quality or type as the Improvements previously constructed on the Real Estate, nor of the same size, style or configuration. The improvements may be located anywhere in the Common Areas of the Community, the same being reserved for future development, or on the additional Real Estate as may be added or as shown on the Plat.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 44 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Declarant: Winter Park Housing Authority, a Colorado housing authority
By: Detate 5
Its: Chair Nick Kuteumbus
STATE OF Color add) ss. CITY AND COUNTY OF Grand)
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 4 day of <u>March</u> . 20 24 by <u>Nick Kotrombos</u> , as <u>Chair</u> of Winter Park Housing Authority, a Colorado housing authority.
Witness my hand and official seal. My commission expires:
Notary Public
DANIELLE S. JARDEE NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF COLORADO NOTARY ID 20174029408
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JULY 14, 2025

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 45 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Exhibit A - Description of the Real Estate

Lots 1-20, inclusive Hideaway Junction Subdivision Filing No. 2 Town of Winter Park, County of Grand, State of Colorado

As shown on Final Plat recorded September 26, 2022 at Reception No. 2022008233

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 46 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Exhibit B - Exceptions to Title

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 47 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Exhibit C - Allocated Interests

Lot Number	Common Expense Liability	Votes
1	1/20 or 5%	1
2	1/20 or 5%	1
3	1/20 or 5%	
4	1/20 or 5%	+
5	1/20 or 5%	1
6	1/20 or 5%	1
7	1/20 or 5%	1
8	1/20 or 5%	
9	1/20 or 5%	-
10	1/20 or 5%	1
11	1/20 or 5%	1
12	1/20 or 5%	1
13	1/20 or 5%	1
14	1/20 or 5%	1
15	1/20 or 5%	1
16	1/20 or 5%	1
17	1/20 or 5%	1
18	1/20 or 5%	1
19	1/20 or 5%	1
20	1/20 or 5%	1
Total	100%	20

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 48 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Exhibit D - Common Areas

None.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 49 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Exhibit E - Additional or Annexable Property

Any real estate adjacent to the Community, in the vicinity of the Community or across a public or private street from the Community or within the City in which the Real Estate is located - provided the owner of that property consents to the annexation.

RECEPTION#: 2024001587, 03/14/2024 at 01:06:44 PM, 50 OF 50, Jolene S. Linke, Grand County Clerk and Recorder, Colorado

Exhibit F - Limited Common Areas

None.

Bylaws

of

Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1. In	troduction and Purposes	1
Article 2. De	efinitions	
Article 3. Me	embership and Voting	1
Section 3.1	Membership	
Section 3.2	Suspension of Member Rights	1
Section 3.3	Member Voting	1
Section 3.4 Section 3.5	Proxies	2
Section 3.6	Voting Procedures	ن
Section 3.7	Voting by Written Ballot or Electronic Means in Lieu of a Meeting	ت
Section 3.8	Voting in Elections of Directors / Other Voting Voting List / Membership List	4
Section 3.9	Limitation on Use of Voting List and Membership List	4
Section 3.10	Transfer of Membership	4
Article 4. Me	eetings of Members	5
Section 4.1	Annual Meetings	5
Section 4.2	Budget Ratification Meetings.	
Section 4.3	Special Meetings	
Section 4.4	Record Date	
Section 4.5	Notice of Meetings	
Section 4.6	Place of Meeting	
Section 4.7	Quorum	6
Section 4.8	Adjourned and Reconvened Meetings	7
Section 4.9	Order of Business	7
Section 4.10	Waiver of Notice	
Section 4.11	Telephone, Electronic or Virtual Attendance	
Article 5. Bo	ard of Directors	7
Section 5.1	Number of Directors	7
Section 5.2	Qualifications of Directors	7
Section 5.3	Term of Office of Board Members	
Section 5.4	Resignation	8
Section 5.5	Removal of Directors	
Section 5.6	Vacancies	
Section 5.7	Compensation	9
Section 5.8	Standard of Conduct for Directors and Officers	9
Article 6. Me	etings of the Board of Directors	10
Section 6.1	Location of Meetings and Open Meetings	
Section 6.2	Regular Meetings	10
Section 6.3	Special Meetings	10
Section 6.4	Annual Meetings	10
Section 6.5	Notice of Board Meetings	10
Section 6.6	Waiver of Notice	11
Section 6.7	Quorum; Voting	11
Section 6.8	Director Proxies	
Section 6.9	Action without a Meeting	11

Section 6.10	Telephone, Electronic, or Virtual Attendance	12
Article 7. Po	wers and Duties of the Board of Directors	12
Section 7.1 Section 7.2 Section 7.3	Powers and Duties Responsible Governance Policies Managing Agent or Bookkeeper	13
Article 8. Off	icers and Duties	14
Section 8.1 Section 8.2 Section 8.3 Section 8.4 Section 8.5	Designation and Qualification Election and Terms of Office Resignation and Removal of Officers Vacancies Duties of Officers	14 14 14 14
Article 9. As	sociation Documents and Records	
Section 9.1 Section 9.2 Section 9.3	Records and the Right to Inspect Records Disclosure of Records Minutes	15
Article 10.	ndemnification	15
Section 10.2	Obligation to Indemnify Payment in Advance of Final Disposition Directors and Officers Insurance	15
Article 11.	liscellaneous	16
Section 11.2 Section 11.3 Section 11.4 Section 11.5	Amendment	16 16 16 17
Section 11.6 Section 11.7	WaiverInterpretation	17

Bylaws of

Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.

RECITALS

ARTICLE 1. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSES

The Association is a Colorado nonprofit corporation under the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act.

These Bylaws are adopted to regulate and manage the affairs of the Association.

The Association's purposes are to:

- preserve the value and desirability of Hideaway Junction Phase II, a planned community
- act as an entity for the owners pursuant to the Declaration of Hideaway Junction Phase
 II, Inc., as the Declaration may be amended from time to time (the "Declaration")
- operate and govern the Community
- provide for the administration, maintenance and preservation of the Lots and Common Areas or Areas of Common Responsibility within the Community
- · further the interests of the residents and occupants of the Community

ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS

All capitalized terms used in these Bylaws will have the same meaning as set forth in the Declaration.

ARTICLE 3. MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING

Section 3.1 <u>Membership</u>. Every person who is an Owner is a Member of the Association. Membership is appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot. Ownership of the Lot is the sole qualification for membership. To the extent deemed appropriate, classes of Members may be established by the Declarant. The terms "Member" and "Owner' are used interchangeably in the Governing Documents.

Section 3.2 <u>Suspension of Member Rights</u>. Without notice or hearing, during any period in which a Member is in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association, the Member's voting rights will be deemed suspended by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.3 Member Voting.

(a) The Owner of a Lot is entitled to one equally weighted vote for the Lot.

- (b) Each Member eligible to vote may vote in person or by proxy at all Member meetings.
- (c) If only one of several Owners of a Lot is present at a Member meeting, the Owner present is entitled to cast the vote allocated to the Lot.
- (d) If more than one of the Owners is present, the vote allocated to the Lot may be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority of those Owners. Majority agreement is deemed to exist if any one of the Owners casts the vote allocated to the Lot without protest being made promptly to the person presiding over the meeting by another Owner of the Lot. If co-Owners disagree or attempt to cast more than one vote, no such votes will be counted.
- (e) In the absence of express notice to the Board of Directors of the designation of a specific person to cast a vote, the vote of a partnership may be cast by any general partner of that partnership; the vote of a limited liability company may be cast by any manager of that limited liability company; the vote of a corporation may be cast by any officer of that corporation; and the vote of a trust may be cast by any trustee of that trust.
- (f) The chair of the meeting may require reasonable evidence that a person voting on behalf of a partnership, limited liability company, corporation or trust is qualified to vote.
- (g) Votes allocated to Lots owned by the Association may be cast by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.4 Proxies.

- (a) Proxies from Members are expressly allowed.
- (b) The vote allocated to a Lot may be cast under a proxy duly executed by an Owner.
- (c) All proxies will be in writing and filed with the secretary or designee of the Association at or prior to the meeting.
- (d) If a Lot is owned by more than one person, each Owner of the Lot may vote or register protest to the casting of the vote by the other Owners of the Lot through a duly executed proxy. In the event of disagreement between or among co-Owners and an attempt by two or more of them to cast such vote or votes, such vote or votes will not be counted.
- (e) An Owner may revoke a proxy given under this section by attending the meeting or by written notice of revocation to the person presiding over the meeting.
 - (f) A proxy is void if it is not dated.
- (g) A proxy terminates 11 months after its date, unless it specifies a different term or a specific purpose, or upon sale of the Lot for which the proxy was issued.
- (h) A proxy holder may not appoint a substitute proxy holder unless expressly authorized to do so in the proxy.

Section 3.5 <u>Voting Procedures</u>. Voting by Members is subject to the following:

- (a) Votes for contested positions on the Board of Directors may be taken by secret ballot.
- (b) At the discretion of the Board or upon request of 20% of the Owners who are present in person or by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present, a vote on any matter affecting the Community on which all Owners are entitled to vote will be by secret ballot.
- (c) A neutral third party or a committee of volunteers will count the ballots. The volunteers will be Members selected or appointed at an open meeting, in a fair manner, by the president or another person presiding during that portion of the meeting. The volunteers will not be Board members and, in the case of a contested election for a Board position, will not be candidates. The results of a vote taken by secret ballot may be reported without reference to Owners' names, addresses, or other identifying information.
- (d) Voting may be by voice, by show of hands, by consent, by mail, by electronic means, by proxy, by written ballot, or as otherwise determined by the Board of Directors prior to the meeting or by a majority of the Members present at a meeting; provided, however, if secret balloting is required, the means of voting may protect the secrecy of the ballots.

Section 3.6 Voting by Written Ballot or Electronic Means in Lieu of a Meeting.

- (a) In case of a vote by written ballot or electronic means in lieu of a meeting, the secretary will mail or deliver written notice to all Members at each Member's address as it appears in the Association's records given for notice purposes.
 - (b) The notice will include:
- (i) a proposed written resolution setting forth a description of the proposed action;
- (ii) a statement that Members are entitled to vote by written ballot or electronic means for or against such proposal;
- (iii) a date at least 10 days after the date such notice will have been given, on or before which all votes must be received at the Association's office at the address designated in the notice; and
- (iv) the number of votes which must be received to meet the quorum requirement and the percentage of votes received needed to carry the vote.
- (c) Voting by written ballot or electronic means will be acceptable in all instances in the Declaration, Articles or these Bylaws requiring the vote of Members at a meeting.
- (d) The Association may conduct elections of directors by written ballot or electronic means, in its sole discretion, and pursuant to procedures adopted by it.

Section 3.7 <u>Voting in Elections of Directors / Other Voting</u>. In an election of directors, the candidates receiving the largest number of votes will be elected. On all other items, the vote of more than 50% of Members voting at a meeting at which at least a quorum is present will constitute a majority and will be binding upon all Members for all purposes except where a higher percentage vote is required in the Declaration, these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or by law.

Section 3.8 Voting List / Membership List.

- (a) The Association will maintain a list of the names and addresses of all Members and the number of votes each is entitled to vote.
- (b) After a record date is fixed for a membership meeting or for determining the Members entitled to vote by written ballot, the secretary will make, at the earlier of 10 days before the meeting or two business days after notice of the meeting has been given, a complete list of the Members entitled to be given notice of the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting. The list will be arranged in alphabetical order and will show the name, address of each Member and number of votes to which each Member is entitled.
- (c) For the period beginning the earlier of 10 days prior to the meeting or two business days after notice of the meeting is given and continuing through the meeting and any adjournment of the meeting, this list will be kept on file at the Association's office. The list will be available for inspection upon written request by any Member during regular business hours and during the period available for inspection.
- (d) If the list is prepared in connection with a written ballot, it will be available for inspection beginning on the date the first written ballot is delivered and continuing through the time when such written ballots must be received by the Association in order to be counted.
- (e) Any Member may copy the list during regular business hours, at the Member's expense, and during the period it is available for inspection, provided the Member pays a reasonable charge covering the costs of labor and material for the copies, not to exceed the estimated cost of production and reproduction.
- (f) At all times, the list will be available for inspection and copying in accordance with these Bylaws and the Association's records inspection policy.
- Section 3.9 <u>Limitation on Use of Voting List and Membership List</u>. The Association's voting lists and membership list or any part thereof may not be: (a) obtained or used by any person for any purpose unrelated to a Member's interest as a Member; (b) used to solicit money or property unless the money or property will be used solely to solicit the votes of the Members in an election by the Association; (c) used for any commercial purpose; or (d) sold to or purchased by any person.
- Section 3.10 <u>Transfer of Membership</u>. Transfer of memberships will be made on the Association's books only upon presentation of evidence, satisfactory to the Association, of the transfer of ownership of the Lot. Prior to presentation of such evidence, the Association may treat the previous Owner as the Member entitled to all rights connected with a membership, including the right to vote and to receive notice, without liability.

ARTICLE 4. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 4.1 Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of the Members will be held during each of the Association's fiscal years, at such time, date and place as the Board determines. At these meetings, the directors will be elected by the Members, in accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws. Failure to hold an annual meeting will not affect the validity of any corporate action and will not be considered a forfeiture or dissolution of the Association.

Section 4.2 Budget Ratification Meetings.

- (a) Meetings to consider proposed budgets will be called in accordance with the terms of the Declaration and these Bylaws.
- (b) The Declaration's budget process allows a percentage of the Membership to veto a proposed budget adopted by the Board.
 - (c) The budget process to be followed is as follows:
- (i) The Board of Directors will prepare and approve a proposed budget at least annually.
- (ii) Within a reasonable time or 90 days after the Board of Directors adopts the proposed budget, the Board of Directors will mail or deliver a summary of the proposed budget to those entitled to vote and set a date for a special or annual meeting to consider ratification of the proposed budget.
- (iii) Notice for the meeting at which the budget will be considered must be provided not less than 10 days or more than 50 days before the meeting. Provided, however, the Board may choose to ratify the budget via written ballot or electronic means in lieu of a meeting.
- (iv) Unless Owners holding 67% of the votes in the Association vote to reject the proposed budget, the proposed budget is ratified and becomes the approved budget of the Association.
- (v) A quorum is not required at the meeting if the meeting is only a budget meeting. If the meeting is also an annual or special meeting at which other business is to be conducted, a quorum is required for other business to be conducted, but not required for ratification of the budget.
- (d) If a proposed budget is rejected by a percentage vote of the Members (as allowed for in the Declaration), the budget last ratified continues until a subsequent budget proposed by the Board of Directors is ratified.
- Section 4.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called by the president, by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors or by the secretary upon receipt of a written petition signed by Owners comprising at least 20% of the total votes of the Association. A written petition by the Owners must identify the special meeting purpose on each page of the petition, which must be a purpose for which the Association membership is authorized to act under the Governing Documents. The Board of Directors will determine the form of notice, and the date, time and place of the meeting. If the secretary does not give notice

for a special meeting demanded pursuant to a proper petition within 30 days after the date the written demand(s) is delivered to the secretary, the person(s) signing the demand(s) may set the time and place of the meeting and give notice, pursuant to the terms of these Bylaws. Any meeting called under this section will be conducted by the president of the Board, or in their absence, a person chosen by a majority of the Board.

Section 4.4 Record Date. The record date for determining Members entitled to notice of any Member meeting will be the date of the notice of the meeting, unless the Board determines otherwise.

Section 4.5 Notice of Meetings.

- (a) Written notice of each meeting of Members will be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by delivering a copy of the notice, by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at least 10 days before, but not more than 50 days before the meeting to each Member entitled to vote, addressed to the Member's mailing address, or if no mailing address is provided, the Member's Lot address.
- (b) The notice may also be physically posted in a conspicuous place in a part of the Community, if possible.
- (c) In addition, if electronic means are available, notice may be sent by e-mail to any Owner who requests such delivery and furnishes the Association with their e-mail address at least 24 hours before the meeting.
- (d) The notice will specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.
- (e) No matters will be heard nor action adopted at a special meeting except as stated or allowed in the notice.
- (f) Notice of an annual meeting need not include a description of the purpose(s) except the purpose(s) will be stated with respect to:
- (i) an amendment or restatement to the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Association;
 - (ii) any proposal to remove an officer or director from office;
 - (iii) any budget changes; or
- (iv) any other purpose for which a statement of purpose is required by law, including C.R.S. 7-127-104, or the Governing Documents.
- Section 4.6 <u>Place of Meeting</u>. Member meetings will be held at such place as may be fixed by the Board of Directors and specified in the notice of the meeting. Preferably, the location should be convenient to the Community. The location of Member meetings may include by conference call or other electronic or virtual means, as determined by the Board, provided Members can participate pursuant to Section 4.11.
 - Section 4.7 Quorum. The presence of 20% of the Members and as are eligible to

vote at the beginning of any meeting, in person or by proxy, constitutes a quorum for any action, except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, and these Bylaws. Once a quorum is established for a meeting, it is conclusively presumed to exist until the meeting is adjourned and will not need to be reestablished. If the required quorum is not present, the Members who are present will have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time to a later date, until such time as a quorum will be present.

- Section 4.8 Adjourned and Reconvened Meetings. Any membership meeting may be adjourned, to be reconvened at a later date or time, by vote of the Owners holding a majority of the vote represented at the meeting, regardless of whether a quorum is present. Any business that could have been transacted properly at the original session of the meeting may be transacted at the reconvened session. No additional notice of such reconvened session is required if the original session is adjourned for a period not exceeding 10 days.
- **Section 4.9** Order of Business. The Board of Directors may establish the order of business and prescribe reasonable rules for the conduct of all Member meetings. Robert's Rules of Order are not required.
- Section 4.10 <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. Waiver of notice of a membership meeting will be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any Member may waive, in writing, any notice of any membership meeting, either before or after such meeting. A Member's attendance at a meeting, whether in person or represented by proxy, is deemed a waiver by the Member of improper notice of the date, time, and location thereof and of any specific business being conducted at the meeting. The foregoing is not waived if the Member specifically objects to improper notice at the time the meeting is called to order or the Member objects to improper notice of the specific business before the business is put to a vote.
- Section 4.11 <u>Telephone, Electronic or Virtual Attendance</u>. Members may attend meetings by telephone or electronic or virtual means whereby the Members hear each other on any matter properly brought at the meeting. The Member's vote shall be counted and the presence noted as if that Member were present in person.

ARTICLE 5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.1 Number of Directors.

- (a) The Association's affairs are governed by a Board of Directors which will consist of three members, elected or appointed as provided below (the "Board").
- (b) In the case where through removal or resignation the total number of Board members is less than three, the Board will be considered properly constituted until the vacancies are filled.
- (c) The number of directors may be increased or decreased by amendment of these Bylaws.
- Section 5.2 <u>Qualifications of Directors</u>. The following qualifications apply to Owner elected or appointed Directors. Declarant-appointed Directors are exempt from the following qualifications.
 - (a) Only one Owner per Lot who is eligible to vote, current in payment of

assessments, and otherwise in good standing may be elected to or appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board.

- (b) If any Lot is owned by a partnership, corporation, trust, or other entity, any officer, partner, trustee or representative of that entity will be eligible to serve as a director and will be deemed to be a Member for the purposes of these Bylaws.
- (c) Any director who is more than 30 days delinquent in payment of any assessment will not be qualified to serve on the Board.
- (d) Any director who has unexcused absences from three consecutive Board meetings will not be qualified to serve on the Board. An absence will be excused if the absent Board member notifies the other Board members of the planned absence and the reason for the absence at least three days before the meeting, and a majority of the remaining Board members approve the absence as being for a valid purpose.
- (e) Any director who is in violation of any provision of the Association's Governing Documents for more than 60 days will not be qualified to serve on the Board.
- (f) Any director who maintains an adversarial proceeding of any type against the Association will not be qualified to serve on the Board.
- (g) Any director who fails to provide information necessary to meet governmental reporting requirements.

If a director is not qualified to serve on the Board, the director's position may be deemed vacant upon determination by a majority of the remaining Directors.

Section 5.3 Term of Office of Board Members.

- (a) The terms of the directors are to be staggered.
- (b) The terms of approximately 1/3 of the directors will expire annually.
- (c) Prior to the transition of control of the Board, a director shall serve a one-year term of office.
 - (d) At the transition of control meeting:
 - (i) One director is to be elected from Owners for a one-year term,
 - (ii) One director is to be elected from Owners for a two-year term, and
 - (iii) One director is to be elected from Owners for a three-year term.
- (e) After the transition of control meeting, all directors are to be elected to three-year terms of office.
- **Section 5.4** Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the president, to the secretary or to the Board of Directors stating the effective date of the resignation. Acceptance of a resignation will not be necessary to make the resignation effective.

Section 5.5 Removal of Directors.

- (a) One or more directors or the entire Board of Directors may be removed at a special Member meeting called pursuant to these Bylaws, with or without cause, if the number of votes cast to remove the director or directors would be sufficient to elect the director. Notice of any Member meeting to remove directors will state that the purpose of the meeting, or a portion of that meeting, is to remove one or more directors. Notice will be provided to every Member, including the directors sought to be removed, as provided in these Bylaws. Directors sought to be removed will have the right to be present at this meeting and will be given the opportunity to speak to the Members prior to a vote to remove being taken.
- (b) In the event of removal of one or more directors, a successor will be elected by the Members at the meeting to serve for the unexpired term of their predecessor.
- (c) The Board may remove a director appointed by the Board to fill a vacancy with cause by a vote of a majority of the directors then in office.
- Section 5.6 <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies on the Board caused by any reason (other than removal) may be filled by appointment by a majority vote of the remaining Board at any time after the occurrence of the vacancy, even though the directors present at that meeting may constitute less than a quorum. Each person so appointed will be a director who will serve for the remainder of the unexpired term.
- **Section 5.7** <u>Compensation</u>. No director will receive compensation for any service they may render as a director to the Association. However, any director may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in the performance of Association duties.

Section 5.8 Standard of Conduct for Directors and Officers.

- (a) Each director and officer will perform their duties as a director or officer in good faith, in a manner the director or officer reasonably believes to be in the Association's best interests and with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances.
- (b) In the performance of their duties, a director or officer will be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:
- (i) one or more officers or employees of the Association whom the director or officer reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented;
- (ii) legal counsel, professional property manager, public accountant, or other persons as to matters which the director or officer reasonably believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence; or
- (iii) a committee of the Association on which the director or officer does not serve if the director reasonably believes the committee merits confidence.
- (c) A director or officer will not be considered to be acting in good faith if the director or officer has knowledge concerning the matter in question that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted. A director or officer will not be liable to the Association or its

Members for any action the director or officer takes or omits to take as a director or officer if, in connection with the action or omission, the director or officer performs their duties in compliance with this section.

- (d) A director or officer, regardless of title, will not be deemed to be a trustee with respect to the Association or with respect to any property held or administered by the Association.
- (e) The Board of Directors has the power and authority to adopt additional reasonable standards or rules of conduct for directors and officers which do not conflict with this section.

ARTICLE 6. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Section 6.1 <u>Location of Meetings and Open Meetings</u>. All Board meetings will be open to attendance by Members or their designated representatives, as provided by Colorado law. All Board meetings will be held at such location within or convenient to the Community as may be fixed by the Board of Directors. Meetings may also be held by conference call or virtual or electronic means provided that directors can participate pursuant to Section 6.10.
- Section 6.2 <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular Board meetings will be held at such times, place and hour as may be fixed by the Board. The Board may set a schedule of regular meetings by resolution, and no further notice is necessary to constitute regular meetings. Agendas for Board meetings will be made reasonably available for examination by all Members or their representative in advance of the meeting, or if no formal agenda is prepared, a general description of the purpose of the meeting and subject matter that will be discussed.
- Section 6.3 Special Meetings. Special Board meetings will be held when called by the president or by any two directors. If a notice for a special meeting demanded by two or more directors is not given by the Board within 30 days after the date the written demand(s) is delivered to the Board, the directors signing the demand(s) may set the time and place of the meeting and give notice, pursuant to the terms of these Bylaws. Only those matters contained in the notice of the special meeting may be discussed, unless all directors are present at the meeting and agree to waive the notice requirement for such other matters. Agendas for special Board meetings will be made reasonably available as provided above.
- **Section 6.4** Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of the Board may be held, without notice, immediately following and in the same place as the annual meeting of the Members, or at such other date and place as may be determined. The purpose of this annual meeting is to elect officers and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting.
- Section 6.5 Notice of Board Meetings. Except as provided above, written notice of each Board meeting will be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of the notice, postage prepaid, at least two days before the meeting, or by any other means permitted by the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act. Other means of distribution of this notice include, and are not limited to, personal delivery, facsimile, and e-mail delivery to each Board member, addressed to the Board member's address last appearing on the Association's books, or supplied by a Board member for the purpose of notice. The notice will specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

The Association will inform Members, at least annually, the method by which meeting agendas, schedule of regular Board meetings (if any), and notice of special Board meetings will be provided, including the physical or online location of any posted agendas, schedules or notices. The Board will give at least 30 days' notice of any change in the manner or means by which meeting information will be provided.

- Section 6.6 <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. A waiver of notice of any Board meeting, signed by a director, whether before or after the meeting, will be the equivalent to the giving of notice of the meeting to the director. A director's attendance at a meeting constitutes waiver of notice of the meeting except when the director attends for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
- Section 6.7 Quorum; Voting. A majority of the directors constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, unless there are fewer than three directors, in which case all directors must be present to constitute a quorum. One or more directors who participate by telephone or electronic or virtual means will be deemed present for establishing a quorum, if all persons so participating can hear each other. The votes of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present will constitute a Board decision unless there are fewer than three directors, in which case, unanimity of the directors is required to constitute a Board decision. If at any meeting there will be less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting.
- Section 6.8 <u>Director Proxies</u>. To determine a quorum with respect to a particular issue and for the purposes of casting a vote for or against that issue, a director may execute, in writing, a proxy to be held by another director. The proxy is to specify a yes, no, or abstain vote on each particular issue for which the proxy was executed. Proxies which do not specify a yes, no, or abstain vote will not be counted for the purpose of having a quorum present or as a vote on the particular issue before the Board.

Section 6.9 Action without a Meeting

- (a) The directors have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could otherwise have taken at a meeting if a notice stating the action to be taken and the time by which a director must respond is transmitted in writing to each director and each director, by the time stated in the notice:
 - (i) Votes in writing for such action; or
- (ii) Votes in writing against such action, abstains in writing from voting; or fails to respond or vote; and
 - (iii) Fails to demand that action not be taken without a meeting.
- (b) The action will be authorized if the number of directors voting in favor of the action equals or exceeds the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to take such action at a meeting at which all of the directors then in office were present and voted.
 - (c) An abstention is not a vote in favor or against an action.
- (d) Any action taken under this section has the same effect as though taken at a Board meeting.

- (e) All writings made pursuant to this section will be filed with the minutes of the Board meetings.
- Section 6.10 <u>Telephone, Electronic, or Virtual Attendance</u>. A director may attend a meeting of the Board by telephone or electronic or virtual means whereby the directors may hear each other on any matter properly brought before the Board. The director's vote shall be counted and the presence noted as if that director were present in person

ARTICLE 7. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Section 7.1 Powers and Duties. The Board may act in all instances on the Association's behalf, except as provided in the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation. The Board has, subject to the limitations contained in the Declaration, these Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation, the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the Association's affairs, and for the operation and maintenance of the Community, including the following powers and duties:
 - (a) exercise any other powers conferred by the Governing Documents;
- (b) adopt and amend rules, regulations and governance policies, including penalties;
- (c) adopt and amend budgets (subject to any requirements of the Declaration and the Bylaws);
- (d) keep and maintain full and accurate books and records showing all of the Association's receipts, expenses, or disbursements;
 - (e) collect assessments as provided by the Governing Documents;
- (f) employ a managing agent, independent contractors or employees as it deems necessary, and prescribe their duties;
- (g) institute, defend or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings or seek injunctive relief for violations of the Governing Documents, and in the Association's name, on behalf of the Association or two or more Owners, on matters affecting the Community, except as to Excluded Claims. As to Excluded Claims, the terms of the Declaration control and must first be complied with;
- (h) make contracts, administer financial accounts and incur liabilities in the Association's name:
- (i) acquire, hold, encumber and convey, in the Association's name and in the ordinary course of business, any right, title or interest to real estate, with the approval of Owners with at least 67% of the votes for any conveyance of Common Areas;
- (j) grant easements, leases, licenses, concessions through or over the Common Areas;
- (k) borrow funds and secure loans with an interest in future assessments in order to pay for any expenditure or outlay required pursuant to the authority granted by the

provisions of the recorded Declaration and these Bylaws, and to execute all such instruments evidencing the indebtedness as the Board of Directors may deem necessary and give security for such loan, subject to the requirements set forth in the Declaration;

- (I) provide for the indemnification of the Association's directors and any person serving without compensation at the Association's request, and maintain professional liability insurance;
- (m) supervise all persons acting on the Association's behalf of and/or at the Association's discretion;
 - (n) procure and maintain insurance as set forth in the Governing Documents;
- (o) cause all persons having fiscal responsibilities for the Association's assets to be insured and/or bonded, as it may deem appropriate;
- (p) appoint committees as deemed appropriate or as required in the Declaration. Committees will have authority to act only to the extent designated in the Governing Documents or delegated by the Board; and
- (q) exercise for the Association all powers, duties, rights and obligations in or delegated to the Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of the Governing Documents.
- **Section 7.2** Responsible Governance Policies. To the extent procedures are not already set in these Bylaws or the Declaration, the Board of Directors may adopt and maintain policies, procedures and rules and regulations concerning:
 - (a) collection of unpaid assessments;
 - (b) handling of conflicts of interest involving Board members;
 - (c) conduct of meetings;
- (d) enforcement of covenants and rules, including notice and hearing procedures and a fine schedule;
 - (e) inspection and copying of Association records by Owners;
 - (f) investment of reserve funds;
- (g) procedures for the adoption and amendment of policies, procedures, and rules;
- (h) procedures for addressing disputes arising between the Association and Owners;
 - (i) obtaining reserve studies and funding reserves;
 - (i) guidelines on protecting personal identifying information of Owners; and
 - (k) any other policies or procedures required by law or adopted by the Board.

Section 7.3 Managing Agent or Bookkeeper. The Board may employ a managing agent and/or bookkeeper for the Community, at a compensation established by the Board, to perform duties and services authorized by the Board. Regardless of any delegation to a managing agent and/or bookkeeper, the directors will not be relieved of responsibilities under the Governing Documents or Colorado law.

ARTICLE 8. OFFICERS AND DUTIES

- **Section 8.1** <u>Designation and Qualification</u>. The Association's officers consist of a president, one or more vice presidents, a secretary, a treasurer and any other officers and assistant officers the Board deems necessary. The president and vice president must be directors. Except for the offices of secretary and treasurer, which may be held by the same person, no person may hold more than one office simultaneously.
- Section 8.2 <u>Election and Terms of Office</u>. The Board will elect the officers for one-year terms at the first Board meeting following the annual Member meeting. Each officer will serve until a successor is elected, the Board of Directors removes the officer, or the officer resigns.
- **Section 8.3** Resignation and Removal of Officers. A majority of the directors may remove any officer from office with or without cause. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the president or the secretary. A resignation will take effect on the date of receipt of a notice or at any later time specified therein. Acceptance of a resignation will not be necessary to make it effective.
- Section 8.4 <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by majority vote of the Board. Unless earlier removed, the officer appointed to the vacancy will serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he or she replaces.

Section 8.5 Duties of Officers. The duties of the officers are as follows:

- (a) <u>President</u>. The president will be the chief executive officer and will have all of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of president of a Colorado nonprofit corporation, including, but not limited to the following: preside at all Board and Member meetings; see that Board decisions and resolutions are carried out; sign all contracts, leases and other written instruments; direct, supervise, coordinate and have general control over the Association's day-to-day affairs.
- (b) <u>Vice President</u>. The vice president will take the place of the president and perform the president's duties whenever the president is absent or unable to act and will perform other duties imposed by the Board of Directors. If neither the president nor the vice president is able to act, the Board of Directors will appoint another director to act in the place of the president on an interim basis.
- (c) <u>Secretary</u>. The secretary will record the votes and maintain the minutes of all Board and Member meetings; serve notice of Board and Members meetings; keep appropriate current records showing the Members of the Association together with their addresses; and perform such other duties incident to the office of secretary or as required by the Board.
 - (d) <u>Treasurer</u>. The treasurer will be responsible for the receipt, deposit and

disbursement of Association funds and securities and for maintenance of full and accurate financial records; will prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership; and deliver a copy of each to the Members. The treasurer will perform all duties incident to the office of treasurer and such other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

(e) <u>Delegation</u>. The duties of any officer may be delegated to the managing agent, bookkeeper or another Board member; provided, however, the officer will not be relieved of any responsibility under this section or under Colorado law.

ARTICLE 9. ASSOCIATION DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS

- Section 9.1 Records and the Right to Inspect Records. The Association or its managing agent, if any, will keep and maintain records as required by Colorado law. The Association's records are subject to inspection and copying by any Member, at the Member's expense, in accordance with the Association's responsible governance policy, if any, regarding inspection and copying of records. The policy may require advance notice of inspection, specify hours and days of the week during which inspection will be permitted, establish a reasonable maximum time limit for any inspection session, and establish reasonable fees for copies.
- Section 9.2 <u>Disclosure of Records</u>. The Association will provide written notice to all Members of a change in where records are stored or the designated person to contact for records inspections, including changes in the Association's address, designated agent, or managing agent, within 90 days of the change.
- Section 9.3 Minutes. Minutes or any similar record of Board and Member meetings, when signed by the secretary or acting secretary of the meeting, will be presumed to truthfully evidence the matters set forth in the minutes. A recitation in the minutes that notice of the meeting was properly given will be prima facie evidence that the notice was given.

ARTICLE 10. INDEMNIFICATION

- Section 10.1 Obligation to Indemnify. The Association will indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative; by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer or committee member of the Association, as allowed by state statutes. Notice of any indemnification of a directors or officer under this section will be provided to Members in accordance with C.R.S. 7-129-110.
- Section 10.2 <u>Payment in Advance of Final Disposition</u>. The Association may pay for or reimburse the reasonable expenses as described above in advance of final disposition of the action, suit or proceeding if allowed under state statutes.
- Section 10.3 <u>Directors and Officers Insurance</u>. The Association will purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a member of the Board of Directors, the manager, committee members, or anyone acting at the direction of the Board, covering defense and liability expenses arising out of any action, suit or proceeding asserted against the person by virtue of the person's actions on behalf of the Association or at the direction of the Board, whether or not the Association would have the power to indemnify the person against liability under provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE 11. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11.1 <u>Amendment</u>. These Bylaws may be amended by an affirmative vote of Members holding at least 50% of the total votes in the Association. That vote may be made, in person or by proxy, at a regular or special Member meeting at which a quorum is present or by written ballot as provided for in these Bylaws.

Section 11.2 Electronic Communications.

(a) <u>Permissive</u>.

- (i) Whenever the Governing Documents require that a document, record or instrument be "written" or "in writing," the requirement is deemed satisfied by an electronic record if the Board of Directors has affirmatively published regulations permitting an electronic record or document as a substitute for a written item.
- (ii) Whenever these Bylaws require a signature on a document, record or instrument, an electronic signature satisfies that requirement only if: (i) the Board of Directors has affirmatively published regulations permitting an electronic signature as a substitute for a written signature; and (ii) the electronic signature is easily recognizable as a secure electronic signature which is capable of verification, under the sole control of the signatory, and attached to the electronic document in such a way that the document cannot be modified without invalidating the signature; or (iii) the Board of Directors reasonably believes that the signatory affixed the electronic signature with the intent to sign the electronic document, and that the electronic document has not been modified since the signature was affixed.
- (b) Verification and Liability for Falsification. The Board of Directors may require reasonable verification of any electronic signature, document, record or instrument. Absent or pending verification, the Board may refuse to accept any electronic signature or electronic record that, in the Board's sole discretion, is not clearly authentic. Neither the Board of Directors nor the Association will be liable to any Owner or any other person for accepting or acting in reliance upon an electronic signature or electronic record that the Board reasonably believes to be authentic, or rejecting any such item which the Board reasonably believes not to be authentic. Any Owner or person who negligently, recklessly or intentionally submits any falsified electronic record or unauthorized electronic signature will fully indemnify the Association for actual damages, reasonable attorneys' fees actually incurred and expenses incurred as a result of such acts.
- **Section 11.3** Fiscal Year. The Board has the right to establish and, from time to time, change the fiscal year of the Association.
- Section 11.4 Notices. All notices to the Association or the Board will be delivered to the office of the managing agent or, if there is no managing agent, to the Association's mailing address registered with the Secretary of State, or to such other address as the Board may designate by written notice to all Owners. Except as otherwise provided, all notices to Owners required to be mailed will be sent to the Owner's address as it appears in the Association's records. Any notice not otherwise required to be mailed may be sent by hand-delivery, email or any other reasonable means permitted under the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act. All notices will be deemed to have been given when mailed or transmitted, except notices of changes of address, which will be deemed to have been given when received.

Section 11.5 <u>Conflicts</u>. In the case of any conflicts between the Declaration and these Bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation, the terms of the Declaration will control. In the case of any conflicts between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the terms of the Articles of Incorporation will control.

Section 11.6 <u>Waiver</u>. No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in these Bylaws will be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches which may occur.

Section 11.7 <u>Interpretation</u>. The provisions of these Bylaws will be liberally construed to effect the purpose of ensuring that the Community will at all times be operated and maintained in a manner so as to optimize and maximize its enjoyment and utilization by each member.

The undersigned certifies their officer position in the Association and that the foregoing Bylaws constitute the Bylaws of the Association, as duly adopted by all of the then-current Members of the Association.

·	, President
Date	

Articles of Incorporation For Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.

(A Colorado Nonprofit Corporation)

The undersigned signs and acknowledges, for delivery to the Secretary of State of Colorado, these Articles of Incorporation under the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act.

ARTICLE 1 -- NAME

The name of the corporation is Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc. (the "Association").

ARTICLE 2 -- DURATION

The duration of the Association is perpetual.

ARTICLE 3 -- DEFINITIONS

The definitions set forth in the Declaration for Hideaway Junction Phase II (the "Declaration") apply to all capitalized terms set forth in the Declaration, unless otherwise defined in these Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE 4 -- PRINCIPAL OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT

The principal office of the Association is 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482. The Association's initial registered office shall be at the office of its registered agent at 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482, and its registered agent at such address is Winter Park Housing Authority. The principal office and the registered agent and office of the Association may change from time to time.

ARTICLE 5 -- NONPROFIT

The Association is a nonprofit corporation, without shares of stock, and does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit for the Members of the Association.

ARTICLE 6 -- MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS AND QUALIFICATIONS

The Association will have voting Members for each Lot subject to the Declaration.

There is one membership for each Lot owned, which shall be automatically transferred upon the conveyance of the Lot.

The qualifications of Members of the Association, the voting rights, classes of Members and other rights and obligations of Members are contained in the Declaration and Bylaws of the Association.

Membership is automatically transferred upon the conveyance of a Lot.

The Members may be of such classes of membership as established by the Declarant, or in the Declaration (as the Declaration, or may be amended or supplemented).

ARTICLE 7 -- PURPOSES AND POWERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

The purposes for which this Association is formed are as follows:

- (a) To operate and manage the planned Community known as "Hideaway Junction Phase II," as an affordable housing community for the purposes of enhancing and preserving the value of the Lots and any Common Areas in the Community for the benefit of the Members;
- (b) To be and constitute the Association to which reference is made in the Declaration recorded or to be recorded in the real property records for Grand County, State of Colorado, subject to:
 - Applicable law:
 - 2. The Declaration (as defined and referred to above);
 - 3. The Bylaws of the Association:
 - 4. Governance policies of the Association; and
 - Rules and Regulations and policies and procedures as the Board of Directors of the Association may from time to time adopt.
- (c) To institute, defend or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings or seek injunctive relief for violations of the Governing Documents, and in the Association's name, on behalf of the Association or two or more Owners, on matters affecting the Community; except as to Excluded Claims. In those claims, the terms of the Declaration control and must first be complied with;
- (d) To provide an entity for the furtherance of the interests of the Owners of property subject to the Declaration;
- (e) To act for and on behalf of the Members of the Association in all matters deemed necessary and proper for the protection, maintenance and improvement of the Lots as more specifically provided for in the Declaration;
- (f) The Association may not sue or commence an arbitration on an Excluded Claim (as defined in the Declaration), without first complying with the terms and conditions set forth in the Declaration.
- (g) To eliminate or limit the personal liability of a Director to the Association or to the Members for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a Director, as allowed by law;
- (h) To perform all acts and services and exercise all powers and duties in accordance with the requirements for an association of owners under the terms of the Declaration;
- (i) To promote, foster and advance the health, safety, and welfare of the Owners and occupants;
- (j) To do any and all permitted acts suitable or incidental to any of the foregoing purposes and objects to the fullest extent permitted by law, and do any and all acts that in the opinion of the Board, will promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the members and occupants of the Residences, and to have and to exercise any and all powers, rights and privileges which are granted under Colorado law, the Declaration, and Bylaws.

The foregoing statements of purpose are to be construed as a statement of both purposes and powers.

The purposes and powers stated in each clause do not limit or restrict by reference or inference any other clause or as allowed under the Colorado Nonprofit Corporation Act.

Each clause and authority under that act are to be broadly construed as independent purposes and powers.

ARTICLE 8 -- LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS

No director is to be personally liable to the Association or its Members for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for any of the following:

- (a) Any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Association or its Members:
- (b) Any acts or omissions of the director not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; or
- (c) Any transaction in which the director received improper personal benefit.

Nothing in these Articles of Incorporation is to be construed to deprive any director of the right to all defenses available under the governing documents for the Community or state law. Nothing is to be constructed to deprive any director of any right for contribution from any other director or other person.

Any repeal or modification of this Article shall be prospective only and shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director of the Association existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE 9 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS/EXECUTIVE BOARD

The business and affairs of the Association shall be conducted, managed, and controlled by a Board of Directors (Executive Board). The initial Executive Board shall consist of three persons. The number of Executive Board Members may be changed, and the qualifications of directors, method of election, term of office, and removal and filling of vacancies shall be as set forth in the Bylaws.

The Declarant of the Community has additional rights and qualifications as provided under the Declaration, including the right to appoint Members of the Executive Board during the period of Declarant control.

ARTICLE 10 -- AMENDMENT

Amendment of these Articles requires the assent of at least a majority of the votes in the Association. No amendment to these Articles of Incorporation shall be contrary to or inconsistent with the provisions of the Declaration or apply to or treat any one Owner differently than all Owners.

ARTICLE 11 -- DISSOLUTION

In the event of the dissolution of the Association as a corporation, either voluntary or involuntarily by the Members, by operation of law or otherwise, then the assets of the Association shall be deemed to be owned by the Members at the date of dissolution, as part of their Lots.

ARTICLE 12 -- INTERPRETATION

The terms and provisions of the Declaration are incorporated by reference when necessary to interpret, construe, or clarify the provisions of these Articles. In the event of conflict, the terms of the Declaration shall control over these Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws. In the case of conflict between the provisions of these Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws, these Articles of Incorporation shall control.

ARTICLE 13 – INCORPORATOR

this 14th day of March , 2024.

The name and address of the Incorporator of the Association and its registered agent is Alisha Janes of Winter Park Housing Authority at such address 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482.

For the purposes of forming this corporation under the laws of the State of Colorado, the

undersigned, as the incorporator of this Association, has executed these Articles of Incorporation

Alisha Janes
The name and mailing address of the individual who causes this document to be delivered for filing, and to whom the Secretary of State may deliver notice if filing of this document is refused is: Alisha Janes of Winter Park Housing Authority, 50 Vasquez Road, Winter Park, CO 80482.
CONSENT OF REGISTERED AGENT
The undersigned hereby consents to the appointment as registered agent for the Association.
Alisha Janes
STATE OF COLORADO)
) ss. COUNTY OF GRAND)
The foregoing was acknowledged before me by Alisha Janes on this <u>14</u> day of <u>14.24</u> , 20 <u>2.4</u>
Witness my hand and official seal. My commission expires: NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF COLORADO NOTARY ID 20134049847 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES AUGUST 16, 2025

Ind	avin	~ ก	otes:
II N	CAILL	u 11	ULCO.

Index in:

- Grantee's index under "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II" and "Hideaway Junction Phase II" (the
 names of the Community) and "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc." (the name of the Association)
- Grantor's index under "Winter Park Housing Authority" and the names of each person executing this declaration.

Declaration for Hideaway Junction Phase II

A limited expense planned community subject only to Sections § 38-33.3-105 through § 38-33.3-107 of the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1.	SUBMISSION/DEFINED TERMS	5
SECTION 1.1	SUBMISSION OF REAL ESTATE	5
SECTION 1.2	EXEMPTION FROM CCIOA	6
Section 1.3	DEFINED TERMS	6
ARTICLE 2.	DESCRIPTION OF REAL ESTATE, LOTS AND COMMON AREAS	10
SECTION 2.1	DESCRIPTION AND TYPE	10
SECTION 2.2	NUMBER OF LOTS	10
SECTION 2.3	IDENTIFICATION OF LOTS/LOT DESCRIPTIONS	
SECTION 2.4	INITIAL COMMON AREAS AND/OR LIMITED COMMON AREAS	11
Section 2.5	RADON NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER	
SECTION 2.6	CONCRETE FINISHES	11
ARTICLE 3.	THE ASSOCIATION	11
Section 3.1	MEMBERSHIP	11
SECTION 3.2	GENERAL PURPOSES, POWERS, AUTHORITY AND RESTRICTIONS ON AND OF THE ASSOCIATION	12
SECTION 3.3	ASSOCIATION AGREEMENTS	13
SECTION 3.4	PROMULGATION OF RULES	13
Section 3.5	GOVERNANCE POLICIES	
SECTION 3.6	INDEMNIFICATION	14
SECTION 3.7	APPOINTMENT/ REMOVAL OF OFFICERS AND BOARD MEMBERS DURING THE PERIOD OF DECLARANT CONTROL.	14
Section 3.8	INITIAL OWNER ELECTIONS OF BOARD MEMBERS	
SECTION 3.9	DECLARANT MAY RELINQUISH RIGHTS	14
ARTICLE 4.	EASEMENTS	15
SECTION 4.1	EASEMENT FOR UTILITIES	
Section 4.2	EASEMENT FOR ENCROACHMENTS	
SECTION 4.3	EASEMENTS FOR THE ASSOCIATION AND EACH OWNER	
SECTION 4.4	EMERGENCY EASEMENTS	
Section 4.5	PERIMETER EASEMENTS	
Section 4.6	WARRANTY, REPAIR AND CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT	
SECTION 4.7	OWNERS' EASEMENTS OF ENJOYMENT	
Section 4.8	DELEGATION OF USE	17
ARTICLE 5.	MAINTENANCE	17
SECTION 5.1	SCOPE OF ASSOCIATION MAINTENANCE	
SECTION 5.2	ASSOCIATION'S MAINTENANCE AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES	17
Section 5.3	OWNER MAINTENANCE AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES	17
ARTICLE 6.	COVENANT FOR ASSESSMENTS	18
SECTION 6.1	CREATION OF ASSOCIATION LIEN AND PERSONAL OBLIGATION TO PAY ASSESSMENTS	
SECTION 6.2	DECLARANT ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION	
Section 6.3	PURPOSE OF COMMON EXPENSE ASSESSMENTS	
Section 6.4	APPORTIONMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES	
Section 6.5	DEFAULT ASSESSMENTS	
Section 6.6	MAXIMUM ANNUAL ASSESSMENT/COMMENCEMENT OF COMMON EXPENSE ASSESSMENTS	
SECTION 6.7	LIEN DRIORITIES	21

SECTION 6.8	EFFECT OF NON-PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS		
SECTION 6.9	NO WAIVER OR ABANDONMENT		
SECTION 6.10	THIS DECLARATION IS NOTICE OF ASSOCIATION LIEN RIGHTS		
SECTION 6.11	FEES AT CLOSING	22	
ARTICLE 7.	RESTRICTIONS ON USE, ALIENATION AND OCCUPANCY	22	
SECTION 7.1	USE RESTRICTIONS	22	
SECTION 7.2	USE AND OCCUPANCY	23	
SECTION 7.3	LEASING. THE	23	
SECTION 7.4	ENCUMBRANCES AND MORTGAGES ON LOTS		
SECTION 7.5	OWNERS' ACKNOWLEDGMENT	24	
SECTION 7.6	LANDSCAPING		
Section 7.8	RESTRICTIONS ON FENCES AND SIMILAR STRUCTURES		
Section 7.9	HOT TUB RESTRICTIONS.	24	
SECTION 7.10	RESTRICTION ON SIGNS, ADVERTISING AND DEVICES		
SECTION 7.11	PET COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS		
SECTION 7.12	RESTRICTION ON FURTHER SUBDIVISION	25	
SECTION 7.13	VEHICULAR PARKING, GARAGES, STORAGE, RV'S AND REPAIRS	25	
SECTION 7.14	PROHIBITIONS ON INCREASED COSTS, DAMAGE, NUISANCE AND NOISE	26	
SECTION 7.15	NOXIOUS AND OTHER ACTIVITIES	26	
SECTION 7.16	EASEMENTS PROTECTED	26	
SECTION 7.17	No Waste	26	
Section 7.18	USE OF COMMON AREAS	26	
SECTION 7.19	FAILURE TO MAINTAIN		
SECTION 7.20	RUBBISH, TRASH, AND GARBAGE	27	
SECTION 7.21	No Unsightliness	27	
SECTION 7.22	ANTENNAS AND SATELLITE DISHES	27	
SECTION 7.23	SOLAR PANELS OR SIMILAR INSTALLATIONS	27	
SECTION 7.24	REASONABLE RIGHTS TO DEVELOP	27	
SECTION 7.25	INDIVIDUAL OWNER RIGHTS OF ENFORCEMENT	27	
Section 7.26	DECLARANT'S EXEMPTION AND USES	28	
SECTION 7.27	MAXIMUM SALES PRICE AND OTHER RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER.	28	
ARTICLE 8.	ARCHITECTURAL APPROVAL	28	
SECTION 8.1	APPROVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED; RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS	28	
SECTION 8.2	SUBMISSIONS OF PLANS	28	
SECTION 8.3	CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL		
SECTION 8.4	DESIGN GUIDELINES		
SECTION 8.5	DESIGN STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES	29	
SECTION 8.6	Design Review Fee		
SECTION 8.7	DECISION OF COMMITTEE		
SECTION 8.8	PROSECUTION OF WORK AFTER APPROVAL		
SECTION 8.9	INSPECTION OF WORK		
SECTION 8.10	NOTICE OF NONCOMPLIANCE		
SECTION 8.11	CORRECTION OF NONCOMPLIANCE	30	
SECTION 8.12	NO IMPLIED WAIVER OR ESTOPPEL	30	
SECTION 8.13	COMMITTEE POWER TO GRANT VARIANCES		
SECTION 8.14	MEETINGS OF COMMITTEE	30	
SECTION 8.15	Non-Liability of Committee Action		
ARTICLE 9.	INSURANCE	31	
SECTION 9.1	INSURANCE ON THE LOTS		
SECTION 9.1 SECTION 9.2	ASSOCIATION'S INSURANCE		
JECHUN J.Z	MUDUCINI D INDUINICE		

Section 9.3	MISCELLANEOUS TERMS GOVERNING INSURANCE CARRIED BY THE ASSOCIATION	32
Section 9.4	Insurance Premium	
Section 9.5	Insurance Review	
SECTION 9.6	CLAIMS AND ADJUSTMENTS BY THE ASSOCIATION	32
Section 9.7	DUTY TO REPAIR	33
Section 9.8	CONDEMNATION AND PROPERTY INSURANCE ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS	
SECTION 9.9	RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT OF DEDUCTIBLE AMOUNT	33
Section 9.10	DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OF RESIDENCES ON LOTS	
ARTICLE 10.	ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION – EXCLUDED CLAIMS	
SECTION 10.1	PURPOSE/SCOPE OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION	33
SECTION 10.2	DIRECT COMMUNICATION	33
SECTION 10.3	MEDIATION	33
SECTION 10.4	PRE-CONDITIONS TO ARBITRATIONS BY THE ASSOCIATION OR ANY OWNER	34
SECTION 10.5	ARBITRATION PROCESS AND PROCEDURES	34
Section 10.6	SOLE REMEDY; WAIVER OF JUDICIAL RIGHTS	35
SECTION 10.7	BINDING NATURE; APPLICABLE LAW	36
SECTION 10.8	LOCATION	36
SECTION 10.9	PAYMENT OF EXPENSES UNDER THIS ARTICLE	
SECTION 10.10	AMENDMENT OF THIS ARTICLE	36
ARTICLE 11.	AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION	36
SECTION 11.1	AMENDMENT OF DECLARATION BY OWNERS	36
SECTION 11.2	TECHNICAL, CLERICAL, TYPOGRAPHICAL OR CLARIFICATION AMENDMENT	36
SECTION 11.3	AMENDMENT REQUIRED BY MORTGAGE AGENCIES	
SECTION 11.4	RECORDING OF AMENDMENTS	37
SECTION 11.5	APPROVAL REQUIRED FOR CERTAIN AMENDMENTS	
SECTION 11.6	ASSOCIATION CERTIFICATION	37
SECTION 11.7	EXPENSES	38
SECTION 11.8	TERMINATION	38
ARTICLE 12.	GENERAL PROVISIONS	38
SECTION 12.1	ENFORCEMENT	
Section 12.2	SECURITY	39
SECTION 12.3	RIGHT TO PAY TAXES AND INSURANCE PREMIUMS	39
SECTION 12.4	SEVERABILITY	39
SECTION 12.5	TERM OF DECLARATION	39
Section 12.6	INTERPRETATION	39
SECTION 12.7	SINGULAR INCLUDES THE PLURAL	
SECTION 12.8	CAPTIONS	39
ARTICLE 13.	DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS OF DECLARANT	39
SECTION 13.1	DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AND SPECIAL DECLARANT RIGHTS	
SECTION 13.2	ADDITIONAL RESERVED RIGHTS	41
SECTION 13.3	RIGHTS TRANSFERRABLE/RIGHTS TRANSFERRED	
SECTION 13.4	NO FURTHER AUTHORIZATIONS NEEDED	
SECTION 13.5	INTERPRETATION	
SECTION 13.6	CONSTRUCTION	
	RIPTION OF THE REAL ESTATE	
	PTIONS TO TITLE	
	OCATED INTERESTS	
	MON AREAS	
EXHIBIT F - ADD	ITIONAL OR ANNEXABLE PROPERTY	48

Ехнівіт F	- LIMITED COMMON A	AREAS	49
-----------	--------------------	-------	----

Declaration for

Hideaway Junction Phase II

a Limited Expense Exempt Planned Community under the Act

This Declaration is made by Winter Park Housing Authority, a municipal housing authority (the "Declarant").

Recitals:

- A. Declarant is the owner of certain real property located in Grand County, State of Colorado, described as set forth in *Exhibit A* attached and by reference made a part of this Declaration.
- B. The Declarant desires to create an affordable housing and planned residential Community on the real property described in *Exhibit A* in which portions of the real property are designated for residential use and in which portions may be designated as Common Areas and/or as Limited Common Areas.
- C. The purposes of the Declarant and of this Declaration include, but are not limited to the following:
 - to create the planned community known as Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, which Community is also known as Hideaway Junction Phase II;
 - to create a limited expense community exempt from CCIOA except for C.R.S. 38-33.3-105 through 38-33.3-107;
 - to develop, market and sell affordable housing to qualified residents in the Town of Winter Park, Colorado;
 - to benefit subsequent purchasers of the Lots by limiting the purchase and sale price of Lots in the Community;
 - to preserve and enhance the values of the Lots in the Community; and
 - to serve the purposes set forth in this Declaration and other Governing Documents of the Community.
- D. The Declarant has caused the "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.," a Colorado nonprofit corporation ("Association"), to be incorporated under the laws of the State of Colorado for the purpose of exercising the functions as set forth in this Declaration and as to which each Owner is a member.

ARTICLE 1. Submission/Defined Terms

Section 1.1 Submission of Real Estate.

(a) Declarant submits the real property described in Exhibit A, together with all

exceptions to title described in *Exhibit B*, including easements, rights, and appurtenances and the improvements erected or to be erected (collectively, the "Real Estate") to the terms and conditions of this Declaration.

(b) The Declarant declares that:

- (i) all of the Real Estate is held or sold, and conveyed subject to the easements, restrictions, covenants, and conditions in this Declaration;
- (ii) this Declaration is made for the purpose of protecting the value and desirability of the Real Estate;
- (iii) this Declaration is made to be subject to CCIOA only to the extent CCIOA applies to limited expense communities under C.R.S. 38-33.3-116;
 - (iv) this Declaration runs with the Real Estate;
- (v) this Declaration is binding on all parties having any right, title or interest in the Real Estate, their heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns; and
 - (vi) this Declaration inures to the benefit and burden of each Owner.

Section 1.2 Exemption from CCIOA.

- (a) The Community is a limited expense community under C.R.S. 38-33.3-116 because it is (i) a planned community created after July 1, 1998, (ii) all Lots are for residential purposes, and (iii) the Declaration limits the annual average common expense liability of each Lot, exclusive of optional user fees and insurance premiums paid by the Association, to no more than \$400.00, as adjusted pursuant to CCIOA.
- (b) As a limited expense residential planned community under C.R.S. 38-33.3-116, the Declarant declares that the Community, the Real Estate, the Lots, the Residences, the Owners and all other persons and property subject to this Declaration are exempt from and not subject to CCIOA except for § 38-33.3-105 through § 38-33.3-107 of CCIOA.
- **Section 1.3** <u>Defined Terms</u>. Each capitalized term in this Declaration has the meaning specified or used in this Declaration, as defined below, or as the context provides or requires otherwise.
- (a) <u>Allocated Interests</u>. The Common Expense liability and votes in the Community / Association allocated to each Lot pursuant to the terms of this Declaration and as initially set forth in *Exhibit C*. The Allocated Interests for each Lot is a fraction, the numerator of which is one and the denominator of which is the total number of all Lots in the Community. Each Lot is allocated one vote in the Association.
- (b) <u>Area of Common Responsibility</u>. Common Areas, together with those easements or other areas or matters which by the terms of the Governing Documents or other

applicable covenant, contract or agreement with any Person, including, the Town of Winter Park and/or the Declarant, are or will become the responsibility of the Association.

- (c) <u>Articles of Incorporation</u>. The Articles of Incorporation for the Association filed with the Colorado Secretary of State, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- (d) <u>Association</u>. Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation, and its successors and assigns.
 - (e) <u>Bylaws</u>. The Bylaws of the Association, as amended from time to time.
- (f) <u>Common Areas</u>. Property owned by the Association, if any, within the Community and any easements for the benefit of the Association. The Common Areas exclude the Lots and Residences.
- (g) <u>Community-Wide Standard</u>. The standard of conduct, maintenance, or other activity generally prevailing within the Community. This standard may be more specifically determined by the Board of Directors.
- (h) <u>CCIOA or Act</u>. The Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, C.R.S. § 38-33.3-101, et seq., as it may be amended from time to time. The Act does not apply to the Community except as provided for in section 38-33.3-116 of the Act.
- (i) <u>Common Expenses</u>. As used in this Declaration, this term means the expenses and liabilities incurred or anticipated to be incurred by the Association including, but not limited to, those expenses incurred for maintaining, repairing, replacing, and operating the Common Areas and/or Areas of Common Responsibility, allocations to reserves, and for fulfilling any of the Association's powers and duties.
- (j) <u>Community</u>. Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, also sometimes known as Hideaway Junction Phase II, is the Community created by this Declaration.
- (k) <u>Declaration</u>. Collective term for all promises, restrictions, reservations, conditions, terms, easements, and rights-of-way specifically set forth or referenced in this Declaration and set forth in the Governing Documents, as the same may be adopted and amended from time to time and including any maps or plats recorded in connection with the Community. Each and every covenant is to be given the same force and effect at law or equity without regard to which Governing Document in which it is set forth.
- (I) <u>Declaration of Restrictive Covenant for Affordable Housing or Affordable Housing Declaration.</u> That Declaration of Restrictive Covenant for Affordable Housing recorded with Grand County Clerk and Recorder at Reception No. ______ to which the Real Estate is subject. In the event of a conflict between this Declaration and the Affordable Housing Declaration, the Affordable Housing Declaration will control.
- (m) <u>Declarant</u>. The Declarant named in this Declaration and/or any successor and/or assignee designated by written notice or assignment executed by a Declarant and by the

transferee and recorded (to the extent any rights or powers of the Declarant are transferred or assigned to such transferee).

- (n) <u>Development Rights or Special Declarant Rights</u>. The rights of a declarant expressly stated in this Declaration and the rights of Declarant to control the Board of the Association during Period of Declarant Control.
- (o) Excluded Claim(s). Any claim in a civil action, lawsuit or arbitration (other than the arbitration allowed for in this Declaration) related to construction or design of the Residences, grading, landscape, the Common Areas, drainage within the Community or any Improvements constructed or designed by Declarant or the following persons: a contractor, subcontractor, developer, builder, architect, engineer or inspector, or any of these affiliates of their persons or persons responsible for any part of the construction or design of a Residence or the Community, including officers, directors, shareholders, members, managers, employees or servants of these persons. Excluded Claim also includes any claims against the Declarant or its affiliates or agents or employees of Declarant or its affiliates.
- (p) <u>Executive Board, Board of Directors or Board</u>. Collectively, these terms refer to the body designated in this Declaration to act on behalf of the Association, within the limits set forth in this Declaration.
- (q) <u>First Mortgage</u>. Any mortgage, deed to secure debt, deed of trust, or other transfer or conveyance for the purpose of securing the performance of an obligation that is not subordinate to any other lien or encumbrance, expect liens for taxes or other liens given priority by statute.
- (r) <u>First Mortgagee</u>. A bank, savings and loan association, insurance company, real estate mortgage investment trust, pension fund, an agency of the United States Government (including "VA" or "FHA"), mortgage banker, the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"), the Federal Residence Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") or any other lender generally recognized as an institutional lender, or the Declarant, holding a First Mortgage encumbering a Lot or Lots, or any insurer or guarantor of a First Mortgage.
- (s) <u>Governing Documents</u>. Collective reference to those documents which govern the operation of the Community and the Association, including: (i) the Articles of Incorporation, (ii) the Bylaws, (iii) the rules, regulations, governance policies and procedures (if any), (iv) the Plat and any Maps, (v) this Declaration, and (vi) Affordable Housing Declaration, as one or more of the same may be amended from time to time.
- (t) Improvements. Every structure and all appurtenances thereto of every type and kind including, but not limited to, buildings, outbuildings, fixtures, utilities, patios, hot tubs, garages, doghouses, mailboxes, aerials, antennas, roads, driveways, parking areas, fences, screening walls, retaining walls, stairs, decks, landscaping, windbreaks, plantings, planted trees and shrubs, poles, signs, exterior air conditioning units, pumps, wells, tanks, solar collectors, reservoirs, pipes, lines, meters, towers and other facilities used in connection with water sewer, gas, electricity, solar energy, telephone, regular or cable television or other utilities.

- (u) <u>Lot.</u> Any of the separately numbered lots or plots shown upon any recorded subdivision Plat of the Community, together with all appurtenances and improvements, with the exception of the Common Area and any public streets or rights-of-way.
- (v) Owner. A record titleholder that holds fee title to a Lot, including the Declarant.
- (w) Period of Declarant Control. The period of time commencing on the date of recordation of this Declaration and expiring on the earlier of: 60 days after conveyance of 75% of the maximum number of Lots that the Declarant may create (as allowed under this Declaration) to Owners other than the Declarant, two years after the last conveyance of a Lot by the Declarant in the ordinary course of business, two years after any right to add new Lots was last exercised or as surrendered, in writing, by the Declarant.
- (x) <u>Person</u>. Any individual, corporation, limited liability company, firm, association, partnership, trust, or other legal entity.
- (y) <u>Plat</u>. That certain subdivision plat or plats for all or any part of the Real Estate recorded in the real property records for Grand County, Colorado, as the same may be amended from time to time. The "notes" on the various sheets comprising a Plat are incorporated by this reference and are fully enforceable as though set forth in this Declaration.
- (z) <u>Qualified Buyers or Qualified Residents</u>. The terms have the same meaning as set forth in the Affordable Housing Declaration and refers to the Town, WPHA, and/or natural person(s) within a household who meets the following requirements:
 - Currently working or been hired to work in Grand County as an employee or sole proprietor who is actively involved in his or her own business.
 - Works a minimum of 32 hours per week, or at least 1,200 hours annually for a Grand County employer. At the time of the purchase of the Lot, the Person must earn no more than 300% of the Grand County Area Median Income as set by the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (three times the 100% income associated with the appropriate household size) with Cumulative Assets not exceeding 200% of the allowed annual income. For purposes of this paragraph "Cumulative Assets" shall mean the total financial assets of the Person less an amount equal to: (i) the cash downpayment applied to the purchase of the Lot; plus (ii) any agerestricted retirement assets up to the following amounts: (x) for Persons under 40 years of age up to \$90,000, (y) for Persons between 40 and 55 years of age up to \$165,000, and (z) for Persons over 55 years of age up to \$330,000 (as these limits may be modified by WPHA from time to time)
 - Does not own any other residential real estate or a mobile home as rental property at the time they occupy one of the Lots except to the extent permitted in the Affordable Housing Declaration. For purposes of this Section, if a person owns vacant land during the time of ownership

- of a Lot and improves that vacant land with a residence, the person will be deemed to "own other residential real estate" when that Person receives a Certificate of Occupancy for that residence.
- Upon purchase of a Lot, the purchaser shall occupy the Lot as their primary residence.
- Household size must be no fewer than one less than the number of bedrooms in the property (i.e. for 3-bedroom home households must be comprised of 2 or more people, with at least one member meeting workforce requirements upon the time of sale). The household size must be met upon purchase and the following 5 years. Exemptions may be considered by the Winter Park Housing Authority.
- (aa) Real Estate. The property described in *Exhibit A*, together with all easements, rights, and appurtenances and the improvements erected or to be erected on the Real Estate, together with all easements, rights, and appurtenances. The Real Estate is subject to Declarant's Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights as provided for in this Declaration. All exceptions to title to which the Community is subject to as of the date of this Declaration are recited in *Exhibit B*.
- (bb) <u>Related User</u>. Any person who resides with an Owner within a Residence; is a guest or invitee of an Owner; is an occupant or tenant of a Lot; and any family member, guest, invitee or cohabitant.
 - (cc) Residence. The dwelling unit, home or residence constructed on a Lot.
- (dd) <u>Rules</u>. All rules, regulations, policies, and regulations, including by way of example only, use restrictions, governance policies, enforcement procedures and any rules, guidelines or requirements enacted by the Executive Board pursuant to this Declaration, the Bylaws and as allowed by law.
 - (ee) Town. Town of Winter Park, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation.
- (ff) <u>Winter Park Housing Authority ("WPHA")</u>. WPHA is the original Declarant under this Declaration and the declarant under the Declaration of Restrictive Covenant For Affordable Housing applicable to this Community.

ARTICLE 2. Description of Real Estate, Lots and Common Areas

- Section 2.1 <u>Description and Type</u>. The Community is a planned residential community located in Grand County, State of Colorado. The Real Estate of the Community is described in *Exhibit A*. All exceptions to title to which the Community is presently subject are recited in *Exhibit B*. In addition, the Community may be subject to other easements or licenses granted pursuant to the Governing Documents, or granted or allowed by authority in any recorded document or established under this Declaration.
- **Section 2.2** <u>Number of Lots</u>. The initial number of Lots is 20. The maximum number of Lots is 50 with prior approval of the Town.

Section 2.3 <u>Identification of Lots/Lot Descriptions</u>. Every contract for sale, and every deed, lease, mortgage, or other another legal instrument may legally describe a Lot by its identifying number as shown on the Plat.

Section 2.4 <u>Initial Common Areas and/or Limited Common Areas</u>.

- (a) There are no initial Common Areas or Limited Common Areas.
- (b) Common Areas or Limited Common Areas may be added or modified, as allowed under this Declaration.
- (c) Any Common Areas and Limited Common Areas may be regulated by the Association, including the determination of the Board to use the Common Areas in manners deemed by the Board to be consistent with the purposes of this Declaration.
- Section 2.5 Radon Notice and Disclaimer. Owners acknowledge that Declarant and this Declaration disclose that radon gas contamination is a naturally-occurring threat throughout the Rocky Mountain region and that potential radon contamination in a Residence can be mitigated through modifications to a Residence. By acquiring a Lot, each Owner acknowledges they have assumed all risk for any potential radon contamination and that should radon contamination be discovered by an Owner or resident at any time it is the Owner or resident's sole obligation to correct the radon contamination. The Declarant and the Association has made no investigation to determine whether a Residence is affected by radon. Each Owner and resident acknowledges that neither the Declarant or the Association has made any representations or warranties, express or implied, concerning the presence or absence or radon within any Residence or the soils beneath or adjacent to any Residence. Each Owner releases the Declarant and the Association from any and all liabilities and claims with respect to radon gas.

Section 2.6 Concrete Finishes.

- (a) Each Owner acknowledges and accepts that there may be concrete finishes on improvements of or serving a Residence and that those areas, as constructed with concrete, will settle and crack.
- (b) When natural materials like concrete are used, natural variability, not uniformity, is to be expected as the surface of the concrete matures. Each Owner and the Association waives and releases Declarant from variability in concrete finishes.
- (c) Declarant and the Association are not responsible for and do not warranty interior or exterior concrete, including, but not limited to, cracking, discoloration, spalling, settlement, heaving and/or movement.

ARTICLE 3. The Association

Section 3.1 <u>Membership</u>. Every person who is an Owner of a fee interest in any Lot which is subject to this Declaration is a member of the Association. Membership is appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot. Ownership of such Lot is the sole

qualification for such membership. Where more than one person holds an interest in any Lot, all such persons are members. Members may be of such classes as provided for in the Bylaws.

Section 3.2 <u>General Purposes, Powers, Authority and Restrictions on and of the</u> Association.

- (a) The Association, acting solely through its Executive Board, is to perform functions and manage the Community including its business affairs as provided in the Governing Documents so as to protect the value and desirability of the Lots and the Community and to further the interests of the Owners and Related Users. The powers of the Executive Board shall include without limitation, the power to:
 - (i) Adopt and amend bylaws and rules and regulations;
 - (ii) Adopt and amend budgets;
- (iii) Hire and terminate managing agents and other employees, agents, and independent contractors;
- (iv) Institute, defend, or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings in its own name on behalf of itself or two or more unit owners on matters affecting the Community;
 - (v) Make contracts and incur liabilities;
- (vi) Regulate the use, maintenance, repair, replacement and modification of the Common Areas, if any;
- (vii) Cause addition improvements to be made as part of the Common Areas, if any;
- (viii) Acquire, hold, encumber and convey in its own name any right, title, or interest to real or personal property, except that any conveyance of the Common Areas will be by Owners holding 67% of the total Association votes;
- (ix) Grant easements, leases, licenses, and concessions through or over the Common Areas;
- (x) Impose and receive any payments, fees or charges for the use, rental or operation of the Common Areas;
- (xi) Impose charges for late payments of assessments, recover reasonable attorney fees and other legal costs for collection of assessments and other actions to enforce the power of the Association, regardless of whether or not suit was initiated, and after notice and opportunity to be heard, levy reasonable fines for violations of the Governing Documents;

- (xii) Impose reasonable charges for the preparation and recordation of amendments to the Declaration or statements of unpaid assessments;
- (xiii) Borrow funds and assign its right to future income, including the right to receive common expense assessments;
- (xiv) Provide for the indemnification of its officers and executive board and maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance;
- (xv) Exercise any other powers conferred by this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and or Bylaws;
- (xvi) Exercise all other powers as may be exercised in this state by legal entities of the same type as the Association; and
- (xvii) Exercise any other powers necessary and proper for the governance and operation of the Association.
- (b) Any purchaser of a Lot is deemed to have assented to, ratified and approved this Declaration and the terms of this Declaration.
- (c) The Association is governed by the Governing Documents and other applicable laws.
- (d) The Executive Board may, by written resolution, delegate authority to a manager, managing agent or bookkeeper for the Association, provided no such delegation relieves the Board of final responsibility.
- (e) The Association may not commence an arbitration on an Excluded Claim without first complying with the terms of this Declaration.
- Section 3.3 <u>Association Agreements</u>. Any agreement for professional management of or bookkeeping for the Community or any contract providing for services of the Declarant may not exceed one year. Any such agreement must provide for termination by either party without cause and without payment of a termination fee or penalty upon 30 days' written notice. The Association is not bound either directly or indirectly to contracts or leases (including management contracts) entered into during the Period of Declarant Control unless the Association is provided with a right of termination of any such contract or lease without cause, which is exercisable without penalty at any time after at least 30 days' notice to the other party to the contract.

Section 3.4 Promulgation of Rules.

- (a) Subject to the terms of this Declaration, the Executive Board may adopt, amend, repeal and enforce Rules and impose fines for violations of the Governing Documents.
- (b) The Executive Board may proceed with Rules as it deems desirable with respect to the interpretation and implementation of this Declaration, the operation of the

Association, and the Lots in accordance with the following:

- (i) The Rules are to be reasonable and uniformly applied.
- (ii) Copies of the currently effective Rules must be made available to each Owner upon request.
- (iii) Each Owner must comply with the Rules and see that Related Users comply with the Rules.
- (iv) The Rules have the same force and effect as if they were stated in full in this Declaration.
- (v) In the event of conflict between the Rules and this Declaration, this Declaration prevails, but only to the extent that such rule or regulation invalidates a specific provision in this Declaration.
- Section 3.5 <u>Governance Policies</u>. The Association may adopt and maintain governance policies, to guide governance and operation of the Community and the Association. The governance policies may be a part of the Rules.
- Section 3.6 <u>Indemnification</u>. To the full extent permitted by law, all officers, members of the Executive Board and committee members of the Association shall be and are indemnified by the Owners and the Association. This indemnification extends to all expenses and liabilities including attorneys' fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon them in any proceeding to which they may be a party, or in which they may become involved, by reason of being or having been an officer or member of the Executive Board, or committee member or any settlements. This indemnification applies whether or not they hold such position at the time such expenses are incurred. In the event such person is adjudged guilty of willful misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of their duties, this indemnification will then no longer apply and such person is to reimburse the Association.
- Section 3.7 <u>Appointment/ Removal of Officers and Board Members during the Period of Declarant Control</u>. The Declarant has the power and authority, pursuant to this Declaration and the other Governing Documents, to appoint and remove officers and members of the Executive Board. This authority extends through the Period of Declarant Control.
- Section 3.8 <u>Initial Owner Elections of Board Members</u>. Initial or subsequent Owners will elect an Owner controlled Board upon expiration of the Period of Declarant Control. Subsequent to transition of control, Board positions are to be filled by vote of the Owners in accordance with the Bylaws.
- Section 3.9 <u>Declarant May Relinquish Rights</u>. At any time prior to the end of the Period of Declarant Control, the Declarant may relinquish the right to appoint and remove Executive Board members as may require certain specific actions of the Executive Board to be approved by the Declarant.

ARTICLE 4. Easements

Section 4.1 <u>Easement for Utilities</u>.

- (a) A blanket easement upon, across, over and under the Lots are shown upon the recorded plat of the Community, and other easements as may be established pursuant to the provisions of this Declaration or as may be granted by the Board of Directors of the Association.
- (b) Declarant hereby reserves onto itself (for as long as Declarant owns property within the Community), the Association, and the designees of each, non-exclusive access and maintenance easements upon, across, over and under all of the Property to the extent reasonably necessary for the purpose of replacing, repairing, and maintaining cable television systems, master television antenna systems, broadband, security and similar systems, electricity, irrigation, sewer, drainage and/or other utility lines/utilities.
- (c) Utilities serving any Lot, Lots, or Common Areas may pass through another Lot, which is burdened with this easement.
- (d) By virtue of these easements, it is expressly permissible for the Declarant or the Association or the utility companies or municipalities supplying such utility service to erect and maintain the necessary equipment within the Real Estate and to affix, repair and maintain equipment, water and sewer pipes, gas, electric and telephone wires, circuits, conduits and meters.
- (e) These easements and related obligations and duties are appurtenant to and pass with title to each Lot.
- (f) Declarant has the reserved right to establish easements to serve the Community of the Real Estate or the properties described in *Exhibit A*. In this regard, any easements given of the Declarant subsequent to this Declaration or any Plat being recorded are confirmed and expressly included in the Community and made subject to this Declaration.
- Section 4.2 <u>Easement for Encroachments</u>. If any portion of a Lot or Residence encroaches upon any Common Area or adjoining Lot, a valid easement for such encroachment and for the maintenance of same, shall and does exist. Similarly, if any portion of the Common Areas encroaches upon a Lot, a valid easement for the encroachment and for the maintenance of same shall and does exist. Such encroachments and easements are not considered or determined to be encumbrances either on the Common Areas or any Lots affected. Further, such easements are deemed to run with the land upon which the improvements may be found.
- Section 4.3 <u>Easements for the Association and Each Owner</u>. Each Lot is subject to an easement in favor of the Declarant or Association (including its agents, employees and contractors) and to the adjacent Owner, to allow for their performance of obligations under this Declaration or under any of the other Governing Documents.
- Section 4.4 <u>Emergency Easements</u>. A nonexclusive easement for ingress and egress is granted to all police, sheriff, fire protection, ambulance, and other similar emergency agencies or

persons, now or subsequently servicing the Community, to enter upon any part of the Community in the performance of their duties.

- Section 4.5 <u>Perimeter Easements</u>. Easements are given by all Owners to the Declarant and to the Association for the placement or existence of any perimeter fences and/or walls, if any, and for any boundary improvements. These easements include the right and easement, but not the obligation, of the Association to maintain either the perimeter wall on a Lot or any boundary line improvement or wall.
- Section 4.6 <u>Warranty, Repair and Construction Easement</u>. The Declarant and its assignees has the right to perform warranty work, repairs and complete construction on a Lot, after conveyance to an Owner, after notice and with reasonable coordination with the Owner or Related User. This includes the right to control such work and repairs, along with a right of access, until completion. These rights of Declarant are not to be construed as Development Rights or Special Declarant Rights, but rather, as rights based on common law.

Section 4.7 Owners' Easements of Enjoyment.

- (a) Every Owner has a right and easement for access to their Lot by this Declaration and through the Association.
- (b) Every Owner also has the right and easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Areas of this Community, if any.
- (c) These easements are appurtenant to and passes with the title to every Lot, subject to the following provisions:
- (i) The right of the Association to promulgate and publish Rules with which each Owner and their Related Users must strictly comply.
- (ii) The right of the Association to suspend the voting rights for any period during which any assessment against their Lot remains unpaid; and for a period not to exceed sixty days for any infraction of the Rules.
- (iii) The right, power and authority of the Association to grant any easement, right-of-way, license, lease, dedication, transfer or conveyance or grant of any similar interest affecting the Common Areas, to the extent permitted by the Governing Documents.
- (iv) The right of the Association to close or limit the use of the Common Areas while maintaining, repairing and making replacements.
- (v) The rights of the Association as set forth in this Declaration and other governing documents for the Community.
- (vi) The obligation of the Association to maintain general liability insurance on areas that are or may become Common Areas after those areas are improved by the Declarant and in use by the Owners.

Section 4.8 <u>Delegation of Use</u>. Any Owner may delegate his right of enjoyment to the Common Areas to Related Users.

ARTICLE 5. Maintenance

Section 5.1 Scope of Association Maintenance.

- (a) The Executive Board of the Association determines the specifications, scope, extent, nature and parameters of the Association's maintenance responsibilities.
- (b) The Executive Board of the Association may also approve and establish a maintenance and/or insurance chart for the Community to specify maintenance and insurance responsibilities and allocations.

Section 5.2 Association's Maintenance and Other Responsibilities.

- (a) The Association is responsible for maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of any Common Areas and any other portions of the Area of Common Responsibility.
- (b) The Association may maintain other property that it does not own, including, but not limited to, property dedicated to the public, if the Board determines that such maintenance is necessary or desirable to maintain the Community-Wide Standard, subject to approval of the Town. The Association may also enter into cost-sharing agreements with neighboring associations or other Persons for shared improvements, use of an improvement, preservation of wetlands, open space or other public improvements, if the Board determines that such arrangements are beneficial to the Community and/or is otherwise required by the Town.
- (c) The Association will maintain and be responsible for trash and other services as may be provided by the Association, as allowed by this Declaration or as determined by the Board.
- (d) The Association will maintain any and all pipes, lines, ducts, electrical conduits or other apparatus serving more than one Lot that are not otherwise maintained by the Town or other governmental or quasi-governmental entity.
- (e) The Association may supplement the list of items to be maintained by the Association by resolution or by a maintenance and insurance chart adopted by the Board.
- (f) The Association may, by contract or agreement, assign any of its obligations and responsibilities for maintenance, repair, replacement or administration described in this Section to the Town or other properly qualified Person as determined by the Board.

Section 5.3 Owner Maintenance and Other Responsibilities.

(a) Owners are responsible for the maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of their Lot, including the Residence and any other Improvement located on the Lot.

- (b) Without limiting the foregoing, Owners are specifically responsible for maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of the following items on their Lot, including parts of a Residence or improvements serving a Lot that may encroach or protrude from their Lot onto the Common Areas or other Lots: Residence interiors, all structural components and exterior surfaces of a Residence, foundations, windows, screens, window wells, doors, external vents and flues, lights and bulbs, downspouts, landscaping and any other Improvements whether original installed or installed by an Owner.
- (c) Owners are responsible for all utilities lines and facilities that serve their Lot, including, but not limited to, water and sewer, from the point where the utility only serves their Lot and/or Residence.
- (d) Owners must maintain adequate drainage across and through their Lot, if any. If not adequately maintained, the Association may perform such maintenance as it deems necessary to achieve positive drainage and charge back the costs incurred to the Owner of the Lot as a default assessment and not a Common Expense..
- (e) Owners are responsible for snow removal on the sidewalk(s) bordering their Lots consistent with the Town's snow removal requirements and the Association's Rules, if any. Provided, however, the Association may by written resolution assume responsibility for snow removal on the sidewalks located within the Community and treat it as part of the Common Expense.
- (f) Each Lot and Residence on a Lot must at all times be kept well maintained, in good repair, and replacement, and in a clean, sightly, and wholesome condition consistent with the Community-Wide Standard.
- (g) Trash, litter, junk boxes, containers, bottles, cans, implements, machinery, lumber or other building materials are not permitted to remain exposed upon a Lot so that the same are visible from any neighboring Lot, or any street, except as necessary during a period of construction.
- (h) The Association, and its agents, have the authority to enter, replace, maintain, repair and clean up Lots which do not conform to the provisions of this Section, and to charge and collect from the Owner of that Lot all reasonable costs as a default assessment and not a Common Expense.
- (i) The Association may supplement the list of items to be maintained by Owners by resolution or by a maintenance and insurance chart adopted by the Executive Board.

ARTICLE 6. Covenant for Assessments

Section 6.1 <u>Creation of Association Lien and Personal Obligation to Pay</u> Assessments.

(a) Each Owner is deemed to covenant and agree, by acceptance of a deed to a Lot, whether or not it is so expressed in any such deed or other conveyance, to pay to the

Association assessments for Common Expenses pursuant to the Governing Documents.

- (b) Assessments are the personal obligation of the Owner of each Lot at the time when the assessment or other charges became due.
- (c) The assessments are a charge on each Lot and are a continuing lien upon the Lot against which each such assessment is made.
- (d) If any assessment payable in installments, the full amount of the assessment is a lien from the time the first installment becomes due.
- (e) The personal obligation to pay any past due sums does not pass to a successor in title, unless expressly assumed by them.
- (f) No Owner may become exempt from liability for payment of the assessments by waiver of the use or enjoyment of the Common Areas or by abandonment of the Lot against which the assessments are made.
- (g) All assessments are to be payable in the amounts specified in the levy, and no offsets or reduction are permitted by any reason including, without limitation, any claim that the Association or the Executive Board is not properly exercising its duties and powers under this Declaration.
- Section 6.2 <u>Declarant Assessment Exemption</u>. Until the sale of the first Lot from the Declarant to an Owner that is not the Declarant, the Lots shall be exempt from assessments. Subsequent to the first sale of a Lot, Lots owned by the Declarant shall be exempt from assessment unless and until a certificate of occupancy is issued or the Lot is sold to an Owner other than the Declarant. The Declarant is obligated during any period of time assessments are not imposed on any Lot, to fund any operating deficit of the Association. The Declarant is to fund those deficits upon invoice from the Association.
- Section 6.3 <u>Purpose of Common Expense Assessments</u>. In addition to such other purposes as set forth in other parts of this Declaration, Common Expense assessments are to be used for the purposes of promoting the health, safety, and welfare of Owners and Related Users, and in particular:
 - (a) To enforce all provisions of the Governing Documents;
- (b) To exercise all rights and powers and to discharge all duties and obligations pursuant to the Governing Documents;
- (c) To discharge all expenses incurred by the Association in the alteration, enhancement, construction, reconstruction, repair, maintenance or replacement of the Areas of Common Responsibility;
- (d) To discharge all expenses incurred by the Association in the alteration, maintenance, repair and replacement of any property the Association may elect to so alter,

maintain, repair or replace pursuant to the Governing Documents; and

(e) To fund any operating deficit or reserves the Association deems necessary to meet its financial obligations.

Section 6.4 Apportionment of Common Expenses.

- (a) Except as provided below and elsewhere in this Declaration, all Common Expense assessments are to be assessed against all Lots in an amount equal to the then-current annual estimated expenses (including reserves), subject to the maximum amounts in Section 6.6, of the Association multiplied by the Allocated Interest of each such Lot.
- (b) If any assessment for utilities of the Association are based on use (for example, for water and/or sewer), to the extent the Association has private sub-meters for these utilities, those assessments may be based on the sub-metering of the Association.
- (c) Fees, charges, taxes, impositions, late charges, fines, attorneys' fees, collection costs and interest charged by the Association against an Owner are enforceable as Common Expense assessments.
- Section 6.5 <u>Default Assessments</u>. In the event that the need for maintenance, repair, or replacement of the Common Areas, Area of Common Responsibility, or any other portion of the Community, including the Lots, is caused by or in any way results from the negligent or willful act or failure to act, or the misconduct of an Owner or an Owner's Related User, then the expenses, costs, and fees incurred by the Association for such maintenance, repair, or replacement is the personal obligation of such Owner and not a Common Expense. This obligation is referred to as a "Default Assessment".

Section 6.6 <u>Maximum Annual Assessment/Commencement of Common Expense</u> <u>Assessments.</u>

- (a) The Common Expense assessments are to be made on an annual basis against all Lots based upon the Association's advance budget of the cash requirements needed by it to provide for the administration and performance of its duties during such assessment year; provided, however, the Common Expense assessment for each Lot shall not exceed four hundred dollars, exclusive of optional user fees and any insurance premiums, each fiscal year. The four hundred dollar maximum Common Expense assessment may be increased each year on July 1st in accordance with any increase in the United States department of labor bureau of labor statistics final consumer price index for the Denver-Boulder consolidated metropolitan statistical area for the preceding calendar year or as otherwise authorized under the Act.
- (b) Assessments may include any metered utilities (as water and/or sewer utilities may be sub-metered) and r insurance.
- (c) The budget is to be submitted to the Owners, pursuant to this Declaration and the Governing Documents, including the Bylaws.

- (d) A budget proposed by the Executive Board is deemed adopted unless vetoed by the vote of at least 67% of the Lot Owners.
- (e) Assessments are payable in monthly installments, or, as the Executive Board determines.
- (f) Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.2, assessments begin at the first closing on the conveyance of a Lot to an initial Owner.
- (g) The omission or failure of the Executive Board to levy the assessments for any period is not deemed a waiver, modification or a release of the Owners from their obligation to pay.

Section 6.7 <u>Lien Priorities</u>.

- (a) The Assessment lien of the Association is prior to all other liens and encumbrances on a Lot, except: liens and encumbrances recorded before the recordation of this Declaration; a First Mortgage on the Lot except for an assessment lien equal to six months worth of assessments; and liens for real estate taxes and other governmental assessments or charges against the Lot.
- (b) This Section does not affect the priority of mechanics or material-men's' liens.
- (c) The lien of the Association under this Article is not subject to the provisions of any homestead exemption as allowed by state or federal law.
- (d) Sale or transfer of any Lot does not affect the lien for assessments except that the sale or transfer of any Lot pursuant to foreclosure of any First Mortgage or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure, including deed in lieu of foreclosure, or cancellation or forfeiture, only extinguishes the lien of assessment as and if provided by applicable law. No such sale, transfer, foreclosure, or any proceeding in lieu of foreclosure, including deed in lieu of foreclosure, nor cancellation or forfeiture relieves any Owner from continuing liability for any assessment charges subsequently becoming due nor from the lien.
- Section 6.8 <u>Effect of Non-Payment of Assessments</u>. Any assessment provided for in this Declaration, or any installment, which is not fully paid within ten days after the due date bears interest at the rate of interest specified in the collection policy as then in effect, as adopted by the Executive Board. The Association may also assess a monthly late charge. Failure to make payment within the 60 days of the due date may cause the total amount of such annual assessment for the remainder of that fiscal year to become immediately due and payable at the option of the Executive Board.

Further, the Association may bring a lawsuit against any Owner obligated to pay overdue assessment(s); and may also proceed to foreclose its lien against such Owner's Lot subject to any restrictions set forth in the Affordable Housing Declaration. A lawsuit by the Association against an

Owner to recover a money judgment for unpaid aassessments, or any monthly or other installment, may be commenced and pursued by the Association without foreclosing or in any way waiving the Association's lien. The Association shall be entitled to recover itscosts of suit, expenses and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred simply by virtue of the failure of the Owner to timely pay aassessments when due, including attorneys' fees and costs for consultation and for preparing and recording any lien notice. Foreclosure by the Association of its lien, whether completed or commenced but not completed is not deemed to estop or otherwise preclude the Association from subsequently foreclosing or commencing an action to foreclose its lien for any subsequent Assessments, or monthly or other installments, which are not fully paid when due.

To the extent not prohibited under the Affordable Housing Declaration, the Association has the power and right to bid on or purchase any Lot at foreclosure or other legal sale, and to acquire and hold, lease, mortgage, and cast the votes appurtenant to such Lot, and to convey or otherwise deal with the same. Any grantee of a Lot (excluding the Association) is jointly and severally liable with the grantor for all unpaid Assessments against the Lot which was assessed prior to the conveyance, without prejudice to the grantee's right to recover from the grantor the amounts paid by the grantee. The rights of the Association are expressly subordinate to the rights of any First Mortgagee as set forth in its deed of trust or mortgage (including any assignment of rents), to the extent provided for in this Declaration.

- Section 6.9 <u>No Waiver or Abandonment</u>. No Owner may be exempt from liability for payment of the Common Expenses by waiver of the use or enjoyment of any of the Common Areas or by abandonment of the Lot against which the assessments are made.
- Section 6.10 This Declaration is Notice of Association Lien Rights. Recording of the Declaration constitutes record notice and perfection of the lien for Assessments. No further recordation is required. However, the Executive Board may prepare and record in the real property records of Grand County, Colorado, a written notice setting forth the then amount of unpaid indebtedness, the name of the Owner, and a description of the Lot.
- **Section 6.11** Fees at Closing. Owners also are to pay transfer, record change fees and other fees charged by the Association or its managing agent for a closing or refinance.

ARTICLE 7. Restrictions on Use, Alienation and Occupancy

Section 7.1 Use Restrictions.

- (a) Initial use restrictions applicable to the Real Estate are set forth in this Declaration.
- (b) The Executive Board has absolute authority to promulgate Rules and resolutions for restrictions on use, occupancy or alienation which are not contrary to restrictions or other limitations contained within this Declaration or the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- (c) It is expected that Rules will govern the operations of the Community, the Owners and the Association in greater detail than the covenants in this Declaration. A specific provision of a Rule is invalid only to the extent that its strict application would contradict a specific

provision in this Declaration or the Affordable Housing Declaration.

- (d) The Executive Board may establish and enforce penalties for infractions.
- (e) Owners are responsible for fines assessed against their Related Users.
- (f) All monetary penalties enforced pursuant to this Declaration or the Rules are collectible as Default Assessments.
- Section 7.2 <u>Use and Occupancy</u>. Except by the Town, WPHA and Declarant or otherwise provided in the Affordable Housing Declaration, the use and occupancy of the Lots shall be limited as follows:
- (a) Use and occupancy shall be limited exclusively to housing for natural persons who meet the definition of Qualified Buyers or Qualified Residents.
- (b) Owner must occupy the Lot as his or her sole place of residence, except as otherwise provided in the Affordable Housing Declaration. The Lots shall be limited to permanent residences of the respective Lot Owner. A "permanent residence" means the home or place in which one's habitation is fixed and to which one, whenever he or she is absent, has a present intention of returning after a departure or absence there from. In determining what is a permanent residence, the Board may take into account, without limitation: (1) location of business pursuits, employment and income sources; (2) residence for income tax purposes; (3) residence of parents, spouse and children, if any; (4) location of personal and real property; and (5) motor vehicle registration.
- (c) If at any time an Owner also owns any interest alone or in conjunction with others in any other developed residential property located in Grand County, the Owner must immediately list such other property interest for sale and sell his or her interest in such property in accordance with the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- (d) Owners shall not engage in any business activity on or in the Lot, except home occupations as allowed by Town and WPHA regulations. Lots within the Community may be used only for residential purposes and purposes allowed by the local zoning codes and permits and as allowed for under restrictions in this Declaration.
- (e) Lots shall not be sold, transferred or leased except in accordance with this Declaration and the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 7.3 <u>Leasing</u>. The Community is intended to be an owner-occupied community. However, any Owner has the right to lease or allow occupancy of a Lot upon terms and conditions the Owner deems advisable, subject to restrictions of this Declaration, Affordable Housing Declaration, any other restrictions of record, and the following:
 - (a) No leasing of a Lot without the prior written approval of WPHA.
 - (b) All leases shall be in writing and subject to such terms and conditions as

approved by WPHA. A signed copy of the lease and written authorization by WPHA must be provided to the Board prior to occupancy by the tenant.

"Leasing" for the purposes of this Declaration is defined as occupancy of a Lot by any Person other than the Owner, but does not include the Owner sharing occupancy of the Lot with non-Owners provided the Owner continues to meet the definition of a Qualified Resident.

- Section 7.4 <u>Encumbrances and Mortgages on Lots</u>. Lots shall not be encumbered in an amount in excess of the purchase price originally paid by the current Owner of the Lot. A Owner shall not default in payment or other obligations to a mortgagee. Owners must notify WPHA in writing, within five calendar days of receipt of a notice from a mortgagee for past due payments or default in payment or other obligations under the mortgage or as otherwise required under the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 7.5 Owners' Acknowledgment. All Owners and Related Users are given notice that use of each Lot is limited by provisions of each of the Governing Documents, including the Affordable Housing Declaration. All Owners and Related Users acknowledge that the Governing Documents may be amended, expanded and otherwise modified from time to time. Each Owner, by acceptance of a deed, acknowledges and agrees that the use and enjoyment and marketability of their Lot affected by this provision and that all restrictions upon the use and occupancy of a Lot, may change from time to time.
- **Section 7.6** <u>Landscaping</u>. Initial landscaping may be installed by Declarant prior to sale of a Lot, but, if not installed by Declarant, then shall be installed by the Owner of the Lot within one year from the date of conveyance. Owners must obtain prior written approval of the Association before installing or changing landscaping improvements.
- **Section 7.7** <u>Disclaimers</u>. Declarant has disclosed that the Community is subject to construction of initial Residences. Owners acknowledge that initial construction, dust, construction noise, inconveniences and related issues, as well as the density of the greater community, may occur. These inconveniences include those from construction labor personnel, storage, portapotties, construction debris, parking of construction personnel, and more.
- Section 7.8 <u>Restrictions on Fences and Similar Structures</u>. Fences or similar structures may not be constructed or maintained on a Lot without written approval as required under this Declaration.
- **Section 7.9** Hot Tub Restrictions. Hot tubs or similar facilities may not be constructed or maintained on a Lot.
- Section 7.10 Restriction on Signs, Advertising and Devices. No sign, poster, billboard, advertising device, banners, balloons, streamers or display of any kind may be erected or maintained anywhere within the Community except as provided by express state or federal law, in this Declaration, and any Rules of the Association.

Section 7.11 Pet Covenants and Restrictions.

- (a) Owners may keep pets which are common, bona fide household pets, so long as such pets are of the type, number, or combinations allowed by the city or applicable government authority, and by Rules adopted by the Association.
- (b) Pets may not be bred or kept for any commercial purpose or kept in such number or in such manner as to be unreasonable or to create a nuisance to any resident.
- (c) The Association may adopt reasonable Rules designed to minimize damage and disturbance to other Owners and occupants, including Rules requiring waste removal, leash controls noise controls and more.
- (d) Nothing in this section of the Declaration prevents the Association from requiring removal of any animal that presents an actual threat to the health or safety of residents or from requiring abatement of any nuisance or unreasonable source of annoyance, which includes excessive barking or pet noises, in the Executive Board's sole discretion.
- (e) An Owner's right to keep household pets is coupled with the responsibility to pay for any damage caused by such pets, as well as any costs incurred by the Association as a result of such pets, and any such costs and damages is subject to all of the Association's rights with respect to the collection and enforcement of assessments as provided in this Declaration.
- (f) Any Owner or occupant or guest who keeps or maintains any pet in a Residence or within the Community is deemed to have agreed to indemnify and hold the Association, its directors, Officers, and agents free and harmless from any loss, claim or liability of any kind or character whatever arising by reason of keeping or maintaining such pet within a Residence or in the Community.
- Section 7.12 <u>Restriction on Further Subdivision</u>. No Lot upon which a Residence has been constructed may be further subdivided or separated into smaller Lots by any Owner. No portion consisting of less than all of any Lot, or any easement or other interest in this Declaration, may be conveyed or transferred by an Owner, without conveyance of the Lot. This covenant does not prohibit deeds of correction, deeds to resolve boundary line disputes, and similar corrective instruments.

Section 7.13 Vehicular Parking, Garages, Storage, RV's and Repairs.

- (a) Garages are primarily for parking of vehicles that the garage has been designed to include.
- (b) Storage is not permitted in garages (to the extent the parking of the number of vehicles for which the garage is designated would be precluded).
- (c) RV's, boats, trailers, ATV's and similar vehicles may not be parked on the Lot unless parked within the garage with the garage door closed. Provided, however, the Association may adopt a rule regulating parking of these types of vehicles on a temporary basis.
 - (d) The Rules of the Association may further govern the types of vehicles that

may be parked or stored within the Community.

Section 7.14 <u>Prohibitions on Increased Costs, Damage, Nuisance and Noise</u>. Without the prior written consent of the Board, nothing may be done or kept in a Residence, or any part of a Lot, that would be in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance, regulation, permit or other validly imposed requirements of any governmental body, or which would increase the Common Expenses.

Section 7.15 <u>Noxious and Other Activities</u>. Without the prior written consent of the Board, nothing will be done or kept on a Lot or the Community that would be in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance, regulation, permit or other validly imposed requirements of any governmental body, or which would increase the Common Expenses.

Noxious, destructive, offensive or unsanitary activities may not be carried on within the Community. No Owner or Resident may use or allow the use of the Lot or any portion of the Community at any time, in any way, that may endanger persons or property, unreasonably annoy, disturb or cause embarrassment or discomfort to other Owners or Residents, or constitute a nuisance. The intention of this provision is to grant the Association and aggrieved Owners and Residents a right of redress for actions, activities or conduct which unreasonably disturbs or impairs the peaceful and safe enjoyment.

Nothing in this section will be construed to affect the rights of an aggrieved Owner or Related User to proceed individually against a violator for relief from interference with his property or personal rights. The Board may, in its discretion, require aggrieved individuals to seek redress personally for interference with their rights before the Association intervenes and commences enforcement action. No aggrieved Owner or Resident will have a claim against the Association for failure to enforce the provisions of this section if the aggrieved Owner or Related User has not personally pursued all available remedies against the violator for redress provided under Colorado law.

- Section 7.16 <u>Easements Protected</u>. No Owner or Related User may do any work which, in the Board's reasonable opinion, would impair any easement or other interest in a Lot, without prior written consent of the Board.
- Section 7.17 <u>No Waste</u>. No damage to or waste of a Residence or the Area of Common Responsibility is permitted by any Owner or Related User. Each Owner and Related User indemnifies and holds the Association and the others harmless against all loss to the Association or others resulting from any such damage or waste caused by such Owner or Related Users.
- Section 7.18 <u>Use of Common Areas</u>. To the extent there are Common Areas, there shall be no obstructions of the Common Areas allowed. Nor may anything be kept or stored on any part of the Common Areas without the prior written approval of the Board, or others with rights in those areas.

Section 7.19 Failure to Maintain.

If the Board determines that any Owner has failed or refused to discharge properly

their obligation with regard to the maintenance, repair, or replacement of items for which he or she is responsible under this Declaration, then, the Association will give the Owner written notice of the Owner's failure or refusal and of the Association's right to provide necessary work at the Owner's sole cost and expense. The notice will describe with reasonable particularity the work the Association deems necessary.

Unless the Association determines that an emergency exists, the Association will provide a reasonable cure period to the Owner. If the Association determines that: (a) an emergency exists or (b) the Owner has not complied with the Association's demand, the Association may perform the work, then assess the cost of that maintenance, repair, or replacement against the Owner's Lot, which cost will become the Owner's personal obligation, a lien against the Lot, and collected as provided in this Declaration and the Association's collection policy.

Section 7.20 <u>Rubbish, Trash, and Garbage</u>. All rubbish, trash, and garbage must be regularly removed from each Residence and is not allowed to accumulate in a Residence or on a Lot. No garbage or trash may be placed outside the Residence, temporarily or otherwise, except in trash cans located in any trash enclosure or designated area. Rubbish, trash, and garbage must be disposed of in appropriate sealed bags and either placed in the trash cans or proper receptacles designated by the Executive Board for collection, and only at times to allow for timely collection by a contractor, or must be removed from the Community.

Section 7.21 <u>No Unsightliness</u>. All unsightly conditions, structures, facilities, equipment, objects and conditions must be enclosed within an approved structure.

Section 7.22 <u>Antennas and Satellite Dishes</u>. Satellite dishes, antennae or other devices for the transmission or reception of television signals, radio signals or any form of electromagnetic wave or radiation will not be erected, used or maintained by Owners or Related Users except as allowed by federal law. However, the Association has the right to erect, construct and maintain these devices on the Common Areas.

Section 7.23 <u>Solar Panels or Similar Installations</u>. Solar panels or similar installations may be made with written approval of the Board of Directors or Committee (if established) as elsewhere provided in this Declaration and as allowed by local government.

Section 7.24 <u>Reasonable Rights to Develop</u>. No Rule by the Association or Board may unreasonably impede the Declarant's right to develop in accordance with the Plat, Town and this Declaration.

Section 7.25 Individual Owner Rights of Enforcement. Nothing in this Declaration may be construed to affect the rights of an aggrieved Owner to proceed individually against a violator of this Declaration for relief from interference with their property or personal rights. The Executive Board may, in its discretion, require aggrieved individuals to seek redress personally for interference with their personal property rights before the Association intervenes and commences enforcement action. No claim for any loss, damage or otherwise exists by an aggrieved Owner or occupant against the Association for failure to enforce the provisions of this Declaration if the aggrieved Owner or occupant has not personally pursued all available remedies against the violator for redress provided under Colorado law and complied with dispute resolution procedures

of the Association.

Section 7.26 <u>Declarant's Exemption and Uses</u>. It is expressly permissible for the Declarant, its assigns, employees and agents, to perform such construction activities, and to maintain upon portions of the Community such facilities as deemed incidental by Declarant to the construction and sale of Lots and the development of the Community. This includes exemption from the covenants and restrictions in this Article and also, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the maintenance of temporary business offices, construction trailers or offices, storage areas, trash bins, portable toilets, construction yards and equipment, any and all signs of any kind, flags, banners, model Residences, temporary sales offices, parking areas, lighting facilities and similar or dissimilar uses.

Section 7.27 <u>Maximum Sales Price and Other Restrictions on Transfer.</u> Maximum sales prices and other restrictions and procedures regarding the sale or transfer of Lots are subject to and governed by the Affordable Housing Declaration, as may be amended.

ARTICLE 8. Architectural Approval

Section 8.1 <u>Approval of Improvements Required; Restrictions and Requirements.</u>
The Architectural Review Committee ("Committee") shall consists of three or more persons appointed by the Board of Directors or by the Declarant during the Period of Declarant Control. Except for Declarant appointed committee members, the Board of Directors may determine terms of office, fill vacancies, and may remove committee members, with or without cause. If committee members are not appointed, the Board will serve as the ARC.

Section 8.2 Submissions of Plans.

- (a) Prior to commencement of work to accomplish any proposed Improvement to property, the person proposing to make that Improvement ("Applicant") shall submit to the Board or Committee all documentation required under this Declaration and under any adopted Design Guidelines. Provided, however, if the request is for an Eligible Capital Improvement as defined in Affordable Housing Declaration, WPHA approval shall also be required.
- (b) The Board or Committee may require submission of additional plans, specifications, or other information prior to approving or disapproving the proposed Improvement.
- (c) Until receipt of all required materials in connection with the proposed Improvement, the Board or Committee may postpone review of any materials submitted for approval. If the Board or Committee requires submission of additional plans, specifications, or other information, the Board or Committee is to provide written notice to the Applicant.

Section 8.3 Criteria for Approval.

(a) The Board or Committee shall exercise its reasonable judgment to determine whether the proposed improvements, construction, alterations or landscaping conform to and harmonize with the existing surroundings, residences, landscaping and structures.

- (b) Actions taken by the Board or Committee on matters coming before it are to be in good faith and not arbitrary or capricious.
 - (c) The standards for approval include, but not be limited to:
- (i) conformity and harmony of exterior appearances of structures with neighboring structures, including design compatibility and scale;
 - (ii) color and materials to be used;
 - (iii) effective location and impact on nearby Lots;
 - (iv) relation to the Community;
- (v) preservation of aesthetic beauty and conformity with the specifications and purposes generally set out in this Declaration and in the Design Guidelines; and
 - (vi) any other matter deemed to be aesthetically relevant or appropriate.
- **Section 8.4** <u>Design Guidelines</u>. The Board or Committee may, from time to time, issue, revise, and reissue guidelines (the "Design Guidelines") to be applicable to all subsequent Improvements.
- **Section 8.5** <u>Design Standards and Procedures</u>. The Board or Committee may, from time to time, issue, revise, and reissue standards or rules ("Design Standards") relating to the procedures, materials to be submitted, and fees in connection with the approval of any proposed Improvement to Property.
- **Section 8.6** <u>Design Review Fee</u>. The Board or Committee may, in the Design Standards, provide for the payment or deposit of a fee to accompany each request for approval of any proposed Improvement.
- **Section 8.7** <u>Decision of Committee</u>. No Improvements may be made without the Board or Committee's approval. Approval is not given by lapse of any time frame. Approval is only given by affirmative action of the Board or Committee.
- Section 8.8 Prosecution of Work After Approval. After approval of any proposed Improvement, the proposed Improvement shall be accomplished promptly and diligently and in complete conformity with the description of the proposed Improvement and any other materials submitted to the Board or Committee in connection with the proposed Improvement and with any conditions imposed by the Board or Committee. Approved modification or construction must be completed within 4 months after the date of commencement, unless a longer period is approved by the Board or Committee. If an approved modification or construction is not commenced within one year of approval, the approval granted shall automatically lapse.
- **Section 8.9** <u>Inspection of Work</u>. The Board or Committee or its duly authorized representative has the right to inspect any Improvement prior to or after completion.

Section 8.10 <u>Notice of Noncompliance</u>. If, as a result of inspections or otherwise, the Board or Committee determines that work has been done without obtaining approval of the Board or Committee, or was not performed in accordance with the terms of the approved application, or was not completed within the required time frame, the Board or Committee may notify the Owner in writing of the noncompliance specifying the particulars of the noncompliance.

Section 8.11 Correction of Noncompliance.

- (a) The Owner or Applicant must remedy the noncompliance within 30 days after notification by the Board or Committee; provided, however, if a timely appeal to the Board was submitted by the Applicant, the noncompliance may be remedied within 45 days after denial of the appeal.
- (b) If the Owner fails to cure the noncompliance within that period, the Board or the Board or Committee may, at its option, record a Notice of Noncompliance against the Lot(s) on which the noncompliance exists, may enter upon that Lot(s) and remove the non-complying Improvement, and/or may otherwise remedy the noncompliance and the Applicant shall reimburse the Association, upon demand, for all expenses incurred. If those expenses are not promptly repaid by the Applicant or Owner to the Association, the Board may levy an Individual Assessment against the Owner of the Lot for those costs and expenses. The right of the Association or the Board or Committee to remedy or remove any noncompliance shall be in addition to all other rights and remedies which the Association and the Board or Committee may have at law, in equity, or under this Declaration. The Applicant and Owner of the Lot has no claim for damages or otherwise on account of the entry upon the property and removal of the non-complying Improvement to Property.
- Section 8.12 No Implied Waiver or Estoppel. No action or failure to act by the Board or Committee or by the Board of Directors shall constitute a waiver or estoppel with respect to future action by the Board or Committee or the Board of Directors with respect to any Improvement. Specifically, the approval of the Board or Committee of any Improvement shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or an estoppel to withhold approval or consent for any similar Improvement or any similar proposals, plans, specifications, or other materials submitted with respect to any other Improvement.
- Section 8.13 <u>Committee Power to Grant Variances</u>. The Board or Committee may authorize variances from compliance with any of the provisions of the requirements in this Article or the Design Guidelines, including restrictions upon height, size, floor area, or placement of structures or similar restrictions, when circumstances like topography, natural obstructions, hardship, or aesthetic or environmental conditions may require or allow. A variance by the Board or Committee does not remove any Owner's obligation to obtain approval from WPHA pursuant to the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 8.14 <u>Meetings of Committee</u>. The Board or Committee may meet from time to time as necessary to perform its duties. The Board or Committee may from time to time, by resolution in writing adopted by a majority of the members, designate a Committee Representative (who may but need not be one of its members) to take any action or perform any duties for or on behalf of the Board or Committee, except the granting of approval of any Improvement to Property,

determination of non-compliance, and granting of variances. The authorized action taken by the committee representative represented within that representatives authority constitutes action of the Board or Committee.

Section 8.15 Non-Liability of Committee Action. No liability may be imposed on the Board or Committee, any member of the Board or Committee, any Committee Representative, the Association, or any member of the Board of Directors, for any loss, damage, or injury arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of the duties of the Board or Committee unless due to the willful misconduct of the party held liable. Owners requesting the Improvement are responsible for any safety concerns, structural or otherwise, that the Improvement may raise. Owners are also responsible for verifying the Improvement meets any and all building codes or other governmental laws or regulations. Members of the Board or Committee shall be indemnified by the Association to the same extent as the Board of Directors of the Association, as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Association.

ARTICLE 9. Insurance

- Section 9.1 <u>Insurance on the Lots</u>. Each Owner will obtain property and liability insurance covering loss, damage or destruction by fire or other casualty to the Improvements, installed or made to their Lot, the other property of that Owner, and any injuries occurring to the persons while on a Lot. Property insurance shall be for replacement cost of market-value as set annually by WPHA. The Association will not be liable for the failure of any Owner to maintain insurance.
- Section 9.2 <u>Association's Insurance</u>. The Association will obtain and maintain at all times, as a Common Expense, property insurance on the Common Areas, if any, and may obtain such further insurance on any Area of Common Responsibility. The Association will obtain and maintain in full force and effect, to the extent reasonably available and at all times, the following insurance coverage:
- (a) <u>Association Comprehensive/General Liability Insurance</u>. The Association may obtain comprehensive/general liability insurance for the Common Areas, if any, and any other property the Association maintains, in amounts the Board determines from time to time. Coverage may include, without limitation, liability for personal injuries and operation of automobiles on behalf of the Association.
- (b) <u>Association Fidelity Insurance</u>. The Association may obtain fidelity coverage to protect against dishonest acts on the parts of its officers, directors, trustees and employees and on the part of all others who handle or are responsible for handling the funds of the Association, including persons who serve the Association with or without compensation. The fidelity coverage should be in an amount sufficient to cover the maximum funds that will be in the control of the Association, its officers, directors, trustees and employees and others who are responsible for handling the funds of the Association. The fidelity coverage should be in at least an amount equal to the aggregate of two months' assessments plus reserves, based on the current budget, to the extent reasonably available.

- (c) <u>Directors' and Officers' Personal Liability Insurance.</u> The Association may obtain directors' and officers' personal liability insurance to protect the officers, directors, Committee members and any other individuals acting at the Board's direction from personal liability in relation to their duties and responsibilities in acting on the Association's behalf.
- (d) Other Insurance. The Association may obtain other insurance against other risks of similar or dissimilar nature as it deems appropriate with respect to its responsibilities and duties.
- Section 9.3 <u>Miscellaneous Terms Governing Insurance Carried by the Association</u>. To the extent reasonably available, the Association will include in its insurance policies the following terms or provisions.
- (a) All insurance policies will provide that each Owner is an insured under the policy with respect to liability arising out of the Owner's membership in the Association.
- (b) All insurance policies will contain waivers of subrogation against any Owner or member of the Owner's household.
- (c) All insurance policies will contain waivers of subrogation and waivers of any defense based on invalidity arising from any acts of an Owner and will provide that policies may not be canceled or modified without at least 30 days prior written notice to all of the Owners, holders of first lien security interests and the Association, except in instances of nonpayment of premiums, which will require at least ten days' prior written notice.
- (d) If requested, duplicate originals of all policies and renewals, together with proof of payments of premiums, will be delivered to all holders of first lien security interests at least ten days prior to the expiration of the policies.
- (e) All liability insurance will cover the Association, the directors and officers, the manager or managing agent, if any, holders of first lien security interests, their successors and assigns, and Owners, with respect to Owner's liability arising out of Association membership.
- (f) All Association insurance policies will be primary, if there is other insurance in an Owner's name covering the same risk.
- **Section 9.4** <u>Insurance Premium</u>. Insurance premiums will be a Common Expense included as a part of the Association's annual assessments and are not subject to the statutory maximum for assessments.
- Section 9.5 <u>Insurance Review</u>. The Board may review the insurance carried by the Association periodically, to determine the amount of insurance required and the service capabilities of the current carrier.
- Section 9.6 <u>Claims and Adjustments by the Association</u>. Any loss covered by an Association insurance policy will be adjusted by the Association. The insurance proceeds for a loss will be payable to the Association and not to any holder of a first lien security interest. The

Association will hold any insurance proceeds for the repair or restoration of the damaged property. The Association is not entitled to use insurance proceeds for other purposes unless there is a surplus after the damaged property has been completely repaired or restored.

- Section 9.7 <u>Duty to Repair</u>. The Association must repair or replace promptly any portion of the Community for which it has a duty to maintain that is damaged or destroyed, unless Owners entitled to cast 67% of the total Association vote agree not to rebuild or as otherwise stated in the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- Section 9.8 <u>Condemnation and Property Insurance Allocations and Distributions</u>. In the event condemnation proceeds or property insurance proceeds are distributed to the Owners, the distribution will be as the parties with interests and rights are determined or allocated by record and in accordance with the Affordable Housing Declaration..
- Section 9.9 Responsibility for Payment of Deductible Amount. Whether the Board, in its discretion, submits a claim under the Association's insurance policies or not, the Association will pay or absorb the deductible amount for any work, repairs or reconstruction for damage to property that is the Association's maintenance responsibility unless the damage is caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of an Owner, the Owner's family, guests, or invitees, in which case the Association will seek reimbursement of the deductible amount as a default assessment in compliance with and under the terms of the Declaration.
- Section 9.10 <u>Damage to or Destruction of Residences on Lots</u>. In the event of damage to or destruction of structures on a Lot, the Owner will promptly repair or reconstruct the damaged structure in a manner consistent with the original construction or plans approved in accordance with this Declaration and the Affordable Housing DeclarationIf the structure is substantially destroyed and the Owner determines not to rebuild or reconstruct pursuant to the Affordable Housing Declaration, the Owner will promptly clear the Lot of all debris and continue to maintain the Lot in a neat and attractive condition consistent with this Declaration.

ARTICLE 10. Alternative Dispute Resolution – Excluded Claims

- Section 10.1 <u>Purpose/Scope of Alternative Dispute Resolution</u>. One of the purposes of this Declaration is to establish a harmonious Community including the prompt, efficient, fair and non-belligerent resolution of any construction or design dispute. Accordingly, any construction, design controversy or other claim against the Declarant or its affiliates or agents or employees of its affiliates (an Excluded Claim) arising out of or relating to the Residences, Common Areas or related to the Community must be resolved as set forth in this Article.
- Section 10.2 <u>Direct Communication</u>. The parties to the disagreement over an Excluded Claim must set forth their respective positions in any dispute in correspondence. Each party must respond within 21 days after receipt of a letter from the other until agreement is reached. If an agreement is not reached, the next section of this Declaration applies.
- Section 10.3 <u>Mediation</u>. If an Excluded Claim cannot be resolved through direct communication of the parties, either party may request appointment of a neutral and properly credentialed mediator. The parties must participate in the mediation in good faith until the dispute

is resolved for a period not to exceed 90 days with the consent of all parties. The cost of the mediation must be divided equally among the parties. If a mediation does not resolve the Excluded Claim, the next sections of this Declaration apply.

Section 10.4 Pre-Conditions to Arbitrations by the Association or Any Owner.

- (a) The conditions and provisions of any city ordinance limiting or setting forth procedures for claims against either Declarant must first be completed with of the Association of Owner and must continue to be complied with the Association or Owner.
- (b) The Association or any Owner may proceed with communication and mediation, as allowed for under this Article, without a vote of Owners holding at least 90% of the votes as long as the Association or any Owner is in compliance with the provisions of this Declaration.
- (c) On an Excluded Claim, the Association, if the Association complies with the terms of this Article, has the power to commence and maintain an arbitration, as may be deemed appropriate by the Executive Board only if approved by Owners holding at least 90% of the votes in the Association.
- (i) In making its recommendation to the Owners to bring an arbitration on an Excluded Claim, the Executive Board is to exercise its reasonable judgment. The Executive Board must consider, without limitation, the likelihood of success, the impact such action may have upon the market values of Lots or other portions of the Community, the cost of pursuing the arbitration including attorneys' fees and expert fees, the resources of the Association and whether a special assessment or depletion of reserves will be required in connection with pursuit of those claims or as a result after those claims have been pursued.
- (ii) The Executive Board must prepare a written analysis of the risks and benefits to the Owners of commencing and maintaining an arbitration on an Excluded Claim.
- (iii) The Executive Board must deliver a copy of that written analysis to each of the Owners at least 7 days prior to the date scheduled for the meeting of Owners or prior to any vote on proceeding with arbitration on an Excluded Claim.
- (iv) The Association may not bring an arbitration or any other legal action on an Excluded Claim even with amendment of this Declaration, without compliance with the terms of this Article (un-amended).
- (v) The Association may not commence or maintain an arbitration on any Excluded Claim unless the commencement and maintenance has first been recommended by the Executive Board and, is also approved by Owners holding at least 90% of the votes in the Association.

Section 10.5 Arbitration Process and Procedures.

- (a) If the Excluded Claim cannot be resolved through mediation, such dispute must be decided by mandatory and binding arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA") currently in effect.
- (b) If the mandatory and binding arbitration of this Declaration is determined to be unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, then, in those events, all Excluded Claims must still be decided by mandatory and binding arbitration in accordance with the rules of the AAA currently in effect.
 - (c) The following procedures apply to arbitration:
- (i) Demand for arbitration must be filed in writing with the other party and with the AAA.
- (ii) A demand for arbitration must be made within 30 days after the dispute in question has arisen and failed to be resolved by mediation.
- (iii) In no event may the demand for arbitration be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.
- (iv) No arbitration arising out of or relating to this Declaration may include, by consolidation, joinder or any other manner, an additional person or entity not subject to the Declaration, except that the Declarant, at its sole election and in its sole discretion, may by consolidation, joinder or any other manner, include contractors, subcontractors or other parties involved in the construction and/or planning of the Community.
- (v) The arbitrator to hear the Excluded Claim may be jointly selected by the parties. If the parties cannot agree within 30 days, the parties shall select the arbitrator they desire. Then, those arbitrators shall, amongst them, select the arbitrator to hear the Excluded Claim.
 - (d) The provision of this Article to arbitrate, or the Declarant's election to arbitrate, or the Declarant's determination to include any additional person or entity not subject to this Declaration in an arbitration are specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law with any court having jurisdiction.
 - (e) The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators is final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction.
 - (f) All filing fees and AAA costs associated with the arbitration itself must be paid for by the party who files the notice of arbitration.
- Section 10.6 <u>Sole Remedy: Waiver of Judicial Rights</u>. Subject to the Declarant's election rights set forth in this Declaration, and the remedies available for Excluded Claims, the Declarant, the Association, and each Owner expressly consent to the substance and procedures established in this Article as their sole and exclusive remedy. Each of these parties also expressly

waive any right they may have to seek resolution of any Excluded Claim contemplated by this Article in any court. Each of these parties also waive any right to trial by a jury. If a dispute involves the Declarant, an Owner or the Association, no person may file a memorandum of *lis pendens* or similar instrument that would encumber or create a lien upon Lots or the land owned by the Declarant, an Owner or the Association.

Section 10.7 <u>Binding Nature</u>; <u>Applicable Law</u>. The consideration of the parties to be bound by the provisions of this Article of this Declaration is not only the waiver of access to determination by a court (as applicable) and by a jury, but also the waiver of any rights to appeal the arbitration finding other than for the reasons available under Colorado law. A judgment upon an award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction.

Section 10.8 <u>Location</u>. All alternative dispute resolution proceedings under this Article must be held in Grand County in the State of Colorado, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties.

Section 10.9 Payment of Expenses under This Article. Beyond filing fees and AAA costs associated with the arbitration (those costs being the obligation of the party who files the notice of arbitration) and except as otherwise provided in this Declaration, each party is responsible for their own costs, expenses, experts and attorney fees in the mediation and arbitration.

Section 10.10 <u>Amendment of This Article</u>. The provisions of this Article may only be amended with the consent of the Declarant until December 31, 2045. This reservation is a reserved Development Right of the Declarant under this Declaration.

ARTICLE 11. Amendment And Termination

Section 11.1 <u>Amendment of Declaration by Owners</u>. Subject to provisions elsewhere contained in this Declaration and/or Affordable Housing Declaration requiring the consent of others, any provision, covenant, condition, restriction or equitable servitude contained in this Declaration may be changed or repealed, and any such provision added to this Declaration at any time and from time to time upon approval of the Executive Board and at least 67% of the votes in the Association.

Section 11.2 <u>Technical</u>, <u>Clerical</u>, <u>Typographical or Clarification Amendment</u>. If the Declarant determines that any amendments to this Declaration or to the Plat are necessary in order to make non-material changes, such as for the correction of a technical, clerical or typographical error or clarification of a statement, then, subject to the following sentence of this Section, the Declarant has the right and power to make and execute any such amendment without obtaining the approval of any Owners. Each such amendment of this Declaration must be made, if at all, by the Declarant prior to December 31, 2045.

Section 11.3 <u>Amendment Required by Mortgage Agencies</u>. Prior to December 31, 2045, any provision, covenant, condition, restriction or equitable servitude contained in this Declaration which the FHA, VA, FHLMC, GNMA, FNMA or any similar entity authorized to insure, guarantee, make or purchase Mortgage loans requires to be amended or repealed may be

amended or repealed by the Declarant. After that date, those types of amendments maybe made by the Board of Directors or the Association. Any such amendment or repeal will be effective upon the recordation in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Grand County, State of Colorado, of a certificate, setting forth the amendment or repeal in full.

Section 11.4 Recording of Amendments. To be effective, all amendments to or termination of this Declaration must be recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Grand County, Colorado, and must contain evidence or a recital of approval. One method of satisfying the requirements of this Section is the recordation of a certificate of the Secretary of the Association, certifying that Owners representing the requisite percentage of the Lots have given their notarized written consent to the amendment. The Secretary must further certify that originals of such written consent by Owners along with the recorded amendment are in the corporate records of the Association and available for inspection. No action to challenge the validity of an amendment adopted by the Association pursuant to this Article may be brought more than 1 year after the amendment is recorded.

Section 11.5 Approval Required for Certain Amendments.

- (a) <u>Allocated Interests</u>. No amendment may change the formulas for determining Allocated Interests as set forth in this Declaration in the absence of the approval of the Owners holding at least 90% of the votes in the Association.
- (b) Affordable Housing Restrictive Covenants. No amendment to this Declaration may change or contradict the Affordable Housing Declaration or any restrictive covenants contained therein. The Affordable Housing Declaration and covenants may only be amended pursuant to the terms of the Affordable Housing Declaration.
- (c) <u>Declarant Reserved Rights</u>. Any proposed amendment or repeal of any provision of this Declaration reserving rights of the Declarant, or for the benefit of the Declarant, or its assignees, is not effective unless the Declarant, and its assignees, if any, have given written consent to such amendment or repeal. That consent may be evidenced by the execution by the Declarant or its assignees of any certificate of amendment or repeal The foregoing requirement for consent to any amendment or repeal terminates on December 31, 2045.

Rights of Declarant, as provided for in this Section, are not to be construed as development rights or special declarant rights but as rights based on common law.

Section 11.6 <u>Association Certification</u>. Amendments to the Declaration required by this Article to be recorded by the Association are to be prepared, executed, recorded, and certified on behalf of the Association by any officer of the Association designated for that purpose or, in the absence of designation, by the president of the Association. In the event of an amendment to the Declaration by the Owners, the Association may record the amendment with a certificate from the Association executed by any officer designated for that purpose, or, in the absence of the designation, by the president, which the requisite number of Owners, have consented to the amendment.

Section 11.7 Expenses. All expenses associated with preparing and recording an amendment to the Declaration are the sole responsibility of the Association as a Common Expense or by the applicable Owner.

Section 11.8 <u>Termination</u>. The Community may be terminated upon an affirmative vote of the Owners holding 90% of the Allocated Interests and consent of the Declarant, WPHA and Town.

ARTICLE 12. General Provisions

Section 12.1 <u>Enforcement</u>. The Association or an Owner or Owners of any of the Lots may enforce the this Declaration by proceedings at law or in equity against any person or persons, either to recover damages for such violation, including reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in enforcing the covenants or restrictions, or to restrain such violation or attempted violation. Failure of the Association or of any Owner to enforce any covenant or restriction in this Declaration is not and shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so subsequently. Disputes which do not involve payment of sums and charges due to the Association, upon approval of both the Owner(s) and the Executive Board, may be submitted to binding arbitration. Without limiting the foregoing, the Association may enforce all applicable provisions of the Governing Documents and may impose sanctions for their violation, which includes, without limitation:

- (a) imposing reasonable monetary fines, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, which will be a lien upon the violator's Lot;
 - (b) suspending voting rights;
- (c) suspending any services provided by the Association to an Owner or the Owner's Lot if the Owner is more than 30 days delinquent in paying any assessment or other charge owed to the Association;
- (d) exercising self-help or action to abate any violation of the Governing Documents in a non-emergency situation, subject to any requirements set forth in this Declaration, including those related to maintenance, repair or replacement, provided that the Association does not have the authority to enter the Residence;
- (e) requiring an Owner, at the Owner's expense, to cease any construction of any modification that has not been approved, or to remove any structure or improvement in the Lot or the Common Areas in violation of the Governing Documents and to restore the Lot or Common Areas to its previous condition and, upon the Owner's failure to do so, the Association has the right to enter the Lot or Common Areas, remove the violation and restore the Lot or Common Areas to substantially the same condition as previously existed and any action is not deemed a trespass;
- (f) recording in the real property records a notice of violation identifying any uncured violation of the Governing Documents; and
 - (g) other remedies provided for in this Declaration or by applicable law.

- Security. The Association may, but will not be required to, from time to time, provide measures or take actions which directly or indirectly improve security in the Community; however, each Owner, for himself or herself and his or her family members, tenants, guests, licensees, and invitees, acknowledges and agrees that the Association is not a provider of security and the Association will not have a duty to provide security in the Community. Furthermore, the Association does not guaranty that non-residents will not gain access to the Community and commit criminal acts in the Community nor does the Association guarantee that criminal acts in the Community will not be committed by other Owners or Residents. It will be each Owner's and Resident's responsibility to protect his or her person and property and all responsibility to provide such security will lie solely with each Owner. The Association will not be held liable for any loss or damage by reason of failure to provide adequate security or ineffectiveness of measures undertaken
- Section 12.3 <u>Right to Pay Taxes and Insurance Premiums</u>. Any institutional First Mortgagee or other holder of a First Mortgage is entitled to pay any taxes or other charges which are in default and which may or have become a lien against a Lot.
- Section 12.4 <u>Severability</u>. Each of the provisions of this Declaration is deemed independent and severable. If any provision of this Declaration or the application of this Declaration to any person or circumstances is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of this Declaration which can be given effect without the invalid provisions or applications.
- Section 12.5 <u>Term of Declaration</u>. The provisions of this Declaration (and all covenants) run with and bind the Real Estate in perpetuity, unless amended or terminated as allowed for in this Declaration.
- **Section 12.6** <u>Interpretation</u>. The provisions of this Declaration are to be liberally construed to effectuate their purposes of creating a uniform plan for the development of the Lots and of promoting and effectuating the fundamental concepts as set forth in the recitals of this Declaration. This Declaration is to be construed and governed under the laws of the State of Colorado.
- **Section 12.7** <u>Singular Includes the Plural</u>. Unless the context otherwise requires, the singular includes the plural, and the plural includes the singular, and each gender referral is deemed to include the masculine, feminine and neuter.
- Section 12.8 <u>Captions</u>. All captions and titles used in this Declaration are intended and use solely for convenience of reference and ease of use of this Declaration. Captions and titles used in this Declaration do not enlarge, limit or otherwise affect that which is set forth in any paragraph, section or article of this Declaration.

ARTICLE 13. Development Rights of Declarant

Section 13.1 <u>Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights</u>. The Declarant reserves, through December 31, 2045 after the recording of this Declaration, the following Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights:

- (a) the right to withdrawal all of any part of the real property described in *Exhibit* A; provided no part of the Lot or Residence constructed have been conveyed by Declarant to an Owner. Otherwise, all Lots are subject to Declarant's withdrawal rights;
- (b) the right to annex any withdrawn real estate or real estate adjacent to the Community, in the vicinity of the Community or across a public or private street from the Community or within the Town in which the Real Estate is located (provided the Owner consents). See also *Exhibit E*.
 - (c) the right to re-designate, change, modify or amend any improvement or Lot;
- (d) the right to change the allocated interests initially set forth in *Exhibit C* if Lots are withdrawn or added;
- (e) the right to subject the Real Estate and the Community to a master declaration or to merge the Community with another adjacent community with such terms, conditions, reservations and restrictions as Declarant determines;
- (f) the right to relocate boundaries between adjoining Lots owned by the Declarant, enlarge Lots, reduce or enlarge the areas that may become Common Areas (as those areas are set forth in *Exhibits A, D, E, and F,* reduce the size of Lots, subdivide Lots owned by Declarant or complete or make improvements, as the same may be indicated on Plats filed of record:
- (g) the right to modify or alter the fences and the location of the fenced areas, if any;
- (h) the right to add property adjacent to the Real Estate, with the consent of that Owner of that Real Estate and additional unspecified Real Estate according to the provisions of this Declaration subject to the limitations set forth in this Declaration;
- (i) the right to exercise any additional reserved right created by any other provision of this Declaration;
- (j) the right to amend the use restrictions included in this Declaration, together with the right to add new use restrictions;
- (k) the right to amend the Declaration in connection with the exercise of any Development Right;
- (I) the right to make amendments to this Declaration or the other Governing Documents to meet or comply with any requirements of any lender to an Owner, WPHA or the Town;
- (m) the right to amend the Plats in connection with the exercise of any Development Right;

- (n) the right to make amendments to the Declaration, Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation to meet or comply with any requirement of FHA or VA; and
- (o) the right to use and to permit others to use, easements through the areas that may become Common Areas (as set forth in *Exhibits D and E*) and also the Common Areas, once and if deeded to the Association, as may be reasonably necessary;

The rights reserved to Declarant, for itself, its successors and assigns, shall expire as set forth above, unless (i) reinstated or extended by the Association, subject to whatever terms, conditions, and limitations the Board may impose on the subsequent exercise of the expansion rights by Declarant, (ii) extended as allowed by law, or (iii) terminated by written instrument executed by the Declarant, recorded in the real property records of Grand County. The development rights may be exercised with respect to different parcels at different times, in no particular order. If the Declarant exercises a development right in any portion of the Real Estate subject to such development right, the Declarant shall not be obligated to exercise the development right over the remainder of that Real Estate.

Section 13.2 <u>Additional Reserved Rights</u>. In addition to the rights set forth above, Declarant also reserves the following additional rights:

- (a) <u>Sales and Offices</u>. The right to maintain mobile and other sales offices, parking lots, management offices and models on Lots of the Declarant.
- (b) <u>Signs</u>. The right to maintain signs and advertising at the Community and to advertise the Community or other communities developed or managed by or affiliated with Declarant.
- (c) <u>Construction Easement</u>. Declarant and its assignees expressly reserve to itself the right to perform warranty work, and repairs and construction work, and to store materials in secure areas, in Lots and in Common Areas, and the future right to control such work and repairs and the right of access thereto, until completion. All work may be performed without the consent or approval of any Owner or holder of a security interest. Declarant and its assignees have such an easement through the Common Areas as may be reasonably necessary for exercising reserved rights in this Declaration. Such easement includes the right to construct underground utility lines, pipes, wires, ducts, conduits, and other facilities across the Real Estate.
- (d) <u>Use Agreements</u>. The rights to enter into, establish, execute, amend, and otherwise deal with contracts and agreements for the use, lease, repair, maintenance and regulation of parking and/or recreational facilities and/or Common Areas, which may or may not be a part of the Community.
- (e) <u>Access Easement</u>. Declarant and its successors and assigns shall have an access easement to and from any real property accessible through the Community.
- (f) Other Rights. The right to exercise any additional reserved right created by any other provision of this Declaration.

Declarant: Winter Park Housing Authority, a Colorado housing authority
By: Delic Nick Kuteumbes
STATE OF <u>Colorado</u>) ss. CITY AND COUNTY OF <u>Grand</u>)
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this \(\frac{14}{4} \) day of \(\frac{March}{2024} \) by \(\frac{Nick Kotrombos}{2024} \), as \(\frac{Cnair}{2024} \) of Winter Park Housing Authority, a Colorado housing authority.
Witness my hand and official seal. My commission expires:
Notary Public
DANIELLE S. JARDEE NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF COLORADO NOTARY ID 20174029408 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JULY 14, 2025

Exhibit A - Description of the Real Estate

Lots 1-20, inclusive Hideaway Junction Subdivision Filing No. 2 Town of Winter Park, County of Grand, State of Colorado

As shown on Final Plat recorded September 26, 2022 at Reception No. 2022008233

Exhibit B - Exceptions to Title

Exhibit C - Allocated Interests

Lot Number	Common Expense Liability	Votes
1	1/20 or 5%	1
2	1/20 or 5%	1
3	1/20 or 5%	1
4	1/20 or 5%	1
5	1/20 or 5%	1
6	1/20 or 5%	1
7	1/20 or 5%	1
8	1/20 or 5%	1
9	1/20 or 5%	1
10	1/20 or 5%	1
11	1/20 or 5%	1
12	1/20 or 5%	1
13	1/20 or 5%	1
14	1/20 or 5%	1
15	1/20 or 5%	1
16	1/20 or 5%	1
17	1/20 or 5%	11
18	1/20 or 5%	1
19	1/20 or 5%	1
20	1/20 or 5%	11
Total	100%	20

Exhibit D - Common Areas

None.

Exhibit E - Additional or Annexable Property

Any real estate adjacent to the Community, in the vicinity of the Community or across a public or private street from the Community or within the City in which the Real Estate is located - provided the owner of that property consents to the annexation.

Exhibit F - Limited Common Areas

None.

Lend	er Conse	<u>nt</u>							
This	Lender	Consent	is	made	this		day	of	, 20 by as a "Lender" with a
bene be re For g	ficiary und corded in good and	er a deed o	of tru oper cons	ust and o ty record ideration	other I ds of C	oan doc Grand C	uments ounty, \$	s, wn State	n the Declaration. Lender is the ich deed of trust is recorded or will of Colorado (the "Deed of Trust"). iency of which is acknowledged,
						Name:			
					1	SS.			
COU	NTY OF _					33.			
The f	by	nstrument			ledge	d before ,	me on	the	day of, of
						Notary	Public	in a	nd for the State of

Notary Name Printed:

My Commission Expires:

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. DESIGN GUIDELINES

1. <u>Introduction and Purpose</u>. These Design Guidelines ("Guidelines") are intended to assist Owners and their representatives with respect to making improvements or alterations to their property (as provided for in Article 8 – Architectural Approvals of the Declaration) and to establish architectural, construction, structural and aesthetic criteria, rules, and guidelines pertaining to the Community.

The Board of Directors ("Board") of the Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.("Association") has adopted these Guidelines to establish and preserve the planning and design concepts for the Community, to enhance property values, and to promote respectful quality of life within the Community. The Board (and/or Architectural Review Committee) reserves the right to add, modify or amend these Guidelines from time to time in its reasonable discretion.

2. <u>Applicability/Approval Required.</u> Unless otherwise provided herein, plans and specifications for any proposed improvement, modification, or alteration to any Lot or Residence must be submitted to the Board or the Architectural Review Committee that has been established, if any, for prior written approval. No improvements, modifications or other work which in any way alters the exterior appearance of any Lot or Residence shall be made, installed or constructed without the prior approval of the Association. Any change or deviation from approved plans either during or after completion of approved work must have the prior approval of the Association.

In addition to the Association's approval, the Owner is required to obtain any require approval by the Winter Park Housing Authority for Eligible Capital Improvements as further set forth in the Affordable Housing Declaration.

- 3. <u>Definitions</u>. Any capitalized term used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning given in-the Declaration.
- 4. Procedures for Design Review Approval and Construction Process.
 - (a) Application; Submittal of Plans and Specifications.
- Design Review Application and must include the property address and the name, mailing address and email address of the Owner. A copy of the <u>Design Review Application</u> is attached to these Guidelines as <u>ATTACHMENT A</u>. No work may commence until the Owner has obtained written approval. The Design Review Application must include the items and documentation specified therein, which may include such descriptions, surveys, plot plans, drainage plans, elevation drawings, construction plans, specification and samples of materials and colors, and other information as the Association may reasonably request showing the nature, kind, shape, height, width, colors, materials and location of the proposed improvements, modifications or alterations. In most instances, a simple drawing with dimensions or photo and a description and/or identification of the materials to be used for any exterior modifications is sufficient.
- (ii) Submittals must include the estimated timing of all construction or improvements, including projected commencement and completion dates. To the extent possible, proposed plans must identify the location of all construction staging areas, parking requirements, designated parking areas for construction vehicles/equipment, and the location of any trash dumpsters and temporary toilets to be used in conjunction with the construction or improvement project.
 - (iii) The Association will review applications only after determining that it has all

information necessary. Applications will be initially reviewed by the Association's manager or management company for completeness. If additional information is required, a request will be sent to the Owner/Applicant.

- (b) Action by the Board or Committee. In reviewing applications, the Board or Committee may consider:
- (i) conformity and harmony of exterior appearances of structures with neighboring structures, including design compatibility and scale;
 - (ii) color and materials to be used;
 - (iii) effective location and impact on nearby Lots;
 - (iv) relation to the Community;
- (v) preservation of aesthetic beauty and conformity with the specifications and purposes generally set out in this Declaration and in the Design Guidelines;
 - (vi) any other matter deemed to be aesthetically relevant or appropriate; and
- (vii) whether any other necessary approvals from WPHA, Town or Declarant have been obtained.
- (c) Prosecution of Work. Upon receipt of approval from the Association and any other required approvals from WPHA, Town or Declarant, the approved Improvement shall be accomplished promptly and diligently and in complete conformity with the description of the proposed Improvement and any other materials submitted to the Board or Committee in connection with the proposed Improvement and with any conditions imposed by the Board or Committee. Approved modification or construction must be completed within 4 months after the date of commencement, unless a longer period is approved by the Board or Committee.

5. Specific Improvements.

- (a) Satellite Dishes, etc. An Owner may install a satellite dish ("Dish") of less than one (1) meter in diameter, or a replacement thereof, intended to receive broadcast television satellite service, as well as other types of antenna providing broadcast television satellite service ("Antennae"). The installation of a Dish or Antennae must be on Lot owned by an Owner. An Owner intending to install a Dish or antennae shall provide the Association with notice of the pending installation. Any Dish or Antenna that does not meet these specifications shall require prior written approval.
- (b) Spas and Hot Tubs. Spas, hot tubs, and pools are not permitted.
- (c) Fencing and Similar Structures. Fences and similar structures, other than those originally constructed, are generally discouraged. Prior written approval will be required for any such structures.
- (d) Signs. The regulation of signs is subject to C.R.S. 38-33.3-106.5. An Owner may place up to one non-commercial sign up to 36" x 48" in size within the boundaries of their Lot. The sign must be maintained in good condition. If the sign is placed in the yard areas, the sign may not be affixed to any fence or other similar improvement. One professionally-lettered security sign not to exceed two square feet in size may be displayed on the property, and a reasonable number of professional security decals not larger than eight inches by eight inches may be displayed within windows in a Residence. Commercial signs, which include For Sale/For Rent/Open House signs, require prior written approval.
- (e) Flags. The regulation of flags is subject to C.R.S. 38-33.3-106.5. An Owner may display one

- non-commercial flag within a window of the Residence, from an adjoining patio or porch, or in the front or back yards of the Residence. Any staff or pole may not exceed 6' in length and flags shall be no larger than 3' x 5' without prior written approval.
- (f) Solar Panels. The regulation of solar panels and other energy efficiency devices are subject to C.R.S. 38-33.3-106.7. Solar panels and other energy efficiency devices require prior written approval.
- (g) Landscaping. Changes from the initial landscaping design requires prior written approval.
- 6. <u>Variance Requests</u>. Any deviation from these Guidelines, processes, procedures, or Guidelines requested by an Applicant requires an approved variance. The Applicant must send and/or deliver a written variance request, along with any supporting documentation, photographs, alternative design plans, etc. to the Board or Committee.
- 7. <u>Enforcement/Failure to Submit.</u> If an Owner fails to submit an application and/or obtain approval prior to starting work, the Association may take all action afforded by law and in equity, and exercise any remedies consistent with the Declaration, the policies of the Association regarding covenant enforcement, and/or other action permitted by law, including, without limitation, requiring the Owner to stop work and/or restore the property to its original condition.

ATTACHMENT A

Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.

Design Review Application

PLEASE PRINT

Printed Name:

Owner Name:	Date:
	ss:
Mailing Addres	s (if different):
Phone:	E-mail:
with the applica the Board or Co	construction of approved alterations, modifications and improvements must conform in all respects ble provisions in the Declaration and Design Guidelines, and any other requirements as set forth by mmittee. Owners are also responsible for ensuring compliance with any requirements or conditions WPHA, the Town and/or Declarant.
Please submit th	ne following as applicable:
a.	Plans and specifications which reasonably detail the proposed alterations, modifications and improvements including information on proposed materials and colors for the improvements and modifications, showing the nature, kind, shape, height, width, colors, materials and location of the
b.	proposed improvements, modifications, or alterations. To the extent applicable, identify the location of all construction staging areas, designated parking areas for construction vehicles/equipment, and the location of any trash dumpsters to be used in conjunction with the construction.
c. d.	Estimated time to complete construction including projected commencement and completion dates Such other information as the Board or Committee may reasonably request to inform their decision about the Application.
information is readditional informational information in the Augustion is supplication is su	d or Committee require additional information, approval will be deferred until additional acceived. The Board or Committee, as applicable, will review your Application and advise you of mation required. By submitting this Application you acknowledge that you may be required to association for the Association's retention of a consultant, such as an engineer or architect, if the such that it requires, in the Board's discretion, a consultant for the Association. The Association will a you before retention of the consultant.
not unreasonably of any debris res Nothing herein outility easements items in this req	construction must be completed within the approved timeframe and must be done in a way that does y interfere with neighboring properties. Applicant is responsible for the removal, in a timely manner sulting from construction. Construction must meet all zoning, building codes, and laws of the Town contained shall be construed as a waiver or modification of any such code or law. Where applicable is and property setbacks are to be marked before excavation is to be started. Misrepresentation of any usest, either oral or written, may void any approval of this Application. Any changes from approved management approval.
Owner signature	e: Date:

Indexing note:

- Grantee's index under "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II" and "Hideaway Junction Phase II" (the names
 of the Community) and "Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc." (the name of the Association)
- Grantor's index under "Winter Park Housing Authority" and the names of each person executing this document

NOTICE

Regarding Hideaway Junction Phase II, a planned community ("Community")

Subjects:	Disclosure of documents and other information of Hideaway Junction Phase II.
Purpose:	To provide notice of and disclose certain documents and information of the Community; and
	2) Through this notice, to promote the recreation, health, safety and welfare of the Owners and occupants of the properties subject to the Declaration.
Authority:	The recorded Declaration for Hideaway Junction Phase II, a planned community, as recorded in the records of the Clerk and Recorder of the County of Grand, Colorado (the "Declaration"), and Colorado law.
Properties Affected:	All Lots and properties within the County of Grand, State of Colorado, as made subject to the Declaration.
Effective Date:	, 20
Notice:	Exemption from CCIOA.
	The Community is a limited expense community under C.R.S. 38-

The Community is a limited expense community under C.R.S. 38-33.3-116 and subject only to C.R.S. 38-33.3-105 through C.R.S. 38-33.3-107 of the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act.

Disclosure of Documents and Other Information.

The Association discloses the following:

- 1. The name of the entity to govern and operate Community is Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc.("Association").
- 2. The name of the community is Hideaway Junction Phase II.
- 3. The date on which fiscal year commences is January 1.
- The following information may be obtained by contacting the Association's principal office and/or registered agent and office

of the Association, as maintained by the Association at the office of the Colorado Secretary of State:

- a. The name of Association's designated agent or management company, if any
- b. The physical address and telephone number for both the Association and the designated agent, management company, or bookkeeper, if any
- c. The initial recording date of Declaration and other or related recording information
- d. The current operating budget
- e. A list of Association insurance policies
- f. The Declaration
- g. The Bylaws
- h. The Articles of Incorporation
- Rules, Regulations and Governance Policies governing the owners and the Community, if any
- j. Minutes of Board and Member meetings.

Association's Agent.

The Association's agent for management of the properties subject to the Declaration, if engaged, may be contacted at the Community or through the principal office and/or registered agent and office of the Association. The principal office and/or registered agent and office are to be maintained by the Association at the office of the Colorado Secretary of State.

Supplemental to Law.

The provisions of this Notice are in addition to and in supplement of the terms and provisions of the Declaration and the law of the State of Colorado governing the Community.

[SIGNATURES ON SUBSEQUENT PAGE]

President's Certification:

The undersigned President of Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc., certifies that the foregoing Notice was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Association at a duly called and held meeting.

Hideaway Junction Homeowners Association Phase II, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation

By: _______, President

ATTEST:

Secretary

Declarant's Certification:

The undersigned Declarant certifies that the foregoing Notice was approved and adopted.

Winter Park Housing Authority, a Colorado housing authority

By:

lick Kutrumbos, Chair

ATTEST:

Alisha Janes, Executive Director

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT PROCEDURE

Effective Date:	3-26-24

- 1. Definitions:
 - A. A policy is a course or principle of action adopted to guide the Board.
 - B. A procedure is an established or official way of conducting a course of action.
- C. A rule is defined as a regulation or requirement governing conduct or behavior or the use of property.
- 2. The Board has the authority to adopt policies, procedures, and rules to the extent they do not conflict with the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, and Bylaws of the Association.
- 3. The Board has authority to adopt and amend policies and procedures governing Association operation. These policies and procedures will be adopted at an open Board meeting and documented in the minutes or in a formal resolution. Current policies may be posted on the Association's website, if any.
- 4. The Board may adopt rules and regulations governing the use of the Lots and Common Areas. Rules and regulations will be adopted at an open Board meeting and documented in the minutes or in a formal resolution. Rules, once adopted, will be sent to all Owners and will be effective 10 days following notice or such other date as provided in the notice. Newly adopted rules may also be posted on the Association's website with accompanying notice to all Owners in the Association's newsletter, or via first-class mail, or via email if the Owner has provided an email address.

	This Adoption	and Amendmer	nt Procedure was	s adopted by th	e Board of Directors this _	26+4
day of	March	. 202 4 .				

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation.

By: Alish Janes

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. COLLECTION POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Effective Date: 3-26-2024

1.	Due Dates,	Late Charges,	Interest,	Suspension of Rights	, and Acceleration of	Assessments.
----	------------	---------------	-----------	----------------------	-----------------------	--------------

- A. <u>Due Dates</u>. Monthly payments of the annual assessment are due and payable on the 1st day of each month. Other assessments, fees, or charges are due and payable as set forth in the Association's notice. Payments will be deemed received on the date the payment is received in the Association's office or the Association's payment processor's office; provided, however, if the Owner's name or the Lot address for which payment is made is not identified on or with the payment, payment will not be deemed received until such time as the Owner and Lot to which payment should be credited are determined. Any payment not paid in full when due is past due and delinquent.
- B. <u>Late Fee or Charge</u>. A late charge in the amount of \$____ will be imposed for any assessment, fine, or other charge not paid within 10 days of the due date without further notice to the Owner. The late charge is a personal obligation of the Owner and a lien on the Lot.
- C. <u>Interest</u>. Interest at the rate of _____% per annum will accrue on any delinquent assessment, fine, or other charge from the due date without further notice to the Owner. Interest may be added to the Owner's account 10 days following the due date. Interest is a personal obligation of the Owner and a lien on the Lot.
- D. <u>Lien.</u> Under the terms of the Declaration, there is a lien for any unpaid assessment. The Association reserves the right to record a notice of lien in the county records at any time after an assessment becomes delinquent. The Association delegates authority to the Association's attorney to sign and acknowledge the notice of assessment lien. This delegation may be withdrawn at any time by sending written notice to the Association's attorney of the withdrawal.
- E. <u>Administrative Expenses</u>. Collection costs imposed by the Association or its managing agent for delinquent accounts will be the obligation of the Owner and may be posted to the Owner's account.
- F. <u>Suspension of Rights</u>. An Owner's voting rights are may be suspended without notice if an assessment or other charge is delinquent as set forth in this policy.
- G. <u>Acceleration</u>. Following written notice to the Owner, the Board may accelerate and declare immediately due all of that Owner's unpaid installments of the annual assessment. Upon acceleration, that Owner loses the privilege of paying any and all assessments and charges in installments for the remainder of the fiscal year, unless privilege is otherwise reinstated in the Board's sole discretion.
- Attorney's Fees and Collection Costs. The Association is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney's fees and collection costs incurred in collecting assessments or other charges due the Association from a delinquent Owner pursuant to the terms of the Declaration and Colorado law.
- 3. <u>Application of Payments</u>. If an Owner who has both unpaid assessments and unpaid fines, fees, or other charges makes a payment to the Association, the Association will apply the payment first to fines, fees, or other charges owed and the remaining to assessments.
- 4. <u>Notice of Delinquency</u>. The Association may send one or more courtesy notices to Owners. Before the Association turns over a delinquent account of an Owner to a collection agency or refers it to an attorney for legal action, the Association may send the Owner a notice of delinquency specifying:
 - A. The total amount due, with an accounting of how the total was determined;
 - B. Whether the Owner has an opportunity to enter into a payment plan;

- C. The name and contact information for the individual the Owner may contact to request a copy of the Owner's ledger to verify the amount of the debt; and
- D. Failure to respond in 30 days may result in a lien being filed, the account being turned over to an attorney or collection agency, or legal action being taken to collect the debt.
- 5. <u>Owner Contact and Delivery of Notice</u>. The Association may contact the Owner by one of the following means:
 - i. First-class mail;
- ii. Text message to a cellular number that the Association has on file that the Owner has provided to the Association; or
- iii. Email to an email address that the Association has on file that the Owner provided to the Association.

6. Payment Plans.

- A. The Association will make a good faith effort to coordinate with the Owner to set up a payment plan. An Owner may enter into a payment plan to pay off a deficiency in equal installments over such period as authorized by the Board.
- B. If the Owner fails to comply with the terms of the payment plan, the Association may pursue legal action to collect the debt.
 - C. The Association may choose not to negotiate a payment plan with:
 - i. an Owner who has previously entered into a payment plan pursuant to this policy, or
- ii. an Owner who does not occupy the Lot and acquired the Lot because of a default of a security interest encumbering the Lot or a foreclosure of the Association's lien.
- D. All payment plans involving accounts referred to an attorney for collection will be set up and monitored through the attorney in consultation with the Board or other person designated by the Board.
- 7. Referral of Delinquent Accounts to Attorneys. After an account has been referred to the Association's attorney, the account remains with the attorney until it is settled, has a zero balance, or is otherwise resolved. Once accounts are turned over to the Association's attorney, Owners will make payments to the Association at the attorney's address. The Association's attorney is authorized to take whatever action is necessary, in consultation with the Board President or other person designated by the Board, believed to be in the Association's best interest.

After a delinquent account has been referred to the Association's attorney, all communication with the delinquent Owner will be handled through the Association's attorney. Neither the manager, if any, nor any member of the Board may discuss the collection of the account directly with an Owner after it has been turned over to the Association's attorney unless the attorney is present or has consented to the contact. Action by the Association's attorney may include the following:

- A. <u>Notice of Lien</u>. If not already recorded, a notice of lien may be recorded against the delinquent Owner's property to provide record notice of the Association's claim against the property.
- B. <u>Filing Lawsuit</u>. The Association may file a lawsuit against the delinquent Owner seeking a money judgment. If a personal judgment is entered against the delinquent Owner, the Association may pursue remedies such as garnishing the Owner's wages or bank account to collect judgment amounts.

- C. <u>Judicial Foreclosure</u>. The Association may foreclose on its lien in lieu of or in addition to suing an Owner for a money judgment. The purpose of foreclosing is to obtain payment of all assessments owing in situations where either a money judgment lawsuit has been or is likely to be unsuccessful or in other circumstances that may favor such action. If the Association forecloses on its lien, the Owner will lose the Owner's Lot, having the same effect as if a first mortgagee institutes a foreclosure action against the property (though the procedure is different).
- D. Receivership. A receiver is a disinterested person, appointed by the court, who manages rental of the Owner's property and collects the rents according to the court's order. The purpose of a receivership for the Association is to obtain payment of current assessments, reduce past-due assessments, and prevent waste and deterioration of the property.
- E. <u>Bankruptcy Filings</u>. Filing necessary claims, documents, and motions in Bankruptcy Court to protect the Association's claim.
- 8. <u>Certificate of Status of Assessment/Estoppel Letter</u>. The Association will furnish to an Owner, or such Owner's designee, upon written request delivered personally or by certified mail, first-class postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the Association's registered agent, a written statement setting forth the amount of unpaid assessments currently levied against the Owner's Lot. The statement will be delivered within 14 calendar days after receipt of the request personally or by certified mail, first-class postage prepaid, return receipt requested. If the Owner's account has been turned over to the Association's attorney, the statement will include any attorney's fees incurred in providing the statement.

Return Check Charges.

- A. If any check or other instrument payable to or for the benefit of the Association is not honored by the bank or is returned by the bank for any reason, including, but not limited to insufficient funds, the Owner is liable to the Association for one of the following amounts, at the option of the Association:
- i. An amount equal to the face amount of the check, draft, or money order and a return check charge of: (a) \$20.00; or (b) 20% of the face amount of the check, draft, or money order, but not less than \$20.00, if it has been assigned to a collection agency for collection; or (c) an amount equal to the actual charges incurred by the Association levied by the party returning the check, whichever is greater; or
- ii. If notice has been sent as provided in C.R.S. § 13-21-109 and the total amount due as set forth in the notice is not paid within 15 days after such notice is given, the person issuing the check, draft, or money order will be liable to the Association for three times the face amount of the check, but not less than \$100.00.
- B. If two or more of an Owner's checks are returned within any fiscal year, the Association may require that future payments, for a period of one year, be made by certified check or money order.
- 10. <u>Bankruptcies and Public Trustee Foreclosures</u>. Upon receipt of any bankruptcy notice or a foreclosure notice by any holder of an encumbrance against any Lot within the Association, the Association may advise the Association's attorney of the same and turn the account over to the Association's attorney.
- 11. <u>Waivers</u>. The Association may modify these procedures as the Association determines appropriate under the particular circumstances. Any accommodation may be documented in the Association's files. Failure to require strict compliance with this policy is not deemed a waiver of the Association's right to require strict compliance and will not be deemed a defense to payment of assessment fees or other charges, late charges, return check charges, attorney's fees, and/or costs as described and imposed by this policy.

This Collection Policy a	and Procedure was adopted by the Board of Directors thisday of
	HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,
	By: Det Jan Its: President

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Effective Date:	3-9	76-	70	24
Ellective Date.			<u> </u>	

Board Meetings.

- A. Members or their representatives may attend all Board meetings, except that Members may be excluded from an executive session. The Board may go into executive session for any purpose allowed under the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act. Prior to going into executive session, the chair of the meeting will announce the purpose for the executive session.
- B. The Board may post notice of upcoming Board meetings on a website, bulletin board, or other feasible location within the community.
- C. The meeting agenda will be made reasonably available for examination by Association Members or their designated representatives.
 - D. The rules for Member participation during the meetings are:
- i. Each Member who wishes to address the Board will be given a reasonable time to speak, provided the chair may impose reasonable time limits to facilitate Member participation. If more than one person desires to address an issue on which the Board is to vote and there are opposing views, the Board will provide for a reasonable number of Members to speak on each side of the issue. After other Members have had an opportunity to speak, then a Member who has already spoken will be given another opportunity, time permitting.
- ii. Each Member who wishes to speak must be recognized by the chair. Once recognized, the Member will state his/her name and address.
- iii. All comments must be delivered in a businesslike and professional manner. Personal attacks or inflammatory comments will not be permitted.
- iv. To facilitate free and open discussion, Members are prohibited from audio or video recording meetings.
- v. The Board is not obligated to take immediate action on any item presented by a Member.
- E. There will be a Members' forum at the beginning of each regular Board meeting. The Members' forum will be for up to 15 minutes, although the Board may extend this time in its discretion. Following the conclusion of the Members' forum, the Board will proceed with the business portion of the meeting.
- F. Members who attend may not participate in deliberation or discussion during the business portion of the Board meeting until expressly authorized by the Board.
- G. Items will be discussed based on the meeting agenda, provided that items may be taken out of order if deemed advisable. Items not on the agenda may be discussed once all other items have been concluded, time permitting.
- H. Any director may make a motion. All motions and the outcome of the vote will be recorded in the minutes. If any director requests his vote in favor or against or his abstention be recorded in the minutes, the minutes will so reflect.
 - I. Board meetings are not required to be held in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order.
- Annual Meetings/Special Member Meetings.

- Notice of a membership meeting will be sent to each Member not less than 10 or more than 50 days prior to the meeting. If a Member requests notice by email only and provides an email address, notice will be provided by email.
- Members will sign in prior to the meeting for themselves and for any proxies they hold. If an election or vote is to be held, the Member will be given the appropriate number of ballots. If voting rights of delinquent Members are suspended, those Members will not be given a ballot.
- Secret ballots are required if so requested by at least 20% of the Members present in person or by proxy. If secret balloting is not required, the Association may indicate the number of proxies held on the ballot itself.
- Ballots will be counted by a neutral third party or by a committee of volunteers who are Members selected or appointed at an open meeting by the President or other person presiding during that portion of the meeting. The committee of volunteers will not be Board members and, in case of a contested election, will not be candidates. The results of any vote taken by secret ballot will be reported without identifying information.
- The President, or other person directed by the Board, will call the meeting to order and conduct the meeting. The meeting will proceed in the order set forth in the agenda.
- Each Member who wishes to speak will be given a reasonable time to speak, provided the chair may impose reasonable time limits to facilitate Member participation. Members may not speak a second time until everyone who wishes to speak has been given an opportunity to speak once. Members may not speak more than twice on any one topic, subject to the chair's discretion.
- Members must maintain decorum and refrain from addressing the membership or Board until recognized by the chair. Upon being recognized, the Member must state his name and address.
- Members may not interrupt anyone who validly has the floor, or otherwise disrupt the meeting. Members may not engage in personal attacks on either Board members or other Association Members. All comments and questions are to be delivered in a businesslike manner and comments will be confined to matters germane to the agenda item being discussed. No Member may use abusive, rude, threatening, vulgar or crude language. To facilitate free and open discussion, Members are prohibited from audio or video recording meetings.
- Members must obey all orders made by the meeting chair, including an order to step down.
 - Any Member who refuses to follow the above rules will be asked to leave the meeting. J.
- Any motions must be seconded prior to discussion and voting. Because the nature of a motion and vote may be outside the Members' authority, the Board reserves the right to determine whether a motion will be considered binding on the Association or a recommendation for proceeding. The determination may be made following consultation with legal counsel.
- Meetings are not required to be held in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order. This Conduct of Meetings Policy and Procedure was adopted by the Board of Directors on this day of day of March, 2024.

INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II,

Its: President

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Effective Date:	3-26-24

- 1. <u>Disclosure</u>. The director is to disclose any conflicting interest in a proposed transaction in an open meeting prior to the discussion and vote. The disclosure will be reflected in the meeting minutes or other written form.
- 2. <u>Participation</u>. The director will not take part in the discussion and will leave the room during the discussion and the vote on the matter. However, a majority of the disinterested Board members may ask the interested Board member to remain during any portion of the discussion and/or vote, provided that the director does not vote.
- 3. Quorum. The interested director will count for the purpose of establishing a quorum of the Board for the matter in which there is a conflict.
- 4. <u>Approval</u>. The contract, Board decision, or other Board action must be approved by a majority of the disinterested directors who are voting. No contract, Board decision, or other Board action in which a director has a conflict of interest will be approved unless it is commercially reasonable to and/or in the Association's best interests.
- 5. <u>Standard of Review</u>. No conflicting interest transaction will be set aside solely because an interested director is present at, participates in, or votes at a Board meeting that authorizes, approves, or ratifies the conflicting interest transaction if:
- A. the material facts as to the director's relationship or interest as to the conflicting interest transaction are disclosed or known to the Board, and the Board, in good faith, authorizes, approves, or ratifies the conflicting interest transaction by the affirmative vote of a majority of the disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors may be less than a quorum; or
- B. the material facts as to the director's relationship or interest as to the conflicting interest transaction are disclosed or known to the Members entitled to vote on the transaction, if any, and the conflicting interest transaction is specifically authorized, approved, or ratified in good faith by a vote of the Members entitled to vote; or
 - C. the conflicting interest transaction is fair to the Association.
- 6. <u>Loans</u>. The Association will not make loans to its directors or officers. Any director or officer who assents to or participates in making a loan to a director or officer will be liable to the Association for the amount of the loan until the loan is repaid.
- 7. <u>Association Lien Foreclosure</u>. Colorado law prohibits a director or officer of the Association, and their immediate family members, from purchasing a Lot during any foreclosure action filed by the Association to enforce its lien.

8. Definitions:

- A. "Conflicting interest transaction" means a contract, transaction, or other financial relationship between the Association and: (i) a director, or (ii) a party related to a director, or (iii) an entity in which an Association director is also a director or officer or has a financial interest.
- B. "Immediate family member" means a person related by blood, marriage, civil union, or adoption.
- C. "Party related to a director" means a spouse, a descendent, an ancestor, a sibling, the spouse or descendent of a sibling, an estate or trust in which the director or party related to a director has

a beneficial interest, or an entity in which a party related to a director is a director, officer, or has a financial interest.

- D. "Officer," for purposes of this policy only, means any person designated as an officer of the Association and any person to whom the Board delegates responsibilities, including, without limitation, a managing agent, attorney, or accountant employed by the Board.
- 9. Review. Directors will periodically review this policy.

	This Conflict of Interest Policy	was adopted by the Board of Directors on this _	16 day of
Ma	rch, 202 <u>4</u> .	_	

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,

By: Alstu James
Its: President

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. COVENANT AND RULE ENFORCEMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Effective Date: 3-26-2024

- 1. <u>Enforcement Procedure</u>. The Association will not impose fines or commence legal action for violations of the governing documents until after the Association has followed the procedures set forth below.
- 2. <u>Complaints.</u> Any Owner may send the Association a written complaint by email or first-class mail, with as much information as is known of a covenant or rule violation. Complaints may also be initiated by the manager, any member of the Board, or committee of the Board. Complaints that cannot be independently verified by a Board member or the Association's manager must be in writing. The Association has no obligation to consider oral or anonymous complaints. The Board may determine whether a written complaint is justified before continuing with any enforcement action or the notice and hearing procedures.

Notice of Violation.

- A. If the Board determines a violation occurred or is likely to have occurred based on the information provided, the Association may send a written notice of any asserted violation of any provisions of the governing documents to the Owner in accordance with this policy. The notice will describe: (i) the nature of the violation; (ii) the action or actions required to cure the violation and applicable cure period for the violation; (iii) any fines that may be imposed; (iv) the right to request a hearing to contest the violation or possible fine; and (v) if a hearing is requested, a date by which such request must be received and a timeline for the hearing process ("Notice of Violation").
- B. For the purpose of this policy to comply with Colorado law, a notice is deemed received when sent by and according to the following timelines:
 - i. Email or text Upon successful transmission of electronic mail or text;
 - ii. Certified Mail/First-Class Mail 3 business days after deposit for delivery;
 - iii. Posting Upon physical posting at the Owner's Lot; or
 - iv. Actual Notice Upon hand-delivery.
- 4. Request for Hearing. If an Owner desires a hearing to contest any alleged violation and possible fine or to discuss any mitigating circumstances, the Owner must request the hearing, in writing, prior to the deadline stated in the Notice of Violation. The request for hearing should describe the grounds and basis for challenging the alleged violation or the mitigating circumstances. If a timely request for a hearing is not made, the right to a hearing is deemed forever waived. If a hearing is not requested by the deadline, the Board may assess a fine as set forth in the fine schedule upon expiration of any applicable cure period(s).
- 5. <u>Hearing Board to Conduct Hearing</u>. The hearing board, which may be the Board of Directors, will hear and decide cases set for hearing pursuant to the procedures set forth in this policy. The hearing board may appoint an officer or other Owner to preside at any hearing.
- 6. <u>Hearings</u>. The Board will inform the Owner of the scheduled time, place, and date of the requested hearing by any of the following means: first-class mail; certified mail; email; text message to a cellular number that the Association has on file because the Owner has provided the number to the Association; or hand-delivery. Hearings may be conducted during or subsequent to any applicable cure period(s). The presiding officer may grant continuances for good cause. At the beginning of each hearing, the presiding officer will explain the rules, procedures, and guidelines by which the hearing will be conducted. The complaining parties and the Owner will have the right, but not the obligation, to attend the hearing. Each party may present evidence, testimony, and witnesses. The decision will be based on

the matters set forth in the notice of alleged violation, request for hearing, and evidence as may be presented at the hearing. If a complaining party is unable to attend the hearing, the complainant may submit a letter to the hearing board explaining the basis of the complaint.

7. <u>Decision</u>. After all testimony and other evidence has been presented to the hearing board, it will render its written findings and decision, and impose a fine, if applicable, upon expiration of any applicable cure period(s). A decision, either a finding for or against the Owner, will be by a majority vote of the hearing board.

8. Fine Schedule.

A. General Fine Schedule.

Unless otherwise specified in the governing documents, the following fines may be imposed for each violation of the governing documents occurring within a one-year period:

First violation:	\$25
Second violation:	\$50
Third violation:	\$100
Fourth violation:	\$150

The Association may send one or more courtesy notices prior to a Notice of Violation. A Notice of Violation may be sent for any first violation. Additional or subsequent violations of the same provision occurring within one year from the date of the first Notice of Violation will be considered repeat or recurring violations, subject to additional fines. After the one-year period, any subsequent occurrence of the same violation will be treated as a new first violation. The Board may adopt fines in excess of the fine schedule above if the violation presents a health and safety concern.

B. Continuing Violation Fine Schedule.

For any violation that is continuing in nature, the Association may impose fines in accordance with the general fine schedule or may impose fines on a weekly basis in the amount of \$100 per week until the Owner cures the violation.

For purposes of this policy, a violation is considered "continuing in nature" if the violation is uninterrupted by time or, by the nature of the violation, it occurs at such frequency to create a continuous pattern of occurrence. Examples of continuing violations include failure to paint your house, unsightly yard, unauthorized improvements, parking an unauthorized vehicle in the community on a nightly or other regular basis, etc.

9. Additional Enforcement Rights.

- A. <u>Recorded Notice of Violation</u>. The Board may issue and record with the Clerk and Recorder a Notice of Violation.
- B. <u>Default Assessments</u>. Except fines, the Board may levy an Default Assessments against any Owner and Owner's Lot for those purposes set forth in the Declaration.
- C. <u>Self-help Remedies</u>. The Association or its duly authorized agent has the authority to abate or remove any structure or condition that violates the governing documents, as more fully provided in the Declaration. All costs of self-help will be assessed against and be a lien on the Owner's Lot.
- D. <u>Suspension of Right to Vote</u>. An Owner's right to vote may be suspended for up to 60 days after notice to the Owner if the Owner is in violation of the governing documents.
- 10. <u>Failure to Enforce</u>. The Association's failure to enforce the governing documents is not a waiver of the right to enforce for any subsequent violations.

Administrative Expenses. Enforcement costs, imposed by the Association or its managing agent, related to covenant and rule enforcement will be the obligation of the Owner and may be posted to the Owner's account.		
This Covenant and Rule Enforcement Policy and Procedure was adopted by the Board of Directors on this		
HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,		
By: Alib Jus Its: President		

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. INVESTMENT OF RESERVES POLICY

	201-20011
Effective Date:	3-26-2024

- 1. With regard to investment of reserve funds, directors and officers are subject to the standard of care outlined in this policy. Officer, for purposes of this policy only, means any person designated as an officer of the Association and any person to whom the Board delegates responsibilities, including, without limitation, a managing agent, attorney, or accountant employed by the Board.
- A. Directors and officers will perform their duties regarding investment of reserves in good faith, in a manner the director or officer reasonably believes to be in the Association's best interests, and with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances. In performing the duties, a director or officer is entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by: (i) one or more Association officers or employees whom the director or officer reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented; (ii) legal counsel, community association manager, public accountant, or other persons as to matters which the director or officer reasonably believes to be within the person's professional or expert competence; or (iii) an Association committee on which the director or officer does not serve if the director reasonably believes the committee merits confidence.
- B. A director or officer is not considered to be acting in good faith if the director or officer has knowledge concerning the matter in question that would cause reliance on others as provided above to be unwarranted. A director or officer is not liable to the Association or its Members for any action the director or officer takes or omits to take as a director or officer if, in connection with the action or omission, the director of officer performs his duties in compliance with this policy. A director or officer, regardless of title, is not deemed to be a trustee with respect to the Association or with respect to any property held or administered by the Association.
- 2. The Board establishes the amount, if any, to be transferred to reserve funds on an annual basis. The amount will be reflected in the budget to be ratified by the Owners.
- 3. Reserves may be invested in certificates of deposit, money market deposit accounts, money market funds, U.S. treasury and government obligations, municipal bonds and other state obligations, and other investments pursuant to the Association's investment goals. No funds will be deposited or invested except in authorized investment funds. All investments must be insured by FDIC, SIPC or comparable insurance.
- 4. The reserve funds will be invested to achieve the following goals, in descending order of importance:
 - A. Promote the preservation of principal;
- B. Structure maturities to promote liquidity and accessibility of funds for projected or unexpected expenditures;
 - Mitigate the effects of interest rate volatility upon reserve assets;
- D. Seek the highest level of return that is consistent with preserving the principal and accumulated interest;
 - E. Minimize investment costs.
- 5. The Board may consider the following circumstances in investing reserve funds:
 - A. General economic conditions;
 - B. Possible effect of inflation or deflation;

- C. Expected tax consequences;
- D. Role that each investment plays in the overall investment portfolio;
- E. Other Association resources.
- 6. All accounts, instruments and other documentation of investments will be subject to the approval of, and may from time to time be amended by, the Board as appropriate, and will be reviewed periodically.
- 7. The President or Treasurer or manager, if authorized by the Board, are authorized to purchase, invest in, acquire, sell, or assign any and all types and kinds of investments meeting the goals in paragraph 4; and to enter into agreements, contracts, and arrangements with respect to security transactions and to execute, sign or endorse agreements on the Association's behalf. To withdraw or transfer funds, the signature of the President and Treasurer will be required.
- 8. The Association will carry fidelity insurance to protect against theft or dishonesty from anyone with access to the reserve funds, as required by the governing documents and Colorado law.
- 9. The Association's manager or other person designated by the Board will maintain monthly statements, including detailed accounting of current values, income, and all transactions.

This Investment of Reserves Policy was adopted by the Board of Directors on this	s <u>267</u> day of
March , 202 4.	

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,

By: Alil Jans

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. RECORDS INSPECTION POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Effective Date:	3 -	26-	2029	1
				_

- 1. <u>Availability and Inspection of Records</u>. Any records required to be made available by law will be made reasonably available for inspection and copying by a Member or the Member's authorized agent. "Reasonably available" means available during normal business hours after written request of at least 5 business days. The written request will describe the records sought with reasonable particularity. The Board may require that requests be submitted on the form attached to this policy.
- A. Upon receipt of a request, the Association will make an appointment with the Owner, at a time convenient to both parties, to conduct the inspection. Unless otherwise agreed, all records will be inspected at the management company's office. All appointments for inspection will be limited to two hours. If additional time is needed, another appointment will be made within two weeks, at a time convenient to both parties.
- B. At the discretion of the Board or Association manager, records will be inspected only in the presence of a Board member, management company employee, or other person designated by the Board.
- C. During inspection, an Owner may designate pages to be copied with a paperclip, post-it note, or other means the Association provides. Copies will be made at a cost based on the standard schedule of fees charged by the Association's management agent, which charges will include reasonable retrieval costs for off-site files or for any other necessary special processing. The Owner will be responsible for paying the total copying cost prior to receiving the copies. The Owner will be responsible for mailing costs, if any.
- D. Records may not be removed from the office in which they are inspected without the Board's express written consent.
- 2. <u>Association Records</u>. In addition to any records specifically required by law or the Association's Declaration or Bylaws, the Association will maintain the following records, which are the Association's sole records:
- A. detailed records of receipts and expenditures affecting the Association's operation and administration;
- B. records of claims for construction defects and amounts received pursuant to settlement of those claims;
- C. minutes of membership meetings, minutes of Board meetings, a record of all actions taken by the Members or Board without a meeting (i.e., by written ballot or written consent in lieu of a meeting), and a record of all actions taken by a committee of the Board;
- D. written communications among, and the votes cast by, Board members that are directly related to an action taken by the Board without a meeting pursuant to the Association's Bylaws or Colorado law;
- E. Members' names in a form that permits preparation of a list of names and physical mailing addresses of all Members, showing each Member's number of votes ("Membership list");
- F. the current articles of incorporation, declaration, covenants, bylaws, rules and regulations, and any policies or resolutions adopted by the Board;
- G. financial statements, to the extent available, showing, in reasonable detail, the Association's assets and liabilities and results of its operations for the past three years;

- H. tax returns for the past seven years, to the extent available;
- I. a list of the names, electronic mail addresses, and business or home addresses of its current directors and officers:
 - J. its most recent annual report delivered to the Secretary of State;
- K. financial records sufficiently detailed to enable the Association to provide statements of unpaid assessments:
 - L. current written contracts to which the Association is a party;
- M. ballots, proxies, and other records related to voting by Members for one year after the election, action, or vote to which they relate (provided that any identifying information on ballots may be redacted prior to owner inspection);
- N. resolutions adopted by the Board relating the characteristics, qualifications, rights, limitations, and obligations of Members or any class of Members; and
 - O. written communications within the past three years to Members generally as Members.

If the Association stores other types of documentation, or stores documentation for a longer time period than may be required above, those documents will not be considered Association records. The Association may condition production of records on a statement of a proper purpose pursuant to C.R.S. 7-136-102. The term "proper purpose" means a purpose reasonably related to the demanding Member's interest as a Member.

3. Restrictions on Use of Membership List.

- A. No Member may use Association records, or allow Association records to be used, for commercial purposes.
 - B. In addition, a Membership list may not be:
- i. used to solicit money or property unless such money or property will be used solely to solicit votes of the Members in an election held by the Association;
 - ii. used for any commercial purpose;
 - iii. sold to or purchased by any person;
 - iv. used for any purposes unrelated to the Member's interest as a Member; or
 - v. used for any other purpose prohibited by law.

Members requesting a Membership list will be required to sign the agreement attached to this policy indicating that they will not use the list for the purposes stated above.

- 4. <u>Records That May Be Withheld</u>. The Association may withhold any document, information or record not required to be disclosed pursuant to C.R.S. 7-136-101 or other applicable law. This includes but is not limited to:
- A. architectural drawings, plans, and designs, unless the legal owner of the drawings, plans, or designs provides written consent to the release;
- B. contracts, leases, bids, or records related to transactions to purchase or provide goods or services that are still in or under negotiation;

- communication with legal counsel protected by the attorney-client privilege or the C. attorney work product doctrine;
 - disclosure of information in violation of law; D.
 - records of an executive session of the Board; and E.
 - records related to an individual Lot other than the Member's. F.

If these records are made available for inspection, the procedure set forth in Paragraph 1 applies.

- Records That Are Not Available. The following records are not subject to review, inspection, and/or copying, and will be withheld from any inspection:
 - personnel, salary, or medical records related to specific individuals; and A.
 - Members' personal identification and account information, including: B.
 - bank account information; i.
 - ii. telephone numbers;
 - iii. electronic mail addresses;
 - iv. driver's license numbers;
 - v. social security numbers; and
 - vi. vehicle identification information.

Notwithstanding the limitations above, an Owner or resident may provide the Association with prior written consent to the disclosure of, and the Association may publish to other Owners and residents, the person's telephone number, electronic mail address, or both.

- Creation of Records. Nothing contained in these policies will be construed to require the 6 Association to create records that do not exist or compile records in a particular format or order.
- Remedies. The Association may pursue any Owner for damages or injunctive relief or both, including reasonable attorney fees, for abuse of inspection and copying rights, including use of any records for a commercial purpose.

This Records Inspection Policy and Procedure was adopted by the Board of Directors on this day of ______, 202<u>4</u>.

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,

Dlist Chus

By: _____ Its: President

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. REQUEST FOR ACCESS TO ASSOCIATION RECORDS

Member	Name:	Date:
Address	:	
Telepho	ne #:	
HIDEAV	VAY JUI	nt to state law and the Association's Records Inspection Policy, I hereby request that NCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. provide access to the records. I have requested to inspect and/or obtain copies of the following records:
2. 3. 4. 5.		
(Please	be as s	pecific as possible. Add additional pages, if necessary.)
l underst regular b		at upon receipt of this request, the Association will set an appointment with me during s hours.
records	mav not	stand that under the terms of the Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act, Association to be obtained or used for any purpose unrelated to my interest(s) as an Owner or for any pose. I further understand and agree that the Association's membership list may not be:
,	(i)	Used to solicit money or property unless such money or property will be used solely to solicit the votes of the Owners in an election held by the Association;
((ii)	Used for any commercial purpose;
((iii)	Sold to, otherwise distributed to, or purchased by any person; or
((iv)	Any other purpose prohibited by law.
that the Associated document records purpose, including	Associa tion's po nts for n provided , I will be g attorne	wledge and accept the Association's records inspection policy. I acknowledge and acceptation's records will be made available to me only at such time and place as the olicy provides, and that there may be a cost associated with providing copies of these me. I agree to pay any costs associated with copying these documents. In the event the d to me by the Association are used for any commercial purposes or other improper e responsible for any and all damages, penalties and costs incurred by the Association, by fees, and I shall be subject to all enforcement procedures available to the Association erning documents and/or Colorado law.
Member	Signatu	ure: Date:
Member	Name:	Date:
Address	•	
Telephoi	ne #:	

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. **DISPUTE RESOLUTION POLICY AND PROCEDURE**

Effective Date:

control.

1.	Required dispute resolution procedure for claims against Association. For Excluded Claims the
dispute	resolution process in Article 11 of the Declaration shall apply. For all other claims, this policy shall

3-26-2024

Prior to filing a lawsuit against the Association, the Board, or any officer, director, or property manager of the Association, an Owner must request and attend a hearing with the Board. The request will be in writing and will be personally delivered to any Board member or the Association's property manager. The Owner, in the request and at the hearing, must make a good faith effort to explain the grievance to the Board and resolve the dispute in an amicable fashion, and will give the Board a reasonable opportunity to address the Owner's grievance. Upon receiving a request for a hearing, the Board will give notice of the date, time, and place of the hearing to the person requesting the hearing. The Board will schedule this hearing for a date not less than 14 or more than 30 days from the date the request is received. If the dispute cannot be resolved, the parties may utilize the discretionary mediation procedure set forth below but will not be required to do so.

- Discretionary dispute resolution procedures for other claims. The procedures set forth below may be used in any disputes between Owners and/or residents. At its discretion, the Board may use the procedures set forth below to resolve disputes with Owners prior to filing litigation.
- Negotiation. A request for dispute resolution by negotiation may be initiated by an Owner or the Association. The request will be in writing stating the nature and details of the dispute and will be personally delivered to the other party. So long as the other party agrees to negotiate, a meeting will be held between the parties to begin a good faith attempt to negotiate a resolution not less than 14 or more than 30 days of receipt of the request, unless otherwise extended by written agreement. Through negotiation, the parties will communicate directly with each other in an effort to reach an agreement that serves the interests of both parties. Should the dispute pertain to property issues, each party will be granted the right to inspect the alleged defects or problems at a time convenient to everyone involved.
- Mediation. If the dispute is not resolved by negotiation, any party may request in writing that the issue be submitted to mediation. If the parties agree to mediate the dispute prior to seeking other remedies, they will participate in good faith in the mediation. The role of the mediator is to facilitate further negotiation between the parties. The mediator will not have power to decide how to resolve the dispute but will use recognized, accepted mediation techniques to assist the parties in making that decision. The mediator will be selected by a consensus of the parties involved within 14 days of the receipt of the request. Any cost of mediation will be shared equally among the parties unless they and

the mediator agree otherwise.	
This Dispute Resolution Polyage day of	licy and Procedure was adopted by the Board of Directors on this, 202
	DEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, C., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,
By: Its:	President Aug

HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC. RESERVE STUDY AND FUNDING POLICY

1	Effective Date: 3-26-2024
reserve study, but may obtain if it updated or revised periodically.	sociation is not required under the governing documents to have a it deems necessary. The Association may have any reserve study Reserve studies are preferred to be based on a physical examination of eparing the reserve study but may be performed by the person preparing mination of the Community.
performed by a professional rese performed without a financial and	ling for replacement is preferred to be based on a financial analysis erve specialist or by the Association's managing agent, but may be alysis. Funding for replacement is planned and projected to be etermined, from year-to-year, by the Board.
This Reserve Study and of, 202 <u>l</u>	Funding Policy was adopted by the Board of Directors on this 26° day 4° .
	HIDEAWAY JUNCTION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION PHASE II, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation,
 	By: Slit Janes Its: President